
 

Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 

attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to 
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are recorded for public viewing. 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

July 18, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor's Announcements 

1. Reappoint Charlie Johnson to the Housing Authority for a four-year term. 

2. Reappoint Cynthia Hyder to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a four-year term. 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

3. Approve June 20, 2023 City Council Minutes. 

4. Approve Vendor List. 

5. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

6. 23-R-39 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Purchase of Base Rock from Clever Stone 

Company, Inc. for the Perimeter Queuing Road of the Republic School District. 

7. 23-R-40 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding Bids for the Supply of Certain Rental Equipment 

on an As-Needed Basis through Calendar Year 2024. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting                 August 3, 2023-Cancelled 
Planning & Zoning Meeting                 August 14, 2023 
City Council Meeting                          August 15, 2023 
City Council Meeting                          August 22, 2023 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

8. 23-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 
Approximately Seventeen Point One-Nine (17.19) Acres of Real Property Located at 3020 North 
York Avenue, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

9. 23-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Stone Creek Falls Phase 
One Subdivision. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

10. 23-21 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Cooperative Agreement with Greene County, Missouri for Road Striping Services. 

1



 

11. 23-22 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Iron Grain Planned 
Development District Phase One. 

12. 23-23 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of a Developer Agreement with 

Turner Residential Holding, LLC for the Continued Development of the Oak Hills Phase Three 

Residential Subdivision. 

13. 23-24 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 

Approximately Four (4) Acres of Real Property Located at 1192 South State Highway MM, from 

Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

14. 23-25 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 

Approximately One Point One (1.1) Acres of Real Property Located at 2314, 2318, 2326 and 2330 

East Timber Oak Street, from The 12 Stones Planned Development District (PDD) to Two-Family 

Residential (R-2). 

15. 23-26 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute an 

Agreement with the City of Springfield, Missouri for the Purchase of Programming Code to Design 

an Interface for Transferring Information from the Republic Police Department to the Prosecuting 

Attorney Management System. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

16. 23-R-41 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of a Task Order for Engineer-Owner 

Agreement for Task Order No. 14 with Burns and McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc. Relating to the 

Wastewater Treatment Improvements. 

17. 23-R-42 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Sewer Flow Metering Equipment 

to Core & Main LP. 

18. 23-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Modern Tractor Supply Company and Lawrence Lipscomb for City's Use of 
Certain Real Property as Youth Recreational League Practice Fields. 

19. 23-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Extend its Services 

Contract With Redec, LLC for Professional Advisory Services. 

20. 23-R-45 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute a Fourth 

Addendum to the Agreement for Financial Consulting Services with Maximist, LLC. 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

1. RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

2.  RSMo 610.021.12 Any documents related to a negotiated contract until a contract is executed. 

Adjournment 
 
 

2



 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 
 

to 

Housing Authority 
 

Charlie Johnson 

 
 

By The Republic City Council  

Date of Appointment 

July 18, 2023-July 17, 2027 

 

Matt Russell 

Mayor 
3

Item 1.



 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT 
 

to 

Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Cynthia Hyder 

 
 

By The Republic City Council  

Date of Appointment 

July 18, 2023-July 17, 2027 

 

Matt Russell 

Mayor 
4

Item 2.



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  2 0 ,  2 0 2 3  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

June 20, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry 
Wilson, Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, Brandon Self, and Clint Gerlek. Others in attendance were: Deputy City 
Administrator Andrew Nelson, City Attorney Megan McCullough, BUILDS Administrator Karen Haynes, 
Police Chief Brian Sells, Police Major Jamie Burks, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Jennafer 
Mayfield, Athletics Administrator Garrett Cline, Assistant BUILDS Administrator Garrett Brickner, Fire 
Chief Duane Compton, Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, Assistant City Administrator/Parks and Recreation 
Director Jared Keeling, Executive Assistant Jordan Furnas, City Clerk Laura Burbridge, Finance Director Bob 
Ford, and IT Director Chris Crosby.  

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by Council Member Eric Franklin. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Russell opened citizen participation at 6:01 p.m. Mayor Russell closed citizen participation at 6:01 
p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion 
Carried. 

1. Approve June 6, 2023 City Council Minutes. 

2. Approve June 6, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting-Cancelled  July 6, 2023 
Planning & Zoning Meeting   July 10, 2023 
City Council Meeting    July 18, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Meeting   August 3, 2023 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

3. 23-17 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of an Amendment to The Developer 

Agreement with Republic 63, LLC for the Continued Development of the Hankins Farm Planned 

Development District. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 23-17 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Garrett Brickner was available to answer 
questions.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 23-17. Council Member 

5

Item 3.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  2 0 ,  2 0 2 3  

Franklin seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  

4. 23-18 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Cooperation Agreement with the Republic R-III School District to Share the Cost of Professional 

Emergency Operations Services Provided by AARC Consultants, LLC. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Updike to have 
the second reading of Bill 23-18 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was available to answer 
questions.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 23-18. Council Member 
Wilson seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

5. 23-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 
Approximately Seventeen Point One-Nine (17.19) Acres of Real Property Located at 3020 North 
York Avenue, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Updike to have 
the first reading of Bill 23-19 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, 
and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Karen Haynes provided an overview of the bill.  Ricky Haas 
with Olsson 550 E St. Louis spoke in favor of the bill representing the developer. 

William Clark - 2752 N Atlantic St., Melanie Clark - 2752 N Atlantic St., David Simmons - 2979 N 
York Ave., and Wyetta Simmons - 2979 N. York Ave. spoke against the bill.  Mayor Russell 
reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting with any 
questions. 

6. 23-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Stone Creek Falls Phase 
One Subdivision. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Self to have the 
first reading of Bill 23-20 by title only. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, 
and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Karen Haynes provided an overview of the bill.  Mayor Russell 
reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting with any 
questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

7. 23-R-36 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Negotiate and 

Enter into an Agreement with Ollis/Akers/Arney Insurance & Business Advisors for Provision of 

Insurance Brokerage and Consultant Services. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Franklin to 
approve Resolution 23-R-36. Lisa Addington provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 
6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

8. 23-R-37 A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Independent Audit Report for 

the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2022. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Wilson to 
approve Resolution 23-R-37. Jon Cummings from KPM presented the Audit Report. The vote was 
6 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

6

Item 3.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J u n e  2 0 ,  2 0 2 3  

9. 23-R-38 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Enter into an 

Agreement with Midwest Public Risk for Property and Liability Insurance for the Fiscal Year 

2023-2024. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to 
approve Resolution 23-R-38. Bob Ford provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 5 
Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. 1 Abstain-Self.  Motion Carried.  

Reports from Staff 

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson thanked the residents for coming out and voicing their 
opinions, noting we value their opinions. 

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson thanked Jon for providing the Audit Report.  Mr. Nelson added 
that KPM is great to work with and thanked all their staff for the work done to complete the audit.  Mr. 
Nelson noted regarding turnover and segregation of duties, we had turnover but are thankful to have Bob 
now and recently added another staff member in the Finance Department. 

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson reported the Hines and Lynn roundabout project is going well 
and is currently on schedule.  

Deputy City Administrator Andrew Nelson noted we need volunteers for Have a Blast on June 30th.  The 
event begins at 6 p.m. and we look forward to seeing everyone there. 

Council Member Franklin asked if the road overlays were complete.  Garrett Brickner responded that all 
roads except East Hines have been completed.  Hines will be completed alongside the roundabout 
project.  Mr. Franklin reported he was able to check out the completed work on the overlays.  Mr. Franklin 
reported he has recently had great discussions with people on various topics and appreciates staff for 
going above and beyond to get the answers to his questions.  Mr. Franklin added he looks forward to Have 
A Blast and thanked all the volunteers and the city for the work on it. 

Mayor Russell shared his appreciation for everyone coming to the meeting.  Mayor Russell added he 
appreciates staff working so hard, noting it is a thankless job.  Mayor Russell thanked Garrett Cline for not 
trying to out-bench him. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

7

Item 3.



7/6/2023 7:53:35 AM Page 1 of 1

Vendor Audit Report
City of Republic For Date Range 06/01/2023 - 06/30/2023

Vendor Added Added User Deleted Deleted User

08017 - Deere & Co 02/10/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08082 - Blue Silo 06/01/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08083 - Goswick Cattle LLC 06/01/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08084 - Tilton Chase Tate 06/07/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08085 - Patti Dickinson 06/07/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08086 - Travus McCroskey 06/08/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08087 - Jacob Nakano 06/08/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08088 - Michael A Polk 06/08/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08089 - Justin Howard 06/08/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08090 - Charles Fletcher 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08091 - Nau Angus Farms LLC 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08092 - Chris Lakin 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08093 - Roberts & Associates 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08094 - Automatic Fire Alarm Association 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08095 - Kyler Peace 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08096 - Audrianna Wake 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08097 - Phillip McCroskey 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08098 - Spencer Brown 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08099 - Meleah Ann Crockett Morales 06/15/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08100 - Bright Market LLC 06/21/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08101 - Quadient Leasing USA Inc 06/22/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08102 - BRANCO Enterprises 06/22/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08103 - Republic 63 LLC 06/27/2023 SHERRI WOODS

08104 - Maleah Ann Crockett Morales 06/28/2023 SHERRI WOODS

9110 - Mace Homes Inc

Vendor Count: (25)

8

Item 4.



MISSOURI RETENTION MANUAL CODE NAME/DATE  OF RECORDS TO BE DISPOSED

DATE(S) OF 

DOCUMENTS RETENTION TIME NEEDED FOR RECORD

GS 067   Vehicle Ownership and Maintenance Records 

BUILDS vehicles-sold:  legal titles, registration 

documents, purchase invoice,   contracts, warranties, 

inspections, maintenance logs. 2005-2022

Retain titles, licenses, warranties, and 

maintenance records until vehicle is 

sold or disposed   of.  Retain 

registration records until superseded or 

disposition of vehicle. 

GS 085 Meeting Records (internal agency staff/committee) Unified Development Code Meetings 2012-2013 3 years

1302 Laboratory Reports: Sewage, Water, Etc Water Sample Records 2015-2017 5 years

1303 State and Federal Compliance Reports: Waste Water 

Treatment Plant SCLS Failure 2017 5 years

1303 State and Federal Compliance Reports: Waste Water 

Treatment Plant Report on WW Discharge from Station 5 1991 5 years

0718 Motor Fuel Usage Reports File Fuel Logs 2009-2014 5 Years

GS 070 Expense Reimbursement Records Expense Reports 2008-2016 Completion of audit plus 1 year. 

 GS 122 Monthly Reports of Building Permits Issued File permit reports to Us Census Bureau 1983-2004 3 years

GS 123 Inspection Reports Inspection Books 2006-2012 5 years

GS 040   Grant Records Ice Storm Recovery Billing/Documentation 2007 3 years after submission of final report

GS 123 Building Code Inspection and Enforcement File Volation notices 2003 5 years

GS 085 Meeting Records (internal agency staff/committee) City/School Partnership Notes 3 years

GS 056   Insurance Policy Records Insurance Policy Information 2002-2009

Retain until canceled or expired, plus 6 

calendar years.

GS 057   Insurance Claims Files Filed Claims 2002-2009

If legal action taken, retain 10 years 

after case disposed, or date of last 

action; If no legal action   taken, retain 

5 years + legal review. 

Record Destruction Request Form

9

Item 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: R-23-39 A  Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Purchase of 
Base Rock from Clever Stone Company, Inc. for the Perimeter Queuing 
Road of the Republic School District. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To Authorize the BUILDS Department to Purchase Base Rock for School Storage Lane.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

As part of construction for the school storage Lane the city of Republic BUILDS department will need to 

purchase base rock for the roadway. The BUILDS department requested bids from Clever Stone 

company, Westside Stone, and Baily Queries of which Clever Stone was the cheapest at $12.50 per ton 

delivered, this is cheaper than our bulk bid price approved by council via resolution 21-R-13.  The BUILDS 

department has already purchased rock from Clever Stone and therefore is asking for council 

authorization to purchase this base rock as the total amount of rock purchased from this vendor will be 

above Staff purchasing policy threshold.  The estimated total amount of Rock to be purchased from 

Clever Stone is $150,000.  

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

10

Item 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-39  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-39 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF BASE ROCK FROM CLEVER STONE 
COMPANY, INC. FOR THE PERIMETER QUEUING ROAD OF THE REPUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 

and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 

the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Republic R-III School District (“School District”) owns 2.86 acres of real property 
(also known as Lot 2) of the Trinity Republic Self-Storage Planned Development District (PDD), located at 
the 900 Block of North Main Street (“Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PDD Development Plan for the Property, approved by City Council via 
Ordinance 22-54, the School District intends to construct a perimeter queuing road on the Property for 
use by the School District (“the Project”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the City and School District entered into a Developer Agreement, approved  by City 
Council via Ordinance 23-09, whereby the City is to provide labor and materials for the Project1 and the 
School District is required to bear the costs for such labor and materials; and 

 
WHEREAS, in performing its obligations under the Developer Agreement, the City identified the need 

to purchase base rock for use on the Project and requested bids from three suppliers authorized by City Council 
on April 20, 2021 via Resolution 21-R-13; and 

 
WHEREAS, of the three bids received, Clever Stone Company offered the lowest price for base rock at 

a cost of $12.50 per delivered ton; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council believes it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens to accept the bid 

submitted by Clever Stone Company, as it appears to demonstrate the necessary qualifications for a 
responsible bid and is the lowest cost to the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The submitted bid from Clever Stone Company, attached as “Exhibit 1” and 

expressly incorporated herein, is hereby accepted at the estimated cost(s) shown 

thereon, but in no event to exceed a total of $150,000, without separate approval 

from Council. 

 
Section 2.   The City Administrator, and his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

 

Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law.  

 

                                                      
1 Except for all labor and materials related to asphalt work on the Project. 

11

Item 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-39  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-39 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 

 

       

_________________________________________ 

Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 
 
 
 

12

Item 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-40 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding Bids for the Supply 
of Certain Rental Equipment on an As-Needed Basis through Calendar 
Year 2024. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award a bid for Rental Equipment for the City of Republic through Calendar Year 2024. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City requested bids to supply various types of Rental Equipment for the rest of 2023 and all of 2024.   

The City had 3 bidders State Tractor & Equipment, Hayden Machinery, and Berry Tractor. The prices for 

each piece of equipment requested can be seen in the attached exhibits. The City intends to approve 

these 3 bids at the prices they have listed so that if the lowest priced supplier cannot provide the 

requested materials, the City can move on to the next lowest bidder and so on. Equipment requested to 

be priced included:  

 Mid-Size Excavator 

 Large Excavator 

 Mid-size Dozer 

 Larger Dozer 

 Rubber Tracked Skid 

Steer 

 Smooth Drum Roller  

 Sheep’s Foot Roller 

 Dump Truck (off 

Road) 

 Dump Truck (Road) 

single axle 

 Dump Truck (Road) 

tandem axle 

 Motor Grader 

 Large Wheel Loader 

 Large Track Loader 

 Small Rock Breaker 

 Larger Rock Breaker 

 Grade Control GPS 

Unit 

 Backhoe 

 Earth Scraper 

 Tractor w/boom 

mower  

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

13

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-40 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-40 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING BIDS FOR THE SUPPLY OF CERTAIN RENTAL EQUIPMENT 

ON AN AS-NEEDED BASIS THROUGH CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the laws of 

the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City solicited sealed bids for the supply of specified equipment available for rent 

through the calendar year 2024 (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, three (3) vendors submitted bids for the Project, including Berry Tractor, Hayden 
Machinery, and State Tractor and Equipment, all bids being filed with and maintained by the City Clerk; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff recommends approval of awards to all three submitting entities at the prices 

shown on the submitters’ respective bids, with the intention to procure the rental equipment needed from 
the entity capable of providing said equipment at the lowest cost to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on those recommendations, and after hearing presentation and remarks by staff, 

the Council finds that the Project should be awarded to Berry Tractor, Hayden Machinery, and State Tractor 
and Equipment, at the prices shown on their respective bids,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The following three suppliers are awarded the Project at the rates shown in their 

respective bids, attached hereto and labeled consecutively as follows: Berry Tractor 

("Exhibit 1"), Hayden Machinery ("Exhibit 2"), and State Tractor and Equipment 

("Exhibit 3").  The City shall obtain the needed equipment from one (or more) of the 

providers approved herein at the lowest cost offered to the City for such equipment. 

 

Section 2.   The City Administrator, and/or his designee, is authorized on behalf of the City to take 

the steps necessary to execute this Resolution. 

 

Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, this 

__________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

14

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-40 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-40 

 

 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 
 

15

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A . BID SUBMISSION FORM

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Item Descrlption of Work Price

Base Bid

rental prices for various equipment to be used on various
projects within the City for the remainder of 2023 and
through December 3!st, 2024.
All Bids to include:

o Travel Expenses

o Delivery Costs

o Administrative costs

Please note any of the following:
. Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic

for this project.
. Any other requests or responsibilities of the City

of Republic for this project.

s Fillout table next pase

ln compliance with this lnvitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein.

E-maili

ltSlut7- ?st -a
q5819$q-

-7acsimite: {fi- Agt- 5r>Q

'tt

elephone:

lular:

City of Republic, Missouri

213 N Main Street

Republic, MO 65738

mpany Legal Name:

ress:

ignat

me and Title:

ed b-r t-a3
idder's Federat rD Number: qt- O'q n4l

IFB for: . Rental prices for various
equipment to be used on various projects within
the City for the remainder of 2023 and through
December 31st, 2024.

16

Item 7.



Equipment Description/Size Attachments Comparable Monthly Price Make & Model

Mid-Size
Excavator 20-30 ton Plumed for Breaker

Komatsu 240, Cat
320 lo,looo.to K,'rrrr+.n ?ca{t

Large Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker
Komatsu 310, Cat

400 9,w.@ Kcy'rrrtsu ?c*t
Mid-size Dozer

30,000 to 35,000
LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible S,cgr.o' Kr*rmr#l^ DS I
Larger Dozer

45,000 to 50,000
LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible
Cat D5, Komatsu

D65 8,b?o Karoatsu Dtog

Rubber Tracked
Skid Steer 10,000-12,000 lbs

High and low flow
hook ups & quick

change bucket
Case 450, John

Deere 333, Cat 299 Do Br'd
Roller 84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211 {.tso.@ Ofu,rva Btr,,atl

Roller 84" Single Drum
Soil Drum (Sheep's

foot) Komatsu BW 211 46tu:' Bonvq fSrr.le$
J

Dump Truck (off
Road)

Off Road/ 20 to 25
yd 20 to25 yd Dump

Komatsu HD465, JBC

7t4 lS,@,oo
Dump Truck
(Road) single axle 7 yd dump

MACK MD, Peterbilt
536, lnternational

MV Da 8,,
Dump Truck
(Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump

MACK Granite,
Peterbilt 548,

lnternational HV Do B;l
Motor Grader Articulated blade

Case 856c, Komatsu
GD655-5 58o90 fu) 6\la1

Large Wheel
Loader

28,000 to 35,000
LBS

3.O - 4.2 cu. Yd

Bucket
Case 721G, Komatsu

wA 320-8 Sao.a
Large Track
Loader

42,000 to 45,000
LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket

Cat 953, 755K John

Deere Do B,.L
Small Rock

Breaker 4toGton Case CH-4M, HK 45 eqcr..ot)
Larger Rock
Breaker V1800 20 - 35 ton

Ti'amac V1800,
Montabert V1800 48M,oo u,

Grade Control
GPS Unit

Top Con

Base/Rover Trimble, ASM, iDig 4,W
Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls

John Deere 31051,
Case 590 Super N idl)D B

!

Earth Scraper t5yd-24yd Motor or Pulled
Cat 527K, lohn

Deere 8628 tTractor w/boom
mower

5ft head, 12ft
reach Diamond mower

Cat D4, Komatsu
D51

l(ono/rsu llnrt/rl

Yannl<u n A.n

-TnCon

ruo 0fl

17

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID

To be submitted with all Bids in tesponse to this IFB

_We DO NOT take exception to the ltB Docu ments/Requ irements

_LWeTAKE exceptiontothe IFB Docu ments/Req u irements asfollows:

a

I have carefully examined the lnvitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and

conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein.

Company Name
ADDENDA

B Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following adden du m:

(Authorized Person's Signature)

Company Address Addendum No. _

Addendum No.

Telephone Number b Addendum No. _

Fax Number 417^ 831-5,1 7 Addendum No. _
be.r^ IcaClot. "crxD ate U2-a'-a3 Email

Federal Tax lD No.

DBE Vendor (Yes/trto): A-b Minority Owned: 

-
Women Owned:
Veteran Owned:

18

Item 7.



REPUBLIC
MISSOURI

City of Republic - Invitation for Bid
IFB 23-009 - BUILDS Department Equipment Rental through 2024

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALTY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 2:00 P.M. on Fridav, June

23,2023. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place.

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS

City of Republic
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main Avenue
Republic, MO 65738

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized
to legally bind the Bidder.

o Bids shall be submitted with the lnvitation for Bid ("lFB") project name or item clearly indicated

on the outside of the mailing envelope.
r Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected.
o The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award

resulting from this lnvitation for Bid.

o FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

o You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.

Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts.

o Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on July 18th, 2023. Notice of acceptance shall follow
immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council.

. Bidders may submit for N/A for certain equipment they do not choose to bid on.

. City intends to award all responsive bidders for each piece of equipment to be added to our list

of approved rental equipment suppliers.

DESCRIPTION

The City of Republic's BUILDS department is requesting sealed competitive bids on rental prices

for the following equipment to be used on various projects within the City for the remainder of

ZO23 and through December 3L't,2024. Below is a list of equipment requiring monthly pricing.

Please price comparable equipment to each item.

Equipment on/size Attachments Comparable

Mid-Size Excavator 20-30 ton Plumed for Breaker Komatsu 240, Cal32O

La Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker Komatsu 310, Cat 400

Nrlid-size Dozer 30,000 to 3 LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible Cat D4, Komatsu D51

Larger Dozer 45,000 to 50,000 LBS

Rear Ripper/ GPS

CO ble Cat D6, Komatsu D65

19

Item 7.



Rubber Tracked Skid Steer 10,000-1-2,000 lbs

High and low flow hook
& uick chan bucket

Case 450, lohn Deere 333,
Cat 299U

Roller 84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211

Roller 84" Single Drum Soil Drum (Sheep's foot) Komatsu BW 211

Dump Truck (off Road) Off Road/ 20 to 25 yd 20 to25 yd Dump Komatsu HD465, JBCll4

Dump Truck (Road) yd single axle 7 yd dump
MACK MD, Peterbilt 536,

lnternational l!4V

Dump Truck (Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump
MACK Granite, Peterbilt
548, lnternational HV

Motor Grader Articulated blade
Case 856c, Komatsu

GD655-6

Large Wheel Loader 28,000 to 35,000 LBS 3.O - 4.2 cu. Yd Bucket
Case721G, Komatsu WA

320-8

Large Track Loader 42,00O to 45,000 LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket Cat 963, 755K John Deere

Small Rock Breaker 4to6ton Case CH-4M, HK 45

Larger Rock Breaker V1800 20 - 35 ton
Tra mac VL800, Monta bert

v1800

Grade ControlGPS Unit Top Con Base/Rover Trimble, ASM, iDig

Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls
John Deere 31-051, Case

590 Super N

Earth Scraper 15yd-24yd Motor or Pulled Cat627K, John Deere 8628

Tractor w/boom mower 5ft head, 12ft reach Diamond mower

lnquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to
Eric Brown
Operations Director
BUILDS Department, City of Republic

Ebrown @republicmo.com
(417) 827-7262

I mportant Notice Regarding Com petitive Bidding:

It is the City's intent and desire that this lnvitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent

any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this lnvitation for Bid result in the

elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such

restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. ln the event such error

is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error,

in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City

will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the lnvitation for Bid once corrected.

20

Item 7.



01

03.

04

05

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this lnvitation for Bid ("lFB") will be opened at Republic City
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 2:00 P.M. on Friday, June 23, 2023. AII Bidders (individually, "Bidder";
collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening of the
B ids.

IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. lt
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or
before the due date and time indicated.

a. lf a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall.

b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected.
c. Arrangements may be made for their retu rn at the Bidder's request a nd expense.
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and required information

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time.
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted.

City of Republic
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main
Republic MO 65738

Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual).

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance

page.

b. Thesignershall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid.

c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award.

Corrections: No erasures are permitted.

a. ln the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following

formatting must be applied:
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and

2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and

3. The signer(s) ofthe Bid must initial all corrections.

Clarification and Addenda: Biddersare expected to exa mine all documents attached to and/or provided bythe

City with this lFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this lFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable

inquiries of the city to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents.

a, Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information

pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed city contact in writing (email is permitted)

b. The city of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by

any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the city'

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or

additional information can be given

d. lt shall be the responsibility oieach Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the

listed City contact.

02.

Sealed and Marked: lf sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly
marked on the outside ofthe package with the IFB proiect name clearly indicated on the outside ofthe mailing
envelope and addressed to:

21

Item 7.



06.

o7.

08

09.

10

1,1,.

12

IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this lFB.

Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that,
if awarded the contract under this lFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other
documents required under this lFB, and will fu rnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same.

The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety
compa ny authorized by the Director of the M issouri Department of lnsurance and Commerce to conduct
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and
made payable to the City of Republic.

a

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this lFB.

The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids.

d. TheCityshall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either:
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance,
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have
been rejected, whichever occurs first.

lrrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the lFB. Any
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90)
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the lFB, until one or more of the Bids have been
duly accepted by the city.

Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shallsubmit a Bid which conforms in
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the lFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance,

experience, integrity, reliability, capaclty, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith
performance, The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest 8id to sell goods or
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made.

Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the
determination ofthe Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be

limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past

performance records.

The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support

charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records coverinB charges pertinent tothe purchase,

and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found.

a. TheCityshall havethe rightto auditthe Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of

three (3) years after final payment.

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City'

Applicable [aw: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the CitV including the City

procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order

entered into unJer the terms of this tFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance

with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures'

Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations'

C

13.

22

Item 7.



14

15

t6.

I7

a. Protestors shall seek resolution oftheir complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent.
b- Anyprotestshall statethe basis upon which thesolicitation oraward is contested and shall besubmitted

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected
to know of the facts giving rise thereto.

Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this lFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified
from submitting any future Bids.

Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspjred with any other Bidder or parties to this lFB, to
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that:

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation,
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor.

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other
Bidder or to any competitor.

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this
lFB. No person or agency has been employed or reta ined to solicit or secure the contract awa rded under
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser

for the purpose of doing business.

Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on

forms either supplied by or approved by the City.

Liability and lndemnity:
a. ln no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton

misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the

terms of this lFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or

received by the city under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this lFB.

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed

officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including

attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or

related in any way whatsoever to (1) any aSreement or contract awarded under this lFB, or (2) the work

performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder {the successful Bidder

expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not

limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages'

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime

compenSationdueanyemployeesinrenderingservicespUrSuanttothisagreementoranysubcontract,
includingpaymentofreasonableattorneys,feesandcostsinthedefenseofanyclaimmadeUnderthe
Fair Labor standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing wage Law or any other federal or state law'

IFB Forms, variances, and Alternates: BidSmustbesubmittedontheformsattachedtothistFBasprovidedby

theCity;however,additionalinto.'"tionmaybeattachedBiddersmustindicateanvvariancesfromtheCitv
18.

23

Item 7.



19

21,

22

23

24

25

requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders

must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent.

Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response.
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made.
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents.

No Bid: lf not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided.

Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and

specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and

regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. ln case an

error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern.

Prices:
a.

Bids must include both unit price and extended total.
Pric€ must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications- ln case of discrepancyin
computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern.

All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB,

as used in this lFB, shall mean that the successful Eidder, at their own expense, shall transport the
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified

location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered
and accepted by City at the address specified within the city of Republic.

Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other
item or ilems.
lf a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified.

Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified.

Pre-payment terms are not acceptable.

Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a

reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the

City's determination of award(s).

Descriptive lnformation: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby

this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only.

b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated'

Deviations to specifications and Requirements: when Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied

with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the

detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data' and experience records'

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may

be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains'

b.AlldeviationsfromttrespecificationsmustbenotedindetailbytheBidderontheAffidavitofcompliance

C

d

e

t.

26

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email
will not be considered.

b.

24

Item 7.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid.

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly
accountable to the specifications as written.

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection
ofthe material and/or equipment when delivered.

27 Quality Guaranty: lf any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. ln the
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph.

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages.

)9. Tax-Exempt:The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: MissouriTax lD Number 12492990

30 Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the
Bidder, and all other relevant factors.

a. Unless otherwise stated in the lFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment.

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non-
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received.

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidde(s) by virtue of submitting the name and

specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By

virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidde(s) is legally

authorized to submit and the successful Bidde(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents.

Regulations: lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State

of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply.

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by

Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program

with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with

the contracted services.

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the

requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors

perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (10)hour

courseinconstructionsafetyandhealthapprovedbytheoccupationalsafetyandHealth
Administration ("osHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor

and lndustrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The

traininSmustbecompletedwithinsixty(60)daysofthedateworkontheProjectcommences.
on-siteempIoyeesfoundontheworksiteWithoUtdocUmentationoftherequiredtrainingshall
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation'

c.Pursuanttosection2g2.6T5RsMo.,thesuccessfulBiddershallforfeittothecityasapenalty
two thousand five hundred dollars (S2,5oo.oo), ptus one hundred dollars (S100.00) for each on-

siteemployeeemployedbyit,oranycontractorsorsubcontractorshiredbyit'foreach
calendar day, or porti;n theieof' Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction

32.

25

Item 7.



safetv training required in the above paragraph.

d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid

33.TerminationofAward:AnyfailureoftheBiddertosatisfytherequirementsoftheCityshall bereason
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City.

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or
processes in conjunction with the equipment beingfurnished. Biddershall defendallsuitsorclaimsfor
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and

attorney's fees incurred.

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The CitV of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title
Vl of the Civil Ri8hts Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) a nd the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15

CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national orlgin in determining the
successful Bidder for award.

36. lnsurance Requirements: ForthedurationofanycontractawardedunderthislFB,(which,forprojects
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects

involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City),

the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of
loss in connection with the Project, as defined morefullybelow. The Successful Bidderwill berequired
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless

otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the
City at the City's sole discretion-

Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers

compensation lnsurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in

connection with a contract awarded under this lFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will

sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to
provide similar Workers Compensation lnsurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless

such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation

coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of 5500,000 each

employee and S500,000 each accident.

a

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General

Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death,

and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract

awarded under this lFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than s2,000,000 each occurrence

and S1,000,000 each Person.

c.CommercialAutomobileLlabitity(oppliesonlytoprojectsinvolvingthesuccessJulBidder,s
opelotionolvehiclesinperformingtheworkowdrdedunderthislFB)iTheSuccessfulBidder
shall maintain commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than s2,000,000 each

occurrence and S1,O0O,OO0 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis

performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond loppties only to prciects involving labor):

Pursuant to sectio n lOT .TTO, RsMo , if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed 550'000 00'

thesuccessfulBiddershallexecuteaPerformanceandMaintenanceBondandaLaborandMaterials
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City' each bond shall be

intheamountofthetotalprojectcost,conditioneduponthefullandfaithfulperformanceofallmajor

31

26

Item 7.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with thls lFB, the successful Bidder shall
procure and maintain:

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo.

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient
employer financial assurance Iaw, unless exem pt pu rsua nt to the provisions of Section 285.230,
RSMo.

39. BidTabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the lFB.

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item
from the Bid, or u pon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based
upon availa bility of funds.

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this lFB, the Bidder
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form.

42. Order of Precedence: Anyandall Special/General Conditionsand Specifications attached hereto, which
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence.

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: Thesuccessful Bidder represents, in accordancewith Section 285.530.2,
RSN/o., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this lFB, knowingly employ, or
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien.

44. lnspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable

opportunity to inspect the item(s).
a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warrantv of

the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be

returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for
full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

b. lf, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial

inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or

entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual

remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or

contract awarded under this lFB.

45 Davis-Bacon Act: lf the lnstructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or

in part, from Federal funds, then alt work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB

shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the

Davis-Bacon Act,40 U.S.C. 53141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated

into this any agreement orcontract awarded underthis lFB.. Where the Missouri PrevailingWage Law

andtheDavis.BaconActreqUirepaymentofdifferentwagesforworkperformedpursuanttoany
contract awarded under this lFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by

the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under

either law.

27

Item 7.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this
lFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri.
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAI UNDER ANY APPI-ICABLE STATUTE,

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION.

47. Conflict of lnterest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's

terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member
of the City Council or N/ayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall
not be violated.

48. Sovereign lmmunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state
constitutions, states, and/or laws.

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. lt
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all

aspects ofthis bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as

public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request.

28

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Item Description of Work Price

Base Bid

a rental prices for various equipment to be used on various
projects within the City for the remainder of 2023 and

through December 37st, 2024.

All Bids to include:

o Travel Expenses

o Delivery Costs

o Administrative costs

a

Please note any of the following:
. Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic

for this project.
. Any other requests or responsibilities of the City

of Republic for this project.

S Fill out table next paee

ln compliance with this lnvitation for Bid and to allterms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein.

lular:

ile:

Ol-+l-

ephone: */z S)t oooo
'{ tz €tq O-tLl

Je6t)

City of Republic, Missouri

IFB for: r Rental prices for various
equipment to be used on various projects within
the City for the remainder of 2023 and through
December 3Lst,2024,

213 N Main Street

Republic, MO 65738

Company Legal Narpe:

HaaAot 0[lalt*e,tq

Address:
W. Llver L4-

and Title:
erQ- I

C-*-' l> - A>
r's FederallD Number: 10 *O?Z& fl t

29

Item 7.



Equipment Description/Size Attachments Comparable Monthly Price Make & Model

Mid-Size
Excavator 20-30 ton Plumed for Breaker

Komatsu 24O, Cal
320 CQ-?I oo' A,o

Large Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker
Komatsu 310, Cat

400 1.\ , 3oo
Mid-size Dozer

30,000 to 35,000
LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible
Cat D4, Komatsu

D51 7,5fro, Df I - 0&.u

Larger Dozer
45,000 to 50,000

LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible
Cat D6, Komatsu

D65 c7, roo- pcf Oc,s-

Rubber Tracked
Skid Steer 10,000-12,000 lbs

High and low flow
hook ups & quick

change bucket
Case 450, John

Deere 333, Cat 299 ?t0oc) ' -tLtZ
Roller 84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211 *{oo. ftR ilO
Roller 84" Single Drum

Soil Drum (Sheep's

foot) Komatsu BW 211 'tp0- *Rt(o
Dump Truck (off
Road)

Off Road/ 20 to 25

yd 20to25 yd Dump
Komatsu HD465, JBC

774 lq.{0 0 - BA5_

Dump Truck
(Road) single axle 7 yd dump

IVIACK MD, Peterbilt
536, lnternational

MV M,t
Dump Truck
(Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump

MACK Granite,
Peterbilt 548,

lnternational HV NT
Motor Grader Articulated blade

Case 856c, Komatsu

GD655-6 f.ooo, 77A cP
Large Wheel
Loader

28,000 to 35,000
LBS

3.0 - 4.2 cu. Yd

Bucket

Case721.G, Komatsu

wA 320-8 5,000 . zs"h+a
Large Track

Loader

42,OOO to 45,000

LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket

Cat 963, 755K John

Deere / 0,52o. ?b3
Small Rock

Breaker 4to6ton Case CH-4M, HK 45 3t (ce 0. Lt+ZtJ
Larger Rock

Brea ker V1800 20 - 35 ton
Tramac V1800,

Montabert V1800 &.'{2il c-Q. t ct d
Grade Control
GPS Unit

Top Con

Base/Rover Trimble, ASM, iDig tvh
Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls

John Deere 31051,

Case 590 Super N Wr+

Earth Scraper 15yd-24yd Motor or Pulled

Cat 627K, John

Deere 8628 N&
Tractor w/boom
mower

5ft head, l-2ft
reach Diamond mower /v //-

30

Item 7.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1,2009,

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28,2009

Effective Januarv 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work
within the state of Missouri."

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.9., the city of Republicl to a business entity (e.q.,

potential bidders in response tothis lFBl, the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the
employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services.

See S 285.530(2), RSMo.

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods

only. lf a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of
the solicitation is over S5,000.

31

Item 7.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009 the company (submitting a

Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an
acceptable, notarized affidavit stating as follows

that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection
with the contracted services.

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et
seq.

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the afFidavit can also
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address:

https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCentern /ieW77lAffidavit-otCompliance-with-Section-285500-RSIVO-

a

PDF?bidtd=

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled

and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization

program. lnformation regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.qov/e-verifu or by calling 888-464-4218.

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencinq current enrollment in a federal work
authorization program (e.9. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding
(MOU). See attached sample.

32

Item 7.



STATE OF IVISSOURI

COUNTY OF GREENE

Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq.

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00

Effective 1/1/2009

that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and
that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in
connection with the contracted services.

SS

one
this

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in a
rsonally appeared

nd for the
]16{),.\

n^ , State of
(trtanre) wtro is&l\S-d,.

(Titlel ot (Name of company), a (circle
partnership, sole propri rship, limited liabil company, and is compelent and authorized to make

a ,a

(1)

(2\

Documentalion of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit.

Signature

5as0.L MtL..-
Printed Name

Notary Pu

My commission expires

1,20,23

I

ty
tl

of

)

)

)

being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows:

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seg.

Subscribed and sworn to before me tnis l3h duy of_\rn4-, fuil5

33

Item 7.



Company lD Number: XXXXXX

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland
Security), and the Employer.

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enler into this Memorandum of
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively.

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. lf you have
any questions, contact E-Veriry Operations at 888464-4218.

Emolover. Your Company Namee ) z-)e\JJ\ P \

')

')

l'li J
John Doe
Name (Please type or print)

Electronicallv Sioned /' ,V

')

:2'{t\51$

Title

Verification

JJ\

tJ 9J\\

D;6

9I
9 U9

,?

9

ll\(
USCIS Verification Division
Name (Please type or prinl)

Signature

t

'.. I $ ')
T

U
)

09
J\I\

1

) "r5rs',-
-t\)?\

34

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH !NVITATION FOR BID

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB

E*.DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements.

_We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows:

cleo T7,lz- <\ I D( e42 Uyd4;
-t'Ur-col Ca-f < tsc- ,1- ?

I have carefully examined the lnvitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and

conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein.

Company Name
ADDENDA

By Sisoz ts ilz:- Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum:

(Authorized Person's Signature)

Com Addendum No

Addendum No

Telephone Number 1/7 6/s 3fd( Addendum No._

Addendum No._

Email
(o

FederalTax lD No -o ?a{/ |
DBE Vendor (Yes/No): n O Minority Owned:

Women Owned:

Veteran Owned:

Fax Number

Date

35

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL" / "NO BlD"

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECTINES TO DO SO.

wE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLTNED TO BtD ON YOUR tFB FOR THE FOLLOWTNG REASON(S):

SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER

oNLY(PLEASE EXPLATN tN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW)

NSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.

OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM

UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS.

UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.

PECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW).

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE ,,REMARKS" 
SECTION BELOW)

REMARKS

COMPANY NAME:

ADDRESS:

TITLE:

SIGNATURE

TELEPHONE NUMBER

DATE:

36

Item 7.



EXEHPTION FROM HISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES

I ssued to l

CITY OF REPUBLIC
2I5 N I'IAIN
REPUBL IC I'IO 6573A

Your application for sales/use tax exempt
pel.suant to section 144.030. 1, RSi'lo. This
docunentation of your exempt status.

I'lissouri Tax ID
Number | 1249?99O

Effective Date:
07 / ll /?oo?

status has
1et ter is

been approved
issu € d as

Ietter, please
o. Box 5500,

Purchases by your Agency are not subj ect to sales or use tax
if wlthin the conduct of your Agencyrs exempt functions
and activities. l,Ihen purchasing with this exemption ' furnish
al.1 salle r s or vendors a copy of this letter. This exemption
may not be used by individuals making personal purchases.

A contractor mav purchase and pay for construction materials exempt
from sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agencv onlv
if your Agency issues a pnoject exemption certificate and the
contractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions
of section 1q4,062, RSI'lo.

sates by your Agency are subject to all applicable state and
Local sales taxes. If you engage in the business of selling
tangible personal property or taxable services at retail, you
must obtain a Hissouri Retail SaLes Tax License and collect and
remit sal.es tax.

This is a continuins exemption subiect to legislative changes
and review by the Director of Revenue. If your Agency ceases
to quarify as an exeopt entitv, this exemption will cease to be
valid, This exemption is not assignable or transferable. It
is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not an
exemption from reaL or personal pnoperty tax.

Any alteration to this exemption Ietter renders it invalid.

If you have anv questions regarding the use of this
contact the Dlvision of Taxation and collectlon, P.
Jeffenson clty, Mo 65t05-3300, phone 573-751-?836,

State sf Six*r.url

37

Item 7.



MISSOURI PROIECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Deparlment of

Revenue)

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE
Name: City of Republic, Missouri
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue
City I Statel Zip : Republic, Mi ssouri 6 57 3 8

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990
Contract Date:
Contract

Letter Effective Date:
Certifi cate Expiration Date
Revised Expiration Date:

Project Description: Republic Rental Equipment

Project Location: Various

Project Completion Date: December 3 l. 2024

Auth.
Date:

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal

propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to

Section 144.62, RSMo.

PIJRCH ASING CONTRAC'I'OR OR SI.]BCONTRACTOR

Name:

Address

CitylStatelZip:

INSTRUCTIONS

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be fuinished
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is
the exernpt entity's responsibility to ensure the validify of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised

Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date.

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor
or subcontmctor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the

purchaser for a period offive years.

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption ceftificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases

oftangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases

must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above.

#-

38

Item 7.



REPUBLIC
OUI

City of Republic - lnvitation for Bid
IFB 23-009 - BUILDS Department Equipment Rental through 2024

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS:

City of Republic
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridte
213 N. Main Avenue
Republic, MO 55738

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized
to legally bind the Bidder.

o Bids shall be submitted with the lnvitation for Bid ("lFB") proiect name or item clearly indicated
on the outside of the mailing envelope.

. Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected.

. The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award
resulting from this lnvitation for Bid.

. FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

. You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.
Please submit your prices/fees net of alldiscounts.

. Bids will be taken to City Cou ncilfor approvalon July 18th, 2023. Notice of acceptance shall follow
immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council.

r Bidders may submit for N/A for certain equipment they do not choose to bid on.
. City intends to award all responsive bidders for each piece of equipment to be added to our list

of approved rental equipment suppliers.

DESCRIPTION:

The City of Republic's BUILDS department is requesting sealed competitive bids on rental prices

for the following equipment to be used on various projects within the City for the remainder of
2023 and through Decembet 3l't,2024. Below is a list of equipment requiring monthly pricing.

Please price comparable equipment to each item.

Equipment Description/Size Attachments Comparable

M id-Size Excavator 20-30 ton Plu med for Breaker

Large Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker Komatsu 310, Cat 400

M id-size Dozer 30,000 to 35,000 LBS

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible Cat D4, Komatsu O51

Larger Dozer 45,000 to 50,000 LBS

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible Cat D6, Komatsu D65

M

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICATLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CIW HALL PRIOR TO 2:OO P.M. on Fridav, June
21,2023. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place.

Komatsu 240, Cat 320

39

Item 7.



High and low flow hook Case 450, John Deere 333,
Cat 299Ru bber Tracked Skid Steer 10,000-12,000 lbs u & uick cha e bucket

lnquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to:
Eric Brown
Operations Director
BUILDS Department, City of Republic

re ublicmo.com

l4L7l 827 -7262

lmportant Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding:

It is the City's intent and desire that this lnvitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. Totheextent
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this lnvitation for Bid result in the
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such
rest riction/lim itatio n is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentionalerror. ln the event such error
is discovered by any potentia I Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error,
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the lnvitation for Bid once corrected.

Roller 84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211

84" Single Drum Soil Drum (Sheep's foot) Komatsu BW 211

Dump Truck (off Road ) Off Road/ 20 to 25 yd 20 to25 yd Dump Komatsu HD465, JBC 714

Dump Truck (Road) yd single axle 7 yd dump
MACK MD, Peterbilt 536,

lnternational MV

Dump Truck (Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump
MACK Granite, Peterbilt

548, lnternational HV

Motor Grader Articulated blade
Case 856c, Komatsu

GD655-6

Large Wheel Loader 28,000 to 35,000 LBS 3.0 - 4.2 cu. Yd Bucket
Case 721G, Komatsu WA

320-8

La rge Track Loader 42,000 to 45,000 LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket Cat 963, 755K John Deere

Small Rock Breaker 4to6ton Case CH-4M, HK 45

Larger Rock Breaker
Tramac V1800, Montabert

v1800

Grade Control GPS Unit Top Con Base/Rover Trimble, ASM, iDig

Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls
John Deere 31051, Case

590 Su per N

Earth Scraper 15yd-24yd Motor or Pu lled Cat 627K, John Deere 8528

Tractor w/boom mower 5ft head, 12ft reach Diamond mower

Roller

V1800 20 - 35 ton

40

Item 7.



01.

02.

03

04

05.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Openint Location: Bids submitted in response to this lnvitation for Bid ("lFB") will be opened at Republic City
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 2:00 P.M. on Friday, June 23,2023, All Bidders (individua lly, "Bidder";
collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening of the
Bids.

IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. lt
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or
before the due date and time indicated.

a. lf a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall.

b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected.
c. Arrangements may be made for their retu rn at the Bidder's request a nd expense.
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and requiredinformation

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time.
e. Bids sent by emailwill not be accepted.

Sealed and Marked: lf sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB proiect name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing
envelope and addressed to:

Clty of Republic
C/O City Clerlg Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main
Republic MO 65738

Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual).

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance
pa8e.

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid.

c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award.

Corrections: No erasures are permitted.
a. ln the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following

formatting must be a pplied:

1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and

2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and

3. The signer(s) ofthe Bid must initial all corrections.

Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to exam ine alldocuments attached toand/or provided bythe

City with this lFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this lFB, make a ny necessary and/or reasonable

inquiries of the City to ensu re all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents.

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information

pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted).

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by

any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City'

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or

additional information can be given.

d. lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the

listed City contact.

41

Item 7.



06.

07.

09

10.

IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this lFB.

Bid Security: All Bids m ust be accom pa n ied by a Bid Secu rity, wh ich sha ll co nstitute the Bidder's gua ra ntee that,
if awarded the contract under this lFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other
documents required under this lFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same.

The Bid Security shall conslst of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety
company authorized by the Director of the M issou ri Depa rtment of lnsu rance and Commerce to conduct
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and
made payable to the City of Republic.

a

b. Bidssubmitted withoutthe required Bid Securitywill not be considered for award under this IFB

The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids.

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security ofthe three apparent lowest Bidders until either:
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance,
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have

been rejected, whichever occurs first.

lrrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the lFB. Any

Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90)

days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the lFB, until one or more of the Bids have been

duly accepted by the City.

Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in

all material respects to the requirements set forth in the lFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have

the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance,

experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure Bood faith
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made.

Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the
determination ofthe Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past
performance records.

The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase,
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found.

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of
three (3) years after final payment.

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City.

Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order
entered into under the terms of this lFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance
with the Procurement Regulations and procedures.

C

11

72

Ritht to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the city procurement Regulations.

08.

13.

42

Item 7.



1,4

15

a. Protestors shallseek resolution oftheir complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent.
b. Any protest shall statethe basis uponwhichthe solicitation or award is contested and shall besubmitted

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or cou ld have reasonably been expected
to know of the facts giving rise thereto.

Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this lFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be

disqualified from fu rnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified
from submitting any future Bids.

Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other
Bidde(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this lFB, to
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that:

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation,
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor.

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other
Bidder or to any competitor.

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this
lFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secu re the contract awa rded u nder
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser

for the purpose of doing business.

Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on
forms either supplied by or approved by the city.

Liability and lndemnity:
a. ln no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton

misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the

terms of this lFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this lFB.

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed

officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including

attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or

related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this lFB, or (2) the work

performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder

expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not

limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages.

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the city harmless from all wages or overtime

compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract,

including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the

FairLaborStandardsAct,theMissouriPrevailinsWageLaworanyotherfederalorstatelaw.

IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: BidsmustbesubmittedontheformsattachedtothislFBasprovidedby

the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any Variances from the city18.

16.

77.

43

Item 7.



2t

24

25.

requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent.

Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response.
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project.
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made.

c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents.

Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and

subm itted on the same form and ma nner as the original Bid. Modifications su bmitted by telephone, fax, or email
will not be considered.

No Bid: lf not submitting a Bid, respond by returninB the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided.

Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and

specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and

regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. ln case an

error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern.

Bids must include both unit price and extended total.
Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. ln case of discrepancy in

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern.

All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in specialconditions). FoB,

as used in this lFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified

location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic.

Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other
item or items.
lf a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified.
Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified.
Pre-payment terms are not acceptable.

Prices:
a.

b

C

d

e

f.

Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a

reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the
City's determination of award(s).

Descriptive lnformation: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended.

a. Brand ortrade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only.
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated.

Deviations to specifications and Requirements: when Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records.

a. Failure of any Bidder to fu rnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equ ivalent, may
be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains.

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance

26.

20.

19.

?3.

44

Item 7.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid.

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly
accountable to the specifications as written.

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection
of the material and/or equipment when delivered.

21

28 Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials il in its judgment, the item reflects
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages.

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax lD Number 12492990.

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the
Bidder, and all other relevant factors.

a. Unless otherwise stated in the lFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment.

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non-
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received.

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and

specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By

virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidde(s) is legally
authorized to submit and the successful Bidde(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents.

32 Regulations: lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State

of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply.

a. E-VER|FY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by

Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federalwork authorization program

with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with
the contracted services.

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the

requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors

perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (10)hour

course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health

Administrafion ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor

and lndustrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved osHA program. The

trainingmustbecompletedwithinsi)dy(60)daysofthedateworkontheProjectcommences.
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall

have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation'

c. pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the city as a penalty

two thousand five hundred dollars (s2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars (5100.00) for each on-

siteemployeeemployedbyit,oranycontractorsorsubcontractorshiredbyit,foreach
calendarday,orportionthereof,Suchon-siteemployeeisemployedwithouttheconstruction

Quality Guaranty: lf any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. ln the
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be

responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph.

45

Item 7.



safety training required in the above paragraph.

d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid

33. Termination of Award: Any failu re of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City.

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall payall royalties and lice nse fees for equ ipment or
processesinconjunctionwiththeequipmentbeingfurnished. Biddershall defend allsuits or claims for
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and
attorney's fees incurred.

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title
Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15

CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority
businesses, wlll be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the
successful Bidder for award.

36. lnsurance Requirements: Forthe duration of a ny contract awa rded underthis lFB, (which, for projects
including any labor, means u ntil the work is com pleted and accepted by the City; and which, for projects
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City),
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of
loss in connection with the Project, asdefined morefullybelow. The Successful Bidderwill be required
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below maybe modified orwaived bythe
City at the City's sole discretion.

Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers
Compensation lnsurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in
connection with a contract awarded under this lFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to
provide similar Workers Compensation lnsurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of 5500,000 each
employee and $500,000 each accident.

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death,
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract
awarded under this lFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than 52,000,000 each occurrence
and S 1,000,000 each person.

Commercial Automobile Liability (appries only to projects involving the Successlul Bidde/s
operdtion oI vehicles in pertorming the work awarded under this IFB\: The Successful Bidder
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than S2,0OO,OO0 each
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto,, on an occurrence basis.

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (opplies only to projects involving labor):
Pursuant to sedion 707 .17o, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed sso,ooo.oo,
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the city and on forms approved by the city, each bond shal be
in the amount ofthe total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance ofall major

a

c

46

Item 7.



terms and conditions ofthe IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-residentfforeign
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this lFB, the successful Bidder shall
procure and maintain:

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of
State, u nless exem pt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo.

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient
employer financial assura nce law, unless exem pt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230,
RSMo.

39. BidTabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the lFB.

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantlty, retract any item
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based
upon availa bility of funds.

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this lFB, the Bidder
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form.

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditionsand Specifications attached hereto, which
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence.

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successfu I Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2,
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this lFB, knowingly employ, or
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien.

44. lnspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable

opportunity to inspect the item(s).
a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of

the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be

returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for
full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

b. lf, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or

entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual

remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or

contract awarded under this lFB.

45. Davis-Bacon Act: lf t he lnstructions to Bidders have ind icated that the P ro.iect is fina nced, in w hote or

in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB

shall be subiect to all applicable federal statutes, rulesand regulations, including provisions of the

Davis-Bacon Act,40 U.5.C.53141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor standards Provisions," incorporated

intothisanyagreementorcontractawardedunderthislFB.. Wherethe Missouri PrevailingWage Law

and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any

contract awarded under this lFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by

the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under

either law.

47

Item 7.



47. Conflict of lnterest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's

terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall
not be violated.

48. Sovereitn lmmunity: ln no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard

to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state
constitutions, states, and/or laws.

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. lt
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all

aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive
any defectsas to form or content ofthe Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as

public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request.

46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this
lFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri.
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE,

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION.

48

Item 7.



Equipment Description/Size Attachments Comparable Monthly Price Make & Model

Mid-Size
Excavator 20-30 ton Plumed for Breaker

Komatsu 24O, Cat
320

#fi*os 54NY 5tl215

Large Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker
Komatsu 310, Cat

400 4gsP 5|t.t{ 513b5

Mid-size Dozer
30,000 to 35,000

LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible
Cat D4, Komatsu

D51

Larger Dozer
45,000 to 50,000

LBS.

Rear Ripper/ GPS

compatible
Cat D6, Komatsu

D55

Rubber Tracked

Skid Steer 10,000-12,000 lbs

High and low flow
hook ups & quick

change bucket
Case 450, John

Deere 333, Cat 299

84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211 4s5ooe SA,i${ g>P.llP

Roller 84" Single Drum
Soil Drum (Sheep's

foot) Komatsu BW 211
d55oos

9f,Nq gvo
Dump Truck (off
Road)

Off Road/ 20 to 25

yd 20to25 yd Dump
Komatsu HD465, JBC

71.4
dll,b** fuwKRPrAo

Dump Truck
(Road) single axle 7 yd dump

MACK MD, PEIErbiIt
536,lnternational

MV

Dump Truck
(Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump

MACK Granite,
Peterbilt 548,

lnternational HV

Motor Grader Articulated blade
Case 855c, Komatsu

GD655-6
6 7 ooo* - SApg

5nA Zoo
Large Wheel
Loader

28,000 to 35,000
LBS

3.0 - 4.2 cu. Yd

Bucket
Case 721G, Komatsu

wA 320-8
4bsoo* ,ANq *t4o5

Large Track

Loader

42,000 to 45,000
LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket

Cat 963, 755K John
Deere

Small Rock

Breaker 4to6ton Case CH-4M, HK 45

Larger Rock

Breaker V1800 20 - 35 ton
Tramac V1800,

Montabert V1800
fr bsa* Spoifttl *.\?P

Grade Control
GPS Unit

Top Con

Base/Rover Trimble, ASM, iDig

Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls
John Deere 31051,

Case 590 Super N

Earth Scraper 15yd-24yd Motor or Pulled
Cat 627K, John

Deere 852B

Tractor w/boom
mower

5ft head, 12ft
reach Diamond mower

Roller

49

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A . BID SUBMISSION FORM

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOTLOWING INFORMATION:

Item Description of Work Price

Base Bid

rental prices for various equipment to be used on various
proiects within the City for the remainder of 2023 and

through December 3Lsl, 2024.

All Bids to include:

o Travel Expenses

o Delivery Costs

o Administrative costs

Please note any of the following:
. Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic

for this project.
. Any other requests or responsibilities of the city

of Republic for this prolect.

S Fill out t

ln compliance with this lnvitation for Bid and to allterms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby

incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein.

city o, Republic, Missouri

lFBfor: o Rental prices for various
equipment to be used on various projects within
the City for the remainder of 2023 and through
December 31st, 2024.

213 N Main Street

Republic, MO 65738

comDanv Lesal Name:-a[I;]+;,h; 
* €q a pn,,t?

Telephone:

Cellular:

4n-zzz- 7%g

fiz €Oq- ool/
Facsimile:

E-mail: rdtaffrG dtr, com

Address:
b31o trs bo

Sitnatu

Name and Title:
Rqe"DnQcn $rant{ lflanqcrr

b 2 23

r's Federaf rD Num A"r, *17023,@,5

50

Item 7.



STATE OF I\,4ISSOURI

COUNTY OF GREENE

Affidavit ot Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq.
for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00

Effective 1/'l12009

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public , in and for the Co
personally appsTE B

eared R G-N A

ary P ublic

lvly commission expires

NOTABY PU

SS
)
)
)

, State of
€n (Name) who is

Title\ ol tooa i irlt- (Name of company), a (circle
one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows:

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in
connection with the contracted services.

The terms used in this affldavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., ef seq

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit.

Signatu

Quo^ A )>rafiQ,r.t
Printed hJame

Subscribed and sworn to before me this )3*l
day of Joa 3

STATE
SIONED FOB C

0F t\4t
c0rv /ts
MY COIV Il/1ISSION EXPI

H

R

SEAL

COUNTY
25,2025

7

o6/as / aoes

51

Item 7.



Company lD Number: XXXXXX

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland
Security), and the Employer.

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively.

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employeis Section of the signature page. lf you have
any questions, contact E-Veriry Operations at 888464-4218.

\
E0&leyel Your Company Namr )

-)
John Doe

Tifle

?
,)

\JJ\
Name (Please type or print)

Electronicallv Sioned /' ,V

-e\t))

Verification

LJSCIS Verification Division

',JJ\9

II
,?

)'{)s\ili

Datd

9J I Ull\(
Name (Please type or print)

Signature

')$It.ilrs'-U J\\

,)

9'\t
I\t\

')
) \

al'liJ

52

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAT" / "NO BrD"

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BE N G BID AND DECTINES TO DO SO.

wE, THE UNDERSTGNED, HAVE DECLTNED TO BtD ON YOUR tFB FOR THE FOLLOWTNG REASON(S):

SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TI6HT,,, I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW)

INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.

OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM.

UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS.

UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.

SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW)

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW).

REMARKS

COMPANY NAME:

ADDRESS:

TITLE:

SIGNATURE

TELEPHON E NUMBER

DATE:

53

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID

To be submitted with dll Bids in response to this IFB

We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Docu ments/Requ irements.

_We TAKE exception to the IFB Docu ments/Requirements as follows

I have carefully examined the lnvitation for Bid and agree to abide by allsubmitted pricing, delivery, terms and

conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein.

Co

By

,p"ny u.r" *ala frac.lnz t 6ou\pmcr*

2t=kt>"ett--
(Iuth oriied P#so n's Signatu re)

Company Address

Telephone Number t\l-nz-12b1
Fax Number

Date uloelu, Email

Federal Tax rD No. 4tZOtg 5

DBE Vendor (Yes/No), M0 Minority Owned: _
Women Owned: _
Veteran Owned:

T

ADDENDA

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum:

Addendum No. _

Addendum No. _

Addendum No. _

Addendum No.

54

Item 7.



fita* of. fiixxsuri
EXEHPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES

fssued to:

CITY OF REPUBLIC
2L3 N MAIN
REPUBLIC I'|0 65738

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has
persuant to sect j.on Lqq.U50,1r RSi'lo. This letter is
docunentation of your exempt status.

Hissouri Tax ID
Number: 12q92990

Effective Date:
07 /Ll/2002

been approved
issued as

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use tax
if within the conduct of your Agencvrs exempt functions
and activities. When purchasing with this exemptionr furnish
all sellers or vendors a copy of this letter. This exemption
may not be used by individuals making personal punchases.

A contractor may purchase and pay for construction materials exempt
from sales tax when ful.fil]ing a contract with your Agency only
if your Agency i.ssues a project exemption certificate and the
contractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions
of section L44,062, RSMo.

Sales by youn Agency are subject to all applicable state and
locaI sales taxes. If you engage in the business of selling
tangible pensonal property or taxable services at retail, you
must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License and collect and
remit sales tax.

This is a continuing exemption subject to legislative changes
and review by the Director of Revenue. If your Agency ceases
to qualify as an exempt entity, this exemption wilI cease to be
va1id. This exemption is not assignable or transferable. It
is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not an
exemption from real or pensonal property tax.

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid.

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letterr please
contact the Division of Taxation and Collectionr P.0. Box 5300,
Jefferson City, MO 65105-3300, phone 573-751-2856.

(0ta0l0)

55

Item 7.



MISSOURI PROIECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of

Revenue)

T.,XEMPT F',NTTTY TSSUTNG CT',RTTF'ICATF'
Name: City of Republic, Missouri
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue
City I Statel Zip: Republic, Missouri 657 38

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990
Contract Date:

Letter Effective Date:
Certifi cate Expiration Date:

Contract Revised Expiration Date:
Project Description: Republic Rental Equipment

Project Location: Various

Project Completion Date: December 31. 2024

Auth.
Date:

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction ofthe project identified herein and no other, pursuant to
Section 144-62, RSMo.

PURCHASTNG CONTRACTOR OR SURCONTRACTOR

Name:

Address

CitylStatelZip

INSTRUCTIONS

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal properfy for use in the project. It is
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date.

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall fumish a completed copy of this exemption
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the
purchaser for a period offive years.

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases
oftangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above.

56

Item 7.



NOTTCE AND TNSTRUCTTONS TO BTDDERS/VENDORS

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009,

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28,2OO9

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) ofthe Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity
or em ployer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work
within the state of Missouri."

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state le.g., the City oJ Republicl to a business entity (e.9.,

potential bidders in response tothis IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enroltment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the
employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services.

see $ 28s.s30(2), RSMo.

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods

only. lf a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of
the solicitation is over 55,000.

57

Item 7.



'1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an
acceptable, notarized affldavit, stating as follows:

that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federalwork authorization program with respect
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection
with the contracted services.

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., ef
seq.

2. Additaonally, Company must provide documentation evidencino current enrollment in a federal work
authorization program (e.9. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding
([/OU). See attached sample.

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the aftidavil can also
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address:
https://www. republicmo.com/DocumentCenterA/ieW77lAffidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-
PDFebidld=

a

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization
program. lnformation regarding E-Verify is available at htto //www. uscis.oov/e-verifv or by calling 888464-4218.

58

Item 7.



 
 

City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
IFB 23-009 – BUILDS Department Equipment Rental through 2024 

 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 2:00 P.M. on Friday, June 
23, 2023.  Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place.  
 
BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

City of Republic 
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge  
213 N. Main Avenue 
 Republic, MO 65738 

 
Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid (“IFB”) project name or item clearly indicated 
on  the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 
• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 

resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.
 Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. 

• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on July 18th, 2023.  Notice of acceptance shall  follow 
immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

• Bidders may submit for N/A for certain equipment they do not choose to bid on.  

• City intends to award all responsive bidders for each piece of equipment to be added to our list 
of approved rental equipment suppliers. 

 
DESCRIPTION: 

The City of Republic’s BUILDS department is requesting sealed competitive bids on rental prices 
for the following equipment to be used on various projects within the City for the remainder of 
2023 and through December 31st, 2024. Below is a list of equipment requiring monthly pricing. 
Please price comparable equipment to each item. 
 

Equipment Description/Size Attachments Comparable 

        

Mid-Size Excavator 20-30 ton Plumed for Breaker Komatsu 240, Cat 320 

Large Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker Komatsu 310, Cat 400 

Mid-size Dozer 30,000 to 35,000 LBS. 
Rear Ripper/ GPS 

compatible Cat D4, Komatsu D51 

Larger Dozer 45,000 to 50,000 LBS. 
Rear Ripper/ GPS 

compatible Cat D6, Komatsu D65 

59

Item 7.



Rubber Tracked Skid Steer 10,000-12,000 lbs 
High and low flow hook 

ups & quick change bucket 
Case 450, John Deere 333, 
Cat 299 

Roller 84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211 

Roller 84" Single Drum Soil Drum (Sheep's foot) Komatsu BW 211 

Dump Truck (off Road) Off Road/ 20 to 25 yd 20 to25 yd Dump Komatsu HD465, JBC 714 

Dump Truck (Road) yd single axle 7 yd dump 
MACK MD, Peterbilt 536, 

International MV 

Dump Truck (Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump  
MACK Granite, Peterbilt 

548, International HV 

Motor Grader Articulated blade   
Case 856c, Komatsu 

GD655-6 

Large Wheel Loader 28,000 to 35,000 LBS 3.0 - 4.2 cu. Yd Bucket 
Case 721G, Komatsu WA 

320-8 

Large Track Loader 42,000 to 45,000 LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket Cat 963, 755K John Deere 

Small Rock Breaker 4 to 6 ton   Case CH-4M, HK 45 

Larger Rock Breaker V1800 20 - 35 ton   
Tramac V1800, Montabert 

V1800 

Grade Control GPS Unit Top Con Base/Rover   Trimble, ASM, iDig 

Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls 
John Deere 310SL, Case 

590 Super N 

Earth Scraper 15yd-24yd Motor or Pulled Cat 627K, John Deere 862B 

Tractor w/boom mower 5ft head, 12ft reach  Diamond mower 

 
 Inquiries:  All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Eric Brown  
Operations Director 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
Ebrown@republicmo.com  
(417) 827-7262 

 
Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding:  
 

It is the City’s intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding.  To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error.   In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day.  Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 
 
 

  

60

Item 7.

mailto:Ebrown@republicmo.com


 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
01. Opening Location:  Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid (“IFB”) will be opened at Republic City 

Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 2:00 P.M. on Friday, June 23, 2023.  All Bidders (individually, “Bidder”; 
collectively, “Bidders”) and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening of the 
Bids.  

 
02. IFB Delivery Requirements:  Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered.  It 

shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder’s request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and required information 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

 
 Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 

marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

 
City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge  
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

 
03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 

Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 
a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 

page. 
b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award.  

 
04. Corrections:  No erasures are permitted. 

a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 
formatting must be applied:  

1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

 
05. Clarification and Addenda:  Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 

City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents.  

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information   
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given. 

d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 
listed City contact.  
 

61

Item 7.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 
  

07. Bid Security:  All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder’s guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

  
a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 

company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic.  
 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 
 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

 
d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either:  

(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

 
08. Irrevocable Offer:  Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB.  Any 

Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been  
duly accepted by the City. 

 
09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder:  To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 

all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB.  To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

 
10. Reserved Rights:  The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 

determination of the Bidder’s responsiveness and responsibility.  Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

 
11. The Right to Audit:  The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 

charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent to the purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder’s records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 
three (3) years after final payment. 

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 
  

12. Applicable Law:  All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB.  Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 
with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures.  
 

13. Right to Protest:   Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 
62

Item 7.



a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 
 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 
 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB.  No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an  agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 
 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 
 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City’s gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB.  

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

 
18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates:  Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by 

the City; however,  additional information may be attached.  Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 
63

Item 7.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance.  Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

 
19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 

a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words “no Bid” in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

 
20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if  the 

modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 
 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the “Statement of No Bid” no later than the stated Bid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

 
22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 

specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder’s own risk.  Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shall govern. 

 
23. Prices:  Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 

a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications.  In case of discrepancy in 
computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 

b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions).  FOB, 
as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder’s location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

 
24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 

reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately.  The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City’s determination of award(s). 

 
25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered by 

this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 
a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an “or equal” is expressly stated. 
 
26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an “or equal,” Bids must be accompanied 

with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material or equipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 
be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 
64

Item 7.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 
 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same.  In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City’s attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph.   
 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

 
29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 
 
30. Bid Awards:  Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 

requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices.  However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of   
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non-
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received.   

 
31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 

specifications of a manufacturer’s product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer’s product.  By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

 
32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 

of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 
a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 

Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (10)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (“OSHA”) or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-site employees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on-
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee is employed without the construction 

65

Item 7.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

 
33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 

for termination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 
 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished.  Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney’s fees incurred. 

 
35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR, Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

 

36. Insurance Requirements:  For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below.   The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City.  The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City’s sole discretion. 

 
a. Workers’ Compensation:  The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 

Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor’s employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder’s coverage.  Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 
 

b. Commercial General Liability:   The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

 
c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder’s 

operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB):    The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for “any auto” on an occurrence basis. 

 
37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor):  

Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a  Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City,  each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

66

Item 7.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 
 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors:  To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

 
39. Bid Tabulation:  Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 
 
40. Budgetary Constraints:  The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 

from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

 
41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies:  By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 

authorizes other public agencies to “Piggy-Back” or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

 
42. Order of Precedence:  Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 

varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 
 
43. Affidavit for Service Contracts:  The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 

RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

 
44. Inspection and Acceptance:  No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 

awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City’s return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 
contract awarded under this IFB. 
 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in  part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the “Federal Labor Standards Provisions,” incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB..  Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the  Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 
either law. 

67

Item 7.



 
46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 

IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have  been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents.   Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri.
 THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 
COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

 
47. Conflict of Interest:  By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB’s 

terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement.  Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 
 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 
 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defects as to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

68

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Base Bid 

• rental prices for various equipment to be used on various 

projects within the City for the remainder of 2023 and 

through December 31st, 2024. 

• All Bids to include: 

o Travel Expenses 

o Delivery Costs 
o Administrative costs 

Please note any of the following: 
• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic  

for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City  
of Republic for this project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
$ Fill out table next page 

 
 
 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

 

     City of Republic, Missouri 
 
IFB for:  • Rental prices for various 
equipment to be used on various projects within 
the City for the remainder of 2023 and through 
December 31st, 2024. 

213 N Main Street  

Republic, MO 65738 

Company Legal Name: 
____________________________________________ 
 

Address:    
  _________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________ 
 

Signature:  
________________________________________ 
 
Name and Title: 
________________________________________ 
 

 

Telephone: ____________________________________ 
 
Cellular: _______________________________________ 

 
Facsimile:  _____________________________________ 

 
E-mail: ________________________________________ 

 
Dated:  _________________________________ 
 

Bidder’s Federal ID Number:  _______________ 
 

69

Item 7.



Equipment Description/Size Attachments Comparable Monthly Price Make & Model 

        
  

Mid-Size 
Excavator 20-30 ton Plumed for Breaker 

Komatsu 240, Cat 
320 

  

Large Excavator 30 to 40 ton Plumed for Breaker 
Komatsu 310, Cat 

400 
  

Mid-size Dozer 
30,000 to 35,000 

LBS. 
Rear Ripper/ GPS 

compatible 
Cat D4, Komatsu 

D51 
  

Larger Dozer 
45,000 to 50,000 

LBS. 
Rear Ripper/ GPS 

compatible 
Cat D6, Komatsu 

D65 
  

Rubber Tracked 
Skid Steer 10,000-12,000 lbs 

High and low flow 
hook ups & quick 

change bucket 
Case 450, John 

Deere 333, Cat 299  

 

Roller 84" Smooth Drum Komatsu BW 211 
  

Roller 84" Single Drum 
Soil Drum (Sheep's 

foot) Komatsu BW 211 
  

Dump Truck (off 
Road) 

Off Road/ 20 to 25 
yd 20 to25 yd Dump 

Komatsu HD465, JBC 
714 

  

Dump Truck 
(Road) single axle 7 yd dump 

MACK MD, Peterbilt 
536, International 

MV 

  

Dump Truck 
(Road) tandem axle 15-18 yd Dump  

MACK Granite, 
Peterbilt 548, 

International HV 

  

Motor Grader Articulated blade   
Case 856c, Komatsu 

GD655-6 
  

Large Wheel 
Loader 

28,000 to 35,000 
LBS 

3.0 - 4.2 cu. Yd 
Bucket 

Case 721G, Komatsu 
WA 320-8 

  

Large Track 
Loader 

42,000 to 45,000 
LBS 3.2 cu, Yd Bucket 

Cat 963, 755K John 
Deere 

  

Small Rock 
Breaker 4 to 6 ton   Case CH-4M, HK 45 

  

Larger Rock 
Breaker V1800 20 - 35 ton   

Tramac V1800, 
Montabert V1800 

  

Grade Control 
GPS Unit 

Top Con 
Base/Rover   Trimble, ASM, iDig 

  

Backhoe 110 HP Pilot controls 
John Deere 310SL, 
Case 590 Super N 

  

Earth Scraper 15yd-24yd Motor or Pulled 
Cat 627K, John 

Deere 862B 
  

Tractor w/boom 
mower 

5ft head, 12ft 
reach  Diamond mower 

  

  

70

Item 7.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 
 
Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, “[n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri.” 

 
State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See § 285.530(2), RSMo.  

 
Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only.  If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

 

 
  

71

Item 7.



 

 

 

 
The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer.  The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 

and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so.  E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 

program.  Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

  

1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) – Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 

Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 

statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens.  The award 

of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 

acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

 
a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 

to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 
 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq.  

 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 

authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program’s Memo of Understanding 

(MOU).  See attached sample. 
 

 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page.  A digital copy of the affidavit can also 

be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic’s official website, URL address: 

https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenter/View/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-

PDF?bidId= 

 

72

Item 7.

http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenter/View/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-PDF?bidId=
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenter/View/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-PDF?bidId=


Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq.  

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

 
Effective 1/1/2009 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 
 
 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of    , State of 
     , personally appeared      (Name) who is   
    (Title) of       (Name of company), a (circle 
one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows:   

 
(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 

respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 

connection with the contracted services. 
 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 
 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 
 
 

 

Signature  

 

Printed Name 

 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of ,    . 

 
 

 

 

Notary Public 
 

My commission expires:     

 

 

 
  

73

Item 7.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the signature page. If you have 

any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

 
 

Employer, Your Company Name  
 
 

John Doe     
Name (Please type or print) Title 

 
Electronically Signed     
Signature Date 

 
 

Verification 
 

Department of Homeland Security Division 
 

USCIS Verification Division     
Name (Please type or print) Title 

 
Electronically Signed     
Signature Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

74

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

 

  We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

 
  We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 
 

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

              . 

 
I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 

conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 
 

 
Company Name _______________________________ ADDENDA 

 
By __________________________________________ 
                   (Authorized Person’s Signature) 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Company Address _____________________________ 
____________________________________________ 
____________________________________________ 
 

Addendum No. _____ 
 
Addendum No. _____ 

Telephone Number ____________________________ 
 

Addendum No. _____ 
 

Fax Number __________________________________ 
 

Addendum No. _____ 

Date ________________________________________ 
 

Email _________________________________________ 
 
Federal Tax ID No. _______________________________ 
 
DBE Vendor (Yes/No): ________   Minority Owned:  _____ 
                                                             Women Owned:   _____ 
                                                             Veteran Owned:   _____ 

 

  
 

  

75

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

STATEMENT OF “NO PROPOSAL” / “NO BID” 

 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

 
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

 
  SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 

ONLY   (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE “REMARKS” SECTION BELOW). 

  INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

  OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

  UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

  UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

  SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE “REMARKS” SECTION BELOW). 

  OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE “REMARKS” SECTION BELOW). 

 

REMARKS: 

               

               

               

               

 

COMPANY NAME:           

ADDRESS:          

TITLE:                 

SIGNATURE:                                                                                                      

TELEPHONE NUMBER:            

DATE:       

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

76

Item 7.



77

Item 7.



 

MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 
 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 

(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 
 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 

Name:  City of Republic, Missouri 

Address:  213 N. Main Avenue 

City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #:   12492990 Letter Effective Date: 
Contract Date: Certificate Expiration Date: 

Contract #:  Revised Expiration Date:                                                

Project Description: Republic Rental Equipment_ 

Project Location: Various 

Project Completion Date: December 31, 2024 

Auth. Signature:      

Date:         
 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 

property to be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 

Section 144.62, RSMo. 

 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 

Name:          

Address:          

City/State/Zip:         

 

INSTRUCTIONS 

 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 

to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 

the exempt entity’s responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 

Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 
 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 

certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity’s MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 

or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 

to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 

in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 

purchaser for a period of five years. 

 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 

of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 

of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 

must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

78

Item 7.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the 
Zoning Classification of Approximately Seventeen Point One-Nine 
(17.19) Acres of Real Property Located at 3020 North York Avenue, from 
Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

Submitted By: Patrick Ruiz, Associate Planner of the BUILDS Department 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

James Wade has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately 17.19 acres of property 

located at 3020 N York Ave from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2).   

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application consists of approximately 17.19 acres of land located 

at 3020 N York Ave; the property currently has two single-family dwelling units.   

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of commercial and industrial 

development through proactive Rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are 

described generally throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations 

to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

 Goal:  Support market conditions to develop a greater variety of commercial options. 

 Goal:  Support new development that is well-connected to the existing community 

o Objective:  Encourage development that improves and expands upon existing infrastructure 

o Objective:  Promote development aligning with current adopted plans of the City 

 Goal: Encourage the redevelopment and integration of the former Brookline area. 

o Objective: Support the development of an industrial/commercial center where 

transportation and infrastructure exist.  

The Rezoning of this parcel is consistent with City’s Adopted Plans.   

The general trend in the vicinity of the subject property consists of commercial and industrial uses of 
varying intensities along State Highway MM and Sawyer Road. 

 

79

Item 8.



 

 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is adjacent to General Commercial (C-2) to the South and surrounded by Medium 

Density Single-Family (R1-M) and Agricultural (AG) to the West along York Avenue; Light Industrial (M-1) 

and General Commercial (C-2) to the North along Sawyer Road. 

The Heavy Industrial (M-2) Zoning District is intended to allow a wide range of commercial and industrial 

uses.  

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:   

Development of the property will require connecting to existing municipal water and sewer mains 

located near the property.  Both an 8-inch water main and an 8-inch gravity sewer main are located on, 

or in adjacent right-of-way of the subject parcel.  The sanitary sewer will flow from the site to the 

Brookline South Lift Station, McElhaney Lift Station, and Shuyler Creek Lift Station respectively before 

being pumped to the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

The water system, named Lift Stations, and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently have capacity to 

serve the intended use. 

Transportation:   

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was required for the Rezoning Application.  Development of the property will 

require adherence to the City’s Transportation Plan, Adopted Transportation Map, and improvements 

required by the TIS for buildout.   

The TIS concludes that the highest intense use of such zoning would not cause a significant impact on 

the study area roadway network. In addition, public improvements are planned for York Avenue along 

the frontage of the site and the intersection of York Avenue and Farm Road 156 (Sawyer Road) that will 

allow for accommodation of trucks and transport vehicles.   

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain any areas of Special Flood Hazard Area (Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject property does not contain any identified sinkholes.  

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the 

vicinity of the site, compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by 

municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony 

of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

80

Item 8.



BILL NO. 23-19  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23- 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY SEVENTEEN POINT ONE-NINE (17.19) ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3020 

NORTH YORK AVENUE, FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO HEAVY INDUSTRIAL (M-2) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s BUILDS Department received an Application for an amendment to the Zoning 
Code and Official Zoning Map by rezoning certain real property consisting of approximately 17.19 acres, 
located at 3020 North York Avenue in Republic, Missouri (“the Property”), from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy 
Industrial (M-2); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City submitted the Application to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
(“Commission”) and set a public hearing before the Commission for June 12, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City published notice of the time and date of the public hearing at least fifteen (15) 
days in advance, on May 24, 2023, in the Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of the Application and public hearing to the record owners of all 
real properties within 185 feet of the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted the public hearing on June 12, 2023, at which all interested 
persons and entities were afforded the opportunity to present evidence or statement, and after which 
the Commission rendered written findings of fact and submitted those along with its recommendations 
to the Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission, by a vote of 0 Ayes to 5 Nays, did not recommend the approval of 
the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application was submitted to the Council for first read at its regular meeting on 
June 20, 2023, and submitted for second read at its regular meeting on July 18, 2023, after which the 
Council voted to approve the Application and amend the Zoning Code accordingly. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended to reflect the 
rezoning of the real property consisting of approximately 17.19 acres located at 
3020 North York Avenue in Republic, Missouri, more fully identified in the legal 
description below, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2): 

 
A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼) OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (NW¼) OF SECTION TWO (2), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-EIGHT (28) NORTH, RANGE 
TWENTY-THREE (23) WEST, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

81

Item 8.



BILL NO. 23-19  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23- 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, WITH 
THE WEST LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼, A DISTANCE OF 628.06 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; 
THENCE S875̊2'24"E, A DISTANCE OF 466.69 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, 
A DISTANCE OF 466.75 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N875̊2'24"W, A DISTANCE OF 
466.69 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID WEST LINE FOR CORNER; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, WITH SAID 
WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 319.21 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE 
NW¼ FOR CORNER; THENCE S880̊7'10"E, WITH SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 459.76 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MISSOURI STATE HIGHWAY 360 FOR 
CORNER; THENCE S015̊2'50"W, WITH SAID HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 24.47 
FEET TO AN EXISTING 100-D NAIL FOR CORNER; THENCE S735̊3'39"E, A DISTANCE OF 67.59 FEET 
TO AN EXISTING 100-D NAIL FOR CORNER; THENCE S855̊3'19"E, A DISTANCE OF 212.55 FEET TO 
AN EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY MARKER FOR CORNER; THENCE S431̊4'07"E, A DISTANCE OF 130.11 
FEET TO AN EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY MARKER FOR CORNER, SAID MARKER BEING ON THE 
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE RAILWAY; THENCE 
S225̊3'05"W, WITH SAID RAILWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 1,361.00 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼ FOR CORNER; THENCE N882̊9'44"W, A DISTANCE 
OF 348.10 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 14.42 ACRES OF LAND, MORE 
OR LESS, SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 
AND ALSO, 

 
A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(NW¼) OF SECTION TWO (2), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-EIGHT (28) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY-THREE 
(23) WEST, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼; THENCE N020̊7'35"E, 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NE¼ OF THE NW¼, A DISTANCE OF 628.06 FEET TO A CORNER 
FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE TRACT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE S875̊2'24"E, A DISTANCE 
OF 466.69 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N020̊7'36"E, A DISTANCE OF 466.75 FEET TO 
A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE N875̊2'24"W, A DISTANCE OF 466.69 FEET TO A POINT FOR 
CORNER, SAID POINT BEING ON SAID WEST LINE; THENCE S020̊7'36"W, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 
A DISTANCE OF 466.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 5.00 ACRES, MORE OR 
LESS, SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 
Section 2: In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, the 

Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and continue in full 
force and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to  

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance. 
 

Section 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 5:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

82

Item 8.



BILL NO. 23-19  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23- 3 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 
Final Passage and Vote: 

83

Item 8.



Site Extent 

CJ Floodplain

ic1 11 
i l -- V 

Project 
Rezone 

Address 
3020 N York Ave 

Zoning 

AG 

Requested Zoning 
M-2

Acreage 

17.19 

Ward 

2 • 

Ir � D ;P

I � 
L _'v ,;-
� o D oo 

0 

l o O o 
,. Farm R 11,8 15

JI c'.J 

o � ! I

oRd---
T 

D 

Sinkholes 

Parcels Greene 

County 

/t@J 
290 

I 
580 Feet 

84

Item 8.



Site Extent 

c=J Floodplain

Project 
Rezone 

Address 
3020 N York Ave 

Zoning 

AG 

Requested Zoning 
M-2

Acreage 

17.19 

Ward 

2 • 

Cl I 11

�lJ 
u 

oRd--- -

Sinkholes 

D 
Parcels Greene

County 

j 
290 

I 
580 Feet 

85

Item 8.



86

Item 8.



87

Item 8.



88

Item 8.



89

Item 8.



90

Item 8.



91

Item 8.



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Stone 
Creek Falls Phase One Subdivision. 

 
Submitted By: Chris Tabor, BUILDS Department Principal Planner 
 
Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 
 
The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received an Application for Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 Final Plat on 
May 15, 2023. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 
 
The Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 will legally divide approximately sixty-four point three seven 
(64.37) acres of land into eleven (11) lots and includes the dedication of Right-of-Way, Utility, and 
Stormwater Easements.  The Final Plat includes approximately 3,572 linear feet of street and 7,144 linear 
feet of sidewalk. 
  
The Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 conforms to the Development Plan for Stone Creek Falls Planned 
Development District approved by City Council on August 3, 2021.  The Final Plat for Stone Creek Falls Phase 
1 also conforms to the amended Development Plan approved by City Council on April 11, 2023, which 
increased the building height allowance for multi-family structures on the site from 3 to 4 stories.   
 
City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the requirements 
of the Approved Development Plan, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 
Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends approval of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 Final Plat. 

92

Item 9.



BILL NO. 23-20  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-20 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF  
THE STONE CREEK FALLS PHASE ONE SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 3, 2021, the City Council approved of the Planned Development District for 
the Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District (PDD) in Ordinance 21-54; and 

 
WHEREAS, following passage of Bill No. 21-54, the City received an application from the property 

owner, Stone Creek Development LLC (“Owner”), to modify the maximum building height allowed under 
the Development Plan from three (3) stories to four (4) stories; and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2023, following review of the application and a public hearing, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Owner’s requested amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, a on April 11, 2023, the City Council approved of the amended Planned Development 

District for the Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District (PDD) in Ordinance 23-13; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the BUILDS Department received an application for review and 
approval of the Final Plat of Phase 1 of the amended Stone Creek Falls Planned Development District 
(“Stone Creek Falls Phase 1”); and  
  
 WHEREAS, the BUILDS Department has reviewed the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 and 
has determined it substantially conforms to the requirements of the Development Plan, the requirements 
of the City Code Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 
Council relating to the acceptance and approval of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 have 
been met. 

 
Section 2: That the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1, attached and incorporated herein 

as “Attachment 1”, is hereby approved in all respects. 
 

Section 3: That the approval of the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 is contingent upon 
the same being recorded within sixty (60) days after the approval certificate is 
signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

 
Section 4: That neither the construction of structures nor the sale of lots in the Stone Creek 

Falls Phase 1 shall commence until the Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls Phase 1 has 
been approved and recorded. 

  
 Section 5:  The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  

93

Item 9.



BILL NO. 23-20  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-20 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

Section 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

94

Item 9.



95

Item 9.



W  U
.S. H

IGHWAY 60BNSF RAILROAD

BN
SF

 R
AI

LR
OA

D
W FARM ROAD 164

N
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L
   

 A
VE

N
U

E

S 
FA

R
M

 R
O

AD
 1

01

(STATE HIGHWAY 413)

LOT 9

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

6.35 ACRES
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

COMMON AREA

3.49 ACRES

5.00 ACRES

6.76 ACRES

5.02 ACRES

5.12 ACRES

POINT OF BEGINNING

LOT 6
5.00 ACRES

LOT 1
2.36 ACRES

LOT 7

LOT 8

2.65 ACRES

LOT 10
4.07 ACRES

2.76 ACRES5.00 ACRES
LOT 11

3.64 ACRES

COMMON
  AREA

ST
ON

E 
FA

LL
S 

RO
AD

RIVER RUN

S
TO

N
E

CREEK

DRIVE

STONE

FALLS

ROAD

SCALE 1" = 120'

CURVE DATA

PRECISION SURVEYING, L.L.C.
BALGL

P.O. BOX 790, REPUBLIC, MO 65738

PHONE (417) 883-0300    FAX (417) 883-0335

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

NUMBER  LS-2010000563

FINAL PLAT
STONE CREEK FALLS PHASE ONE

CITY OF REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI

      A PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 11
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2

TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST

SITE

VICINITY MAP

      A PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 11
A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2
                                        TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BENCHMARK

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

COURSE TABLE

DEVELOPER

OWNER

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

DEVELOPMENT NOTES

DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

STATE PLANE COORDINATES

A

B

C

D

E
F

G H

I

JK

L

FA
R

M
 R

O
AD

 1
03

96

Item 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-21 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Execution of an 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement with Greene County, 
Missouri for Road Striping Services. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

The BUILDS Department wishes to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Greene County for 

roadway striping on certain roads within the City Limits.    

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Greene County is able to assist the City of Republic by striping certain roads within the City of Republic 

that are continuous with Count roads. The roads they are able to stripe for the City are: 

 Sawyer Road:  From FR 97 to Route MM 

 Boston Lane:  From MO 174 to City Limits 

 N. Main St:  From MO 174 to City Limits 

 W Hines: From City Limits to MO 174 

 S. Kansas:  From MO 174 to Farm Rd 188 

 E. Miller:  From Lynn St to City Limits 

 W. Farm Rd 174:  From Oakwood to City Limits 
 
The anticipated cost for this striping is $5808.38 however, the City would be responsible for paying 
actual incurred for the time and materials used. 
 
 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

97

Item 10.



BILL NO. 23-21  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-21 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI FOR ROAD STRIPING SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 70.220, RSMo., authorizes municipalities and political subdivisions of the State 
of Missouri to cooperate with each other by, among other things, entering into cooperative agreements 
with each other regarding the planning, development, construction, acquisition, or operation of public 
improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, Greene County, Missouri, a Missouri political subdivision under § 70.220 RSMo., (“the 
County”), has presented the City with an Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement (“IGA”) pursuant to 
which the County will perform and complete the longitudinal striping of certain identified farm roads 
located within the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the IGA will help to improve public transportation upon the network of affected roads 
and will contribute to the overall increased safety of City residents and guests traveling upon those roads, 
in accordance with the provisions of § 70.220, RSMo.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that execution of the IGA is in the City’s best interest as it will improve 
safety upon the City’s roadways while minimizing the financial impact of the improvements to the City’s 
residents. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into an Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement with the Republic R-III 
School District to share equally in the total cost of professional emergency 
operations services to be provided by AARC Consultants, LLC, said agreement to 
be in substantially the same form as that attached to this Ordinance as 
“Attachment 1.”   

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

98

Item 10.



BILL NO. 23-21  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-21 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

99

Item 10.



Page | 1 of 4 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
_________________, 2023, between the City of Republic, Missouri ( “City”) and Greene County, 
Missouri, acting through its County Commission (“County”) (together, “the Parties”).  
  

 WHEREAS, Section 70.220 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri authorizes 

intergovernmental agreements between municipalities and political subdivisions regarding, among 

other things, the planning, development, construction, acquisition, or operation of public 

improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City maintains certain roadways within its municipal boundaries that are in 

need of maintenance (“the Roads”), which includes, among other things, striping of the surfaces 

thereon (“the Project”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to control the cost of the Project by entering into this Agreement 

for the provision of supplies and labor in connection with the longitudinal striping of the Roads; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County wishes to facilitate the Project by providing the aforementioned 

supplies and labor subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement will help to improve public transportation upon the Roads and 

will contribute to the overall increased safety of the Parties’ residents and guests traveling thereon, in 
accordance with the provisions of § 70.220, RSMo. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The County, by and/or through its Highway Department, agrees to perform and 

complete the longitudinal striping of the following portions of the Roads:  (further depicted in Exhibit 

A, attached): 
 

a. E. Sawyer Road:  From Farm Road 97 to Route MM 
b. N. Boston Lane:  From MO 174 to City Limits 
c. N. Main Street:  From MO 174 to City Limits 
d. W. Hines:  City Limits Boundary Line to MO 174 
e. S. Kansas :  From MO 174 to Farm Road 188 
f. E. Miller:  From Lynn Street to City Limits Boundary Line 
g. W. Farm Road 174:  From Oakwood to City Limit Boundary Line 

 
2. The County will provide the paint, labor and equipment to stripe the portions of the 

Roads identified herein and above, which will consist of edge, center line and/or center turn lane 
markings.   

 
3. In performing its work on the Project, the County shall only utilize water-born 

pavement striping paint and Type I Glass Beads, all of which shall be approved by the Missouri 
Department of Transportation (“MoDOT”) and applied in conformity with all current, applicable 
MoDOT specifications.  

 

100

Item 10.



Page | 2 of 4 

 

4. Inspection of all work performed shall be conducted by the County; however, the City, 
through its inspection staff, shall provide advice and consent to the County’s inspector(s) as to the 
striping and other related work.   

 
5. The City shall reimburse the County for its actual labor incurred, use cost of the 

equipment and cost of the paint associated with the Project.  Promptly after completion of the Project, 
the County shall furnish the City with an itemized invoice for the total amount owed consisting of the 
permitted costs under this Agreement.  The City shall remit payment to the County within forty-five 
(45) days after the City’s receipt of the County’s invoice.   

 
6. By striping the Roads identified herein, the County shall gain no rights to or interest 

in any portion of the Roads upon which work was performed, nor shall the County be obligated to 
provide future striping or other repairs or maintenance upon the Roads.  Upon completion of the 

Project, the City shall maintain the Roads for all purposes as part of its street systems, at its own cost 
and expense, and at no cost or expense whatsoever to the County. 

 
7. The Parties are each separate and independent municipalities and/or political 

subdivisions of the State and, as such, the County and the City each retain their own individual 
identity and each is responsible for its own policies and activities.  This Agreement shall not be 
construed as creating a joint venture, partnership or any other affiliation between the City or the 
County.   

 
8. To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City shall defend, and indemnify and 

hold harmless the County, including County’s Commissioners, officials, employees and assigns, from 
all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, judgments, and expenses, including attorney fees and court 
costs, whether based on a claim for damages to real or personal property or for damages/harm to a 
person including personal injury or death, for any matter related to or arising from the County’s 

performance of its obligations under this Agreement; however, this provision does not obligate City 
to indemnify, hold harmless, or defend the County from the County’s own illegal conduct, gross 
negligence or ordinary negligence. 

 
9. In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be construed as a waiver 

or limitation of the Parties’ respective rights or defenses with regard to the Parties’ respective 
applicable sovereign, governmental or official immunities and protections as required by Federal and 
State Constitutions, statutes, and laws.  The procurement and maintenance of insurance shall not be 
construed as waiving any such defense otherwise available.  

 
10. This Agreement sets forth the entire Agreement between the Parties and fully 

supersedes any and all prior and/or other contemporaneous agreements or understandings between 
the Parties which pertain to the subject matter hereof.   This Agreement may only be modified by 
written instrument executed by the Parties.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same document.   

  
11. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Missouri, all of which are incorporated by reference herein, and shall not be construed to 
authorize any matter that would violate applicable law. 

  
12. This Agreement shall not be construed to create any employment or agent relationship 

of any kind, nor shall it be construed as an agreement for the benefit of any third party, and no 
individual shall be entitled by virtue of this Agreement to any wages or employment benefits or 

101

Item 10.



Page | 3 of 4 

 

compensation of any kind, including any pursuant to any employment law liability theory, such as, 
but not limited to: the Fair Wage and Labor Standards Act of 1938, and as subsequently amended, all 
Missouri statutory laws, including Workers’ Compensation, or common law. 

  
13. The Parties shall not discriminate against any employee or participant in the 

performance of the duties, responsibilities, and obligations under this Agreement because of race, 
color, religion, gender, age, marital status, disability, political or religious beliefs, national or ethnic 
origin.   

  
14. This Agreement may not be assigned by any Party without the prior written consent 

of the other Party. 
  
15. A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of competent 

jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part, of this Agreement shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 

 
16. In the event of a dispute over this Agreement or any matter authorized by, related to, 

or arising out of this Agreement, venue shall be in Greene County, Missouri.   
  
17. The Parties each agree to pass such ordinances, resolutions, orders, or other directives 

as may be reasonably necessary to implement the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Greene County, Missouri, acting through its County 
Commission, and the City of Republic, Missouri, acting through its City Administrator, have 
separately and together caused this Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement to be duly executed by 
their proper officers, duly authorized by their respective Commission or Council, as of the day and 
year first above written, and hereby further consent to this Agreement becoming binding upon the 

them, along with their respective representatives, successors and assigns.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Greene County, Missouri acting through its County 

Commission, and the City of Republic, Missouri, acting through its Mayor and as authorized by 

City Council, have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives, 

the day and year set forth below, and hereby further agree that this Agreement shall be binding 

upon the Parties hereto, their respective successors and assigns. 

 

  

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.  Signatures follow on page 4 of 4] 

102

Item 10.



Page | 4 of 4 

 

GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Bob Dixon 
Presiding Commissioner 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Rusty MacLachlan 
Commissioner 1st District 
 
 

By:______________________________ 
John C. Russell 
Commissioner 2nd District 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Shane Schoeller, Greene County Clerk 
 
 
GREENE COUNTY HIGHWAY 
ADMINISTATOR 
 
By:______________________________ 
     Adam Humphrey 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By:______________________________ 
Austin Fax, Attorney for Greene County 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
Megan E. McCullough, City Attorney 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103

Item 10.



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

104

Item 10.



41,194 01/18/2023

Crew Activity Detail

Greene County

Striping CrewCrew

Location Task

WFR174 W Farm Road 174

Project

Fund

PC01 / Pavement Marking - Paint

Striping Quote for City of Republic. E Sawyer RD 1 mile, N Boston Ln 0.21 mile, N Main St 0.71 mile, W Hine 0.60 mile, S Kansas 0.75 mile,  E 

Miller  0.75 mile,  W FR 174  0.52 mile.

Total

Employees

Code Employee Lead Hours Rate OT Hrs OT Rate

91870 Brown, Joel  8.00 $24.81 $198.48

91870 Brown, Joel  8.00 $24.81 $198.48

94522 Green, Dennis  8.00 $15.44 $123.52

92153 Jacobs, Micah Lead  8.00 $21.88 $175.04

93305 Testerman, Eric  8.00 $16.69 $133.52

$829.04 40.00Employees4

Total

Equipment

Unit Number Equipment/Vehicle Hr/Mi Rate

126 2013 Ford F150 4X4 Super Crew 126  8.00 $19.87 $158.96

306 2017 Peterbilt/EZ-Liner 320/AL500 306  8.00 $76.28 $610.24

316 2007 International 4400 SBA 4X2 316  8.00 $65.75 $526.00

$1,295.20Equipment/Vehicles3

Total

Materials

Part Number Part Description Qty Unit Cost

GB-SS Glass Beads  1,778.40 $0.43 $764.71

SP-W Striping Paint - White  154.36 $12.98 $2,003.59

SP-Y Striping Paint - Yellow  67.94 $13.48 $915.83

$3,684.14Material Items3

$5,808.38Total Crew Activity Cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

1January 18, 2023

105

Item 10.



106

Item 10.



 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-22 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Final Plat of the Iron 
Grain Planned Development District Phase One. 

 
Submitted By: Chris Tabor, BUILDS Department Principal Planner 
 
Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 
 
The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received an Application for the Final Plat of Phase One of the Iron 
Grain District Subdivision on June 23, 2023. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 
 
The Final Plat of Iron Grain District Phase One will legally divide approximately fourteen point six two (14.62) 
acres of land into two (2) lots and includes the dedication of Utility, Drainage, and Access Easements. 
   
The Final Plat of Iron Grain District Phase One encompasses areas three (3), four (4), and five (5) as 
designated in the Development Plan for Iron Grain District. The Final Plat submitted conforms to the 
Development Plan for Iron Grain District Planned Development District approved by City Council on February 
22, 2022.   
 
City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the requirements 
of the Approved Development Plan, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 
Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 
 

Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat for Iron Grain District Phase One. 

107

Item 11.



BILL NO. 23-22  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-22 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF  
THE IRON GRAIN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PHASE ONE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2022, via Ordinance 22-11, the  Council approved the Development 
Plan for the Iron Grain District Planned Development District (PDD); and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 23, 2023, Magers Republic No. 3C, LLC (“Applicant”) submitted an application 

to the BUILDS Department for review and approval of the Final Plat of Phase 1 of the Iron Grain District 
Planned Development District (“Iron Grain District Phase 1”); and  
  
 WHEREAS, the BUILDS Department has reviewed Applicant’s proposed Final Plat and determined 
it substantially conforms to the requirements of the approved Development Plan, the requirements of 
applicable City Code provisions including but not necessarily limited to Chapter 410 Subdivision 
Regulations, Article 410-V Major Subdivision--Final Plat. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 
Council relating to the acceptance and approval of Iron Grain District Phase 1 have 
been met. 

 
Section 2: That the Final Plat of Iron Grain District Phase 1, attached and incorporated herein 

as “Attachment 1”, is hereby approved in all respects. 
 

Section 3: That the approval of the Final Plat of Iron Grain District Phase 1 is contingent upon 
the same being recorded within sixty (60) days after the approval certificate is 
signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

  
Section 4:  That neither the construction of structures nor the sale of lots in Iron Grain 

District Phase 1 shall commence until the Final Plat of Iron Grain District Phase 1 
has been duly approved and recorded as required by law. 

 
Section 5: The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

  
Section 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 
 

108

Item 11.



BILL NO. 23-22  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-22 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of _______________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  

 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

109

Item 11.



110

Item 11.



S
T
A
T
E
 R

O
U

T
E
 "M

M
"

SAWYER RD (FR156)

IR
O

N
 G

R
A
IN

 R
D

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (Parent Tract: Book 2021 Page 01830721)
 All that part of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 29 North, Range 23
West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Greene County, Missouri, being more particularly described as follows:
BEGINNING at the Northeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 35;
thence, North 88°11'38" West, a distance of 619.73 feet to an existing iron pin on the Southerly right-of-way line of
U.S. Highway 360 (James River Expressway); thence, South 48°28'01" East, along and with said Southerly line, a
distance of 160.34 feet to an existing right-of-way marker; thence, South 37°54'07" East, along and with said
Southerly line, a distance of 212.40 feet to an existing iron pin; thence, South 02°03'15" West, leaving said
Southerly line, a distance of 249.68 feet to the Southerly line of an existing sanitary sewer easement as recorded
in Book 2006 Page 61784-06 of the Greene County Deed Records and the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence,
continue South 02°03'15" West, a distance of 302.89 feet to an existing iron pin; thence, North 87°36'08" West, a
distance of 220.05 feet to an existing iron pin ;thence, South 02°06'44" West, a distance of 499.99 feet to an
existing iron pin on the North right-of-way line of Farm Road 156; thence, North 88°31'54" West, along and with
said North line, a distance of 282.66 feet; thence, North 53°55'46" West, along and with said North line, a distance
of 49.52 feet to an existing iron pin; thence, North 88°08'36" West, along and with said North line, a distance of
254.62 feet to an existing iron pin on the East right-of-way line of State Route "MM"; thence, Northerly, along and
with said East line, the following six (6) courses:

North 28°18'38" West, a distance of 58.71 feet to an existing iron pin; thence, North 01°27'26"
East, a distance of 109.11 feet to an existing iron pin; thence, North 03°22'12" West, a distance of
288.92 feet to an existing iron pin; thence, North 13°43'27" West, a distance of 180.50 feet to an
existing iron pin; thence, North 11°17'23" West, a distance of 63.25 feet to an existing iron pin;
thence, North 21°41'01" West, a distance of 32.97 feet to an existing iron pin

at the intersection of said Northerly line with the East right-of-way line of Brookline Road (Old Route "MM");
thence, North 02°02'14" East, along and with said East line, a distance of 249.09 feet to the South line of the
aforementioned sanitary sewer easement; thence, along and with said South line, the following three (3) courses:

South 89°30'58" East, a distance of 78.95; thence, South 67°34'34" East, a distance of 525.37
feet; thence, South 87°22'55" East, a distance of 362.59 feet

to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 14.62 acres and being subject to easements, restrictions or
rights-of-way, if any.

FLOOD NOTE:
This property lies in Flood Zone "X" (areas determined to be outside of the 0.2%
annual chance floodplain) according to FIRM Community Panel 29077c 0316 E,
effective December 17, 2010.

However, the proposed "F" series maps, not yet adopted or effective, show a
portion of the property lying within the Flood Hazard Area along with a designated
floodway. The approximate limits of the hazard area shown on the proposed maps
are reflected on this survey.

LE
E 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

& 
As

so
ci

at
es

, L
.L

.C
.

12
00

 E
. W

oo
dh

ur
st

 D
r.,

 S
ui

te
 D

20
0

   
  S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
, M

is
so

ur
i  

 6
58

04
41

7-
88

6-
91

00
 (p

ho
ne

)
41

7-
88

6-
93

36
 (f

ax
)

dl
ee

@
le

ee
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

bi
z

Missouri State Certificate of Authority
Engineering #2005015504

Land Surveying #2009028050

LE
E

ENG
INEERING

&

ASSOCIATES
LL

C
.

Fi
na

l P
la

t

IR
O

N
 G

RA
IN

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
PH

AS
E 

I

St
at

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 M

M
 &

 S
aw

ye
r 

Ro
ad

Re
pu

bl
ic

, G
re

en
e 

Co
un

ty
, M

is
so

ur
i

FOUND IRON PIN

SET IRON PIN OR MARKER AS NOTED

R/W MARKER

BOUNDARY LINE
R/W LINE
EASEMENT LINE
SETBACK LINE

MEASURED
PLAT
DEED
RECORD

FINAL PLAT

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

BEARINGS ARE GRID NORTH BASED ON THE
MISSOURI STATE PLANE COORDINATE

SYSTEM OF 1983, CENTRAL ZONE VIA GPS
TIES TO THE MODOT VRS NETWORK.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
That I, Don Ray Berry do hereby declare that this plat was prepared under my supervision from an actual survey of the land herein
described prepared by me dated October 28, 2021 and signed by me and that the corner monuments and lot corner pins shown herein
were placed under my personal supervision in accordance with the current Missouri Standards for Property Boundary Surveys as
Promulgated by the Missouri Department of Agriculture for URBAN class properties.

Signature:  Date Prepared: July 6, 2023

Missouri Professional Land Surveyor No. 2004017829

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
OWNER(S) DEDICATION

Magers Republic No 3C LLC, as Owner(s), have caused the land described on this plat to be surveyed, divided, mapped, and all
access rights reserved and dedicated as represented on the plat. I/We hereby dedicate, grant, and convey easements shown hereon
to the City of Republic. No streets are created or dedicated by this plat. Furthermore, I/We, certify that there are no suits, actions, liens,
or trusts on the property conveyed herein, and warrant generally and specially the property conveyed for public use and will execute
such further assurances as may be required.

Date:  
Randy Magers, Manager/Member
Magers Republic No 3C LLC

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of Missouri )

) SS
County of )

On this  day of , 2023, before me personally appeared Randy Magers, to me known, who duly
sworn, did say that they are a Manager/Member of Magers Republic No 3C LLC and that the foregoing instrument was signed on
behalf of and by the authority of the Managers/Members of said Limited Liability Company, and said person acknowledged said
instrument to be the free act and deed of said Limited Liability Company.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in  County, Missouri
on the day and year first above written.

Notary Public                        Commission Expires

Printed Name

CERTIFICATE OF TAXES PAID
CERTIFICATE OF TAXES PAID There are no unpaid taxes due and payable at the time of plat approval and no unpaid special
assessments, whether or not due and payable at the time of plat approval on any of the lands included in this plat, and all outstanding
taxes and special assessments have been paid on all property dedicated to public use.

__________ _____________ Parcel Number

__________ _____________ County Collection Official

__________ _____________ Date

CITY COUNCIL CERTIFICATE
APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL I, , City Clerk of the City of Republic, Greene County,
Missouri, Do hereby certify that the Plat of Iron Grain District was presented to, accepted and approved by the City Council of said City
of Republic, and approved by General Ordinance No. ____________on the ____________day of ____________, 2023.

__________ _____________ City Clerk

__________ _____________ Date

COMPLIANCE WITH LAND USE REGULATIONS CERTIFICATION, CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ZONING AND
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS I, ______________________________, City
Planner of the City of Republic, Missouri, do hereby certify on the ______________ day of ____________, 2023, the Final Plat of Iron
Grain District conforms to the City of Republic Land Use Regulations, in accordance with Title IV of the Republic Code of Ordinances.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Current Zoning: Iron Grain District PDD
Ordinance 22-11, February 22, 2022

The PDD shall comply with the Municipality of Republic's C-2 (General
Commercial District) and R-3 (Multi-Family Residential District) Regulations.

Setbacks: Front: 15'
Side: 15'
Rear: 15'

Zoning Regulation Exceptions
Parking Requirements: 85% of zoning ordinance requirements.

Bulk Plane: All uses are exempt from bulk plane requirements.

Residential Density: R-3 uses may have up to 25 dwelling units per acre.

Lot Information:
Number of Lots 2
Total Acerage 637,020 SF (14.62 AC)
Largest Lot 351,011 SF (8.06 AC) Lot 2 
Smallest Lot 286,009 SF (6.57 AC) Lot 1

Property owner is responsible for addressing open space, landscaping, and
buffer yard requirements when the lots are developed.

IRON GRAIN DISTRICT
PHASE I

Section 35, T29N, R23W

U
.S

.3
6
0

(J
A
M
E
S
 R

IV
E
R
 F

R
E
E
W
A
Y
)

REFERENCE SOURCE DOCUMENTS:
PB AAA Page 197, SRB5490 Page 2714, SRB5490 Page 3440 & other County Surveys
Deeds as Noted
Prior Surveys by this Firm
State of Missouri Highway Plans for US 360 and State Route "MM"

IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE
I, Cheryl Dawson-Spaulding, Recorder of Deeds, Greene County, Missouri, do hereby certify
that the within instrument of writing was on the  day of ,
2023, duly filed for record and is recorded in the records in this office in Book 
Page  in testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my
official seal at my office in Springfield, Missouri, this  day of , 2023.

________________________
Recorder of Deeds

________________________
Date

 

 

 

 

111

Item 11.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-23 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of a 
Developer Agreement with Turner Residential Holding, LLC for the 
Continued Development of the Oak Hills Phase Three Residential 
Subdivision. 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, BUILDS Department Principal Planner 

Date: July 18. 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Turner Residential Holdings, LLC wishes to enter into a Developer’s Agreement for the deferred 

construction of a 10” water main and Samuel Sturgis Avenue during the construction of the 

infrastructure associated with Phase 3 of Oak Hills.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The approved Preliminary Plat for Oak Hills requires the extension of a 10” water main parallel to West 

Farm Road 170 and the construction of Samuel Sturgis Avenue; the Developer is requesting deferment 

of both infrastructure improvements proportional to the combined number of lots in Phases 1 and 3 of 

the development.  

The Oak Hill Subdivision consists of 135 residential lots; Phase 1 consists of 27 lots, or 20% of total 

development; Phase 3 consists of 19 lots, or 14.07% of total development.  The combined total of both 

phases is 46 lots, or 34.07% of total development.  The estimated cost of construction for the water 

main extension (1,464.5 LF) is $89,117.75.  The estimated cost of construction of Samuel Sturgis Avenue, 

a collector class street (1,328 LF), is $713,839.59.  

The Developer’s Agreement financially secures 34.07% of the costs of construction for the remaining 

water main and for Samuel Sturgis Avenue for a period of four years.  The proportional cost of the water 

main being secured is $30,362.42; The proportional cost Samuel Sturgis Avenue being secured is 

$243,205.15.  The total amount being secured through the Developer’s Agreement is $273,567.57.  The 

developer must construct the required improvements or enter into a new Developer’s Agreement with 

the City prior to the issuance of any additional permit for subsequent phases of development.  

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the Developer’s Agreement.  

112

Item 12.



BILL NO. 23-23  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-23 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING EXECUTION OF A DEVELOPER AGREEMENT WITH 
TURNER RESIDENTIAL HOLDING, LLC  FOR THE CONTINUED DEVELOPMENT OF THE OAK HILLS PHASE 

THREE RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, Turner Residential Holding, LLC ("Developer") is currently the owner of approximately 
48.5 acres of real property located at/near 7012 West Farm Road 170 in Republic, Missouri (“Property”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Developer is in the process of developing a residential subdivision on the Property; and  

 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, via Ordinance 18-31, the City Council approved of amendment to the 
Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map by re-zoning the Property from Agricultural (AG) to High Density Single 
Family Residential (Rl-H); and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2019, via Resolution 19-R-10, the City Council approved of Developer’s 
Preliminary Plat for the residential subdivision on the Property, then known as the A’Vila Residential 
Subdivision (“A’Vila”), consisting of approximately 139 lots; and  
 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2022, via Ordinance 22-27, the City Council approved of Developer’s Final 
Plat for Phase 1 of the residential subdivision on the Property, now known as the Oak Hills Residential 
Subdivision (“Oak Hills”), consisting of 27 lots; and  
 

WHEREAS, Developer has indicated its desire to continue development of Oak Hills, and specifically, 
Phase 3, which consists of approximately 19 lots; and  
 

WHEREAS, as required by the Preliminary Plat, applicable City Ordinances and the City’s adopted 
Transportation Plan, certain public improvements must be completed upon the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has requested the City defer certain infrastructure required to be constructed 
by Developer during construction of Oak Hills Phase 3; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to defer the requested infrastructure during construction of Phase 3 
of Oak Hills, subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in a Developer Agreement between the City and 
Developer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds the Developer Agreement is in the City’s best interest as it will benefit 

the community through the continued economic growth and development in the City while preserving 
and protecting the City’s rights in connection with said development. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into a Developer Agreement with Turner Residential Holding, LLC for the 

113

Item 12.



BILL NO. 23-23  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-23 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

public improvements referenced herein, to be in substantially the same form as 
that attached hereto and labeled “Attachment 1.” 

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 

 

114

Item 12.



1 of 7 | P a g e  

 

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this _____ day of 

____________________, 2023, by and between the City of Republic, Missouri (“City”) and Turner 
Residential Holding, LLC (“Developer”).  City and Developer are referred to together herein as the 
“Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, Developer is currently the owner of approximately 48.5 acres of real property located 

at/near 7012 West Farm Road 170 in Republic, Missouri, more specifically identified in the legal 

description attached hereto and labeled Exhibit A (the “Property”); and  

 

WHEREAS, Developer is in the process of developing a residential subdivision on the Property; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2018, via Ordinance 18-31, the City Council approved of amendment to 

the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map by re-zoning the Property from Agricultural (AG) to High 
Density Single Family Residential (Rl-H); and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2019, via Resolution 19-R-10, the City Council approved of Developer’s 

Preliminary Plat for the residential subdivision on the Property, then known as the A’Vila Residential 
Subdivision (“A’Vila”)1, consisting of approximately 139 lots; and  
 

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2022, via Ordinance 22-27, the City Council approved of Developer’s 
Final Plat for Phase 1 of the residential subdivision on the Property, then known as the Oak Hills 
Residential Subdivision (“Oak Hills”), consisting of 27 lots; and  
 

WHEREAS, Developer has indicated its desire to continue development of Oak Hills by 

submitting the Preliminary Plat for Phase 3 of Oak Hills (“Phase 3 Preliminary Plat”) to the City, which 

consists of approximately 19 lots, further described in Exhibit B, attached hereto and expressly 

incorporated by reference; and  
 

WHEREAS, as required by the Phase 3 Preliminary Plat, applicable City Ordinances and the 
City’s adopted Transportation Plan, certain public improvements must be completed upon the Property; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has requested the City defer certain infrastructure required to be 

constructed by Developer during construction of Oak Hills, Phase 3; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to defer the requested infrastructure during construction of Phase 

3 of Oak Hills, subject to the terms contained in this Agreement and approval by City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the 
City and Developer agree as follows: 
 

1. Ability to Contract:  Developer warrants that it has full ownership interest in the Property 

such that Developer has the legal authority and ability to enter into this Agreement and fulfill the terms 
contained herein. 
 

                                                           
1 Developer has renamed the subdivision from A’Vila to Oak Hills.  ln this Agreement, A’Vila and Oak Hills 

refer to the same subdivision and Property. 

115

Item 12.



2 of 7 | P a g e  

 

2. Infrastructure:   
 

a. Developer acknowledges and agrees that construction of all required infrastructure for 
the Property, including all utility, stormwater, and road improvements, as shown on 
the Preliminary Plat, the City’s adopted Transportation Plan and all other Adopted 
Master Plans of City, and as otherwise required under applicable City Ordinance(s), 
Rule(s) and Regulation(s), must be completed by Developer before City will issue or 
approve the final plat, unless otherwise expressly modified by way of this Agreement 
or subsequent, written agreement of all Parties, adopted by way of addendum to this 
Agreement.  City accepts no ownership, liability, responsibility or otherwise for the 
installed utilities or infrastructure covered by this section. 

b. City agrees to defer, during Phase 3 only of Oak Hills, the requirement for Developer 
to construct the infrastructure of the following (“Deferred Infrastructure”):  

1. One thousand three hundred twenty-eight linear feet (1,328 LF) along Samuel 
Sturgis Avenue (referred to as Leon Avenue in the Infrastructure 
Development Agreement for Oak Hills, Phase 1; dated May 5, 2021); and 

2. 10” water main extension along the northern boundary line of the Property 
adjacent to West Farm Road 170, extending from the intersection of Farm 
Road 170 and Lyon Avenue to the eastern boundary line of the Property, more 

specifically described in Exhibit B. 

c. Developer acknowledges that construction of the Deferred Infrastructure is merely 
being deferred during construction of Phase 3 and that all required infrastructure of 
Oak Hills must still be completed by Developer in accord with the terms and provisions 
of the approved plans for Oak Hills.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as 
a waiver of the requirement that Developer complete construction of the Deferred 
Infrastructure.  

d. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the City to construct or pay 
for any of the Deferred Infrastructure or any other infrastructure on the Property. 

e. The Parties agree that the cost of the Deferred Infrastructure shall be calculated and 
determined based on a proportionate percentage of the total lots in Oak Hills using 
costs estimated based upon data available at the time this Agreement is executed, as 
follows: 

1. Per the Preliminary Plat, of the one hundred thirty-five (135) total lots in Oak 
Hills, twenty-seven (27) lots comprise Oak Hills Phase 1, the equivalent of 
20% of the total lots in Oak Hills; and 19 lots comprise Oak Hills Phase 3, the 
equivalent of 14.07% of the total lots in Oak Hills.  

2. The combined proportional share of lots in Phase 1 and Phase 3 of Oak Hills 
equals 34.07% of the total lots of Oak Hills. 

3. Based upon relevant data available at the time of execution of this Agreement, 
the total estimated cost to construct the Deferred Infrastructure is $802,957.34. 

4. The proportionate share of Phase 1 and Phase 3 (34.07%) of the Deferred 
Infrastructure total estimated cost equals would be $273,567.57 ($243,205.15 
of which accounts for Samuel Sturgis Avenue and $30,362.42 of which 
accounts for the water main extension). 

5. The Parties agree the costs shown in this section are merely estimates based 
upon the relevant data available at the time this Agreement is executed, and 
such estimates are neither intended to be nor shall be binding upon either party 
to pay the amounts shown herein; but rather, the actual costs of the Deferred 

116

Item 12.



3 of 7 | P a g e  

 

Infrastructure shall be paid by the responsible party once those costs are able 
to be determined with exactitude. 

f. Developer agrees to secure, through either a letter of credit or other security deemed 
acceptable by the City and as payable to the City (“Surety”), the proportional 
amount(s) of the Deferred Infrastructure as set forth above in paragraph 2(e)(4)), which 
shall be held by the City as security for the construction of the Deferred Infrastructure.  
Developer agrees and acknowledges that the City will not issue any permits for Oak 
Hills until it receives the security from Developer as required by this paragraph.  

g. The Surety shall be valid for a minimum period of four (4) years with an additional 
redemption period of six (6) months for the City to initiate, if necessary, collection 
efforts on the Surety. 

h. Once the Deferred Infrastructure has been constructed in its entirety and to the 
satisfaction of the City within its sole discretion after the City has completed its 
inspection(s), the City shall return the Surety to Developer. 

i. Should Developer fail to complete construction of the Deferred Infrastructure in its 
entirety within four (4) years after the date of execution of this Agreement, the City 
shall have, at its sole decision, the right to pursue any of the following: 

1. Pursuant to an amended agreement, extend the Surety on a year-by-year basis 
to allow for the completion of the Deferred Infrastructure; or 

2. Return the Surety to the Developer. At no time will the City return the Surety 
to anyone other than the Developer; or 

3. Collect the full amount of the Surety for use by the City. Should the City elect 
to collect the full amount of the Surety, the City shall be allowed to utilize the 
funds from the Surety to either complete the Deferred Infrastructure on the 
Property or use the funds for other infrastructure improvements in the City or 
a combination thereof as determined by the City. 

3. Easements:  Developer agrees to execute any easements and/or rights-of-way reasonably 

required in order for City to perform any work it may be obligated to perform under this Agreement and 
in order for City to provide future maintenance on the Property after Developer has completed its work. 
Said easements will be provided by Developer to City at no cost to City.  The Parties additionally 
acknowledge and agree that City may need further easements and/or rights-of-way that allow for the 
extension of any work performed under this Agreement. The Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to 
allow City to acquire such further easements as become necessary from Developer.  Should any easements 
and/or rights-of-way under this Agreement not be in use or no longer be necessary for the Parties to 
complete the Development, City agrees to take the reasonably necessary steps to vacate said easements 
and/or rights-of-way within ninety (90) days of being notified by Developer of its desire to vacate the 
easements and/or rights-of-way executed pursuant to this Agreement. The Parties agree and understand 
such vacation requires multiple steps, including a public hearing, a hearing and recommendation before 
City’s Planning and Zoning Commission, and approval by City Council through an Ordinance. 

 

4. Conflict of Interest:  No salaried director, officer or employee of City, and no member of 
City Council, shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  A violation of this 
provision renders this Agreement null and void.  Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in 
Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated. 

 

5. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Parties 
and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements unless excluded herein. This 
Agreement may not be modified or amended other than in writing as agreed to by the Parties. 

 

117

Item 12.



4 of 7 | P a g e  

 

6. Default by Developer and Termination:  If through any cause, Developer shall fail to 

timely and satisfactorily fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, become insolvent, or violate any of the 
covenants, agreements or stipulations contained in this Agreement, City shall deliver written notice of the 
same to Developer and if such failure or violation is not cured within thirty days thereafter (or such longer 
period of time as is reasonably necessary so long as Developer begins to cure such failure or violation within 
such thirty-day period and thereafter diligently pursues the same to completion), City shall thereupon have 
the right to terminate this Agreement by giving at least five days prior written notice of such termination, 
specifying the effective date thereof.  If City elects to terminate under this provision, City shall have the 
right to immediately collect on the Surety notwithstanding and without regard for the four (4) year period 
referenced in paragraph 2(i) of this Agreement. 

 

7. Default by City and Termination: If through any cause, City shall fail to fulfill its 

obligations under this Agreement, become insolvent, or violate any of the covenants, agreements or 
stipulations contained in this Agreement, Developer shall deliver written notice of the same to City, and if 
such failure or violation is not cured within thirty (30) days thereafter (or such longer period of time as is 
reasonably necessary so long as City begins to cure such failure or violation within such thirty-day period 
and thereafter diligently pursues the same to completion), then Developer shall thereupon have the right 
to terminate this Agreement by giving at least five days prior written notice of such termination, specifying 
the effective date thereof.  If Developer elects to terminate under this provision, Developer shall be 
responsible to reimburse City for all actual costs City incurs in completing any remaining work required 
under this Agreement.  Termination of this Agreement shall be Developer’ sole remedy for any default by 
City under this Agreement. 

 

8. Jurisdiction and Venue:  This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been fully 
executed and made by the Parties in the State of Missouri and thus is governed by the laws of the State of 
Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from this 
Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 

 

9. Dispute:  In the event City is the prevailing party in any litigation arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement, City shall be entitled to recover from the Developer all reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
expenses actually incurred by City in enforcing its rights under this Agreement.  

 

10. Liability:  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any liability on behalf 

of City for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages. Developer agrees that the 
type of work to be performed under this Agreement will cause damage to the Property, and Developer 
agrees that City shall not be liable for any damages caused to the Property outside of that necessary to 
complete the Public Improvements contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

11. Independent Contractor:  The Parties to this Agreement are separate and independent 
from each other. This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any type of joint venture or partnership 
between the Parties. 

 

12. Execution:  The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and 

emailed shall have the legal effect of original signatures. In addition to facsimile or scanned and email 
signatures, this Agreement may be executed by the Parties in accordance with the applicable version of the 
Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (“UETA”) and the Electronic Signatures in Global and National 
Commerce Act (“ESIGN”).  The Parties hereto agree to conduct transactions by electronic means and 
hereby affirmatively consent to use electronic records to memorialize and execute this Agreement and any 
alterations thereto. At the request of any party, the Parties shall promptly exchange executed original 
counterparts of this Agreement or any amendment. 

 

118

Item 12.



5 of 7 | P a g e  

 

13. Survival:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 

hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as provided in this 
Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the rights and benefits afforded Developer under this 
Agreement shall run with the Property and shall be enforceable by and for the benefit of any and all 
successor owners of the Property without further consideration to or consent by City. The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that at the request of any Party, a memorandum of this Agreement shall be duly 
executed by the Parties and recorded in the real estate records of Greene County, Missouri; provided, 
however, this Agreement shall be binding and enforceable as between City and any current or future owner 
of the Property without recording thereof. 

 

14. Headings:  The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall 

not limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 
 

15. Whereas Clauses:  The “Whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 

16. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any Party without the prior written 
consent of the other Parties. 

 

17. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this Agreement be 

construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses regarding sovereign immunity, 
governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state constitutions, statutes, and/or laws. 

 

18. Severability Clause:  A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part, of this Agreement shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 

 

19. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval:  This Agreement is contingent upon City having 
sufficient funds available to perform the Work covered by this Agreement. Developer shall have no right 
of action against City in the event City is unable to perform its obligations under this Agreement as the 
result of insufficient funds. Further, this Agreement is subject to and conditioned upon approval by 
ordinance by the City Council. 

 

20. Supplemental Agreements/Additional Action:  The Parties agree to cooperate fully, to 

execute any supplemental agreements, and to take all additional actions that may be reasonably necessary 
or appropriate to give full force and effect to the basic terms and intent of this Agreement. 

 

21. Waiver:  The waiver by one Party of any provision or breach of this Agreement shall not 

be deemed a waiver of any other provision or breach of this Agreement. 
 

22. Contract Documents:  The Agreement shall consist of the following: 
 
a. This Agreement; 
b. Exhibit A – Legal Description; 
c. Exhibit B – Approved Development Plan; 
d. Any properly executed amendments or addendums. 

 

23. Notices:  Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed 

to have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following 
offices or when notice is received after being deposited in the United States Mail, 
Registered or Certified, with postage thereon prepaid as follows: to City:  

 

119

Item 12.



6 of 7 | P a g e  

 

To City: City of Republic, Missouri 

 Attn: City Administrator 

 213 North Main Street 

 Republic, Missouri 65738 
 

To Developer: Turner Residential Holding, LLC 

 ATTN: Shawn Turner  

 328 South Ave 

 Springfield, Missouri 65806 
 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE, Page 7 of 7] 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 

  

120

Item 12.



7 of 7 | P a g e  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 

day and year first above written. 

 

TURNER RESIDENTIAL HOLDING, LLC: 
 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

       (Signature) 

 

       _____________________________________     

       (Printed Name) 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        (Title) 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI  

 

 

By:  _____________________________________ 

        David Cameron, City Administrator 

 

Approved as to Finance/Budget: 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Bob Ford, Finance Director 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 
 

       _____________________________________ 

       Megan McCullough, City Attorney 

 

  

 

121

Item 12.



Exhibit A

BOOX 2018, PAGE O06,+28t8

IRACT A
I}IAT CETAN PARCE. OR IRIICT 97 PTND BENG A PART tr II{E NORIHEAST

orx,RIER (NEr/4) lN SECmN ls. TOWNSHIP 26 NORTH. MNGI 23 lvEsr, N
GRE.IE COUNTY, $SSOUR. BET{G }TORE P^RIICUIIroY OESCtrEE) AS FO,I.OWS:

COMUENONG AT AN E0S'nl{G RON nN AT TIE i{ORT}EAST CORIIER OF IHE
NoRltEASf OU RIER (NEt/4) oF SrlD NEl,/4; ItE,.cE xBa20'02Y, Art{G IHE
NORIH lrNE OF SAID t{E1/1 tr IHE NE1/4. A DISIANCE OF 160.00 FEET TO AN
IRON PIN SET 

^T 
If NORITITEST COR}q OF IRACI 2 AS D€SCRM N EOOK

2OO,+ AT PAGI 057,+56-O.t il IHE GREE{E COT NIY REOROER'S OFICE I}CilCE
NEA2O'O2Y, COr.IIlNUlr{G AIONG SAD M)RrIH UNE A o|STA,{CE OF 920.55 FEt
TO AN IRON PIN SEf FOR A PONNT OF BEGIi{NING: 'ltENCE S01'54'17Y. A
OEITNCE OF I55I.9O FEEI IO 

^}I 
IROI{ PN SET ON TI{E SOI,rIH UNE OF S^D

NEr,/,+ OF IllE NEt./4; ItEl.lCE ilE8t6'57.r,. A-ot{G SAID SOttIH IJNE A
DEf^NCE OF 254.05 FEE TO AN D(SING NON PIN AT II{E SOUT.ETST CORNER

OF IHE NORItlwEsr OUARIER (Nw1/4) OF SAID NE1/a; IHEilcE N6409'36,\Y.
AlOilc IHE SOJII{ ttNE 0F SAID tfl'l/4 OF Il{E NE1/4. A USfANCE 0F t33'+.6O
FEEI IO At{ D(|SI|NG IRON PIN AT IHE SOUIIIYIESI coRi{ER 0F SAD t{wll'r oF
It€ NEl/4. SAID POr{r AI.SO ENG Il€ SOrrIl€ASr COR}GR OF LOT 17 lN OI"DE
TOSN 

^T 
I}E KERR PI.^CI. 

^ 
RECOROED SU$,I!/EPN IN GRED{E COUNIY.

UESOUR; IIENCE NO!'52'+2T, AI.ONG r}f WEST Ul€ 0F S IO imlr/.+ OF It€
NEl,/,r. A5O 8AilG IHE AS-r UilE 0F SAID OiDE 1OWN AT ItE IGRR PLACg A

oF sAtD Nwr/4 oF IHE r€1/4. SrD Polllt A.sO Er.lG IIE NOf,IHE^ST CoRNER
OF S ID OIOE IOwN AT IIC XERR PIATCE IIE}ICE SBA20'02I' ALOIG ItE
NORIH l$E Of SAto Nwr,/,r OF Il€ NEl/4 AND IHE l\loRlll Ut€ OF SAl0 NEt/4
oF rHE NEr/4. A USiTA{CE OF 15E9.26 FEEr rO rtG POll{T 0F BEGNNINC. S ID
IRACT COltlTA[tE ,tE.5'195 ACRES (UORE OR LESS) AID E SUBJ&T IO ,$rt
EASAGNIS, RIGI|IS-OF-WAY. 

^ND 
RESTRICIIOilS OF R&ORD.

122

Item 12.



123

Item 12.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-24 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the 
Zoning Classification of Approximately Four (4) Acres of Real Property 
Located at 1192 South State Highway MM, from Agricultural (AG) to 
Heavy Industrial (M-2). 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

Susan Beine has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately 4 acres of property located 

at 1192 S St Hwy MM from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2).  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application consists of approximately 4 acres of land located at 

1192 S St Hwy MM; the property is currently the site of an unoccupied residence.   

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential and commercial 

development through proactive Rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are 

described generally throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations 

to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

 Goal:  Coordinate infrastructure development through the encouragement of redevelopment and 

integration of the former Brookline area. 

o Objective:  Support the development of an industrial/commercial center where 

infrastructure and transportation exist. 

The Rezoning of this parcel is consistent with City’s Adopted Plans.   

The subject property fronts St Hwy MM, which operates as an industrial corridor within the city.  The 

general trend of this area has been a transition from agricultural zoned properties and residential uses 

to manufacturing and commercial uses in conjunction with planned infrastructure improvements.    

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

124

Item 13.



 

The subject property is adjacent to an Agricultural (AG) zoned parcel bordering both the north and east 

property lines.  To the south is a second Agricultural (AG) zoned parcel.  Across St Hwy MM is the 

Republic Industrial subdivision, a preliminary platted Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoned subdivision consisting 

of five parcels.   

The Heavy Industrial (M-2) Zoning District is intended to support manufacturing and industrial related 

uses. 

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:   

City Water and Sewer systems have capacity to serve this property if the application is approved. 

Actual development of the property will require connecting to municipal water and sewer mains not 

currently located near the property.  The provision of sewer service to the property will require the 

construction of a lift station to serve the basin in which the subject property resides.  The precise path 

effluent would take to the Wastewater Treatment Facility is dependent on the siting of utilities and 

structures but is likely to flow from the site to Brookline North Lift Station, to Brookline South Lift 

Station, to Mcelhaney Lift Station and then to the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

The water system, named Lift Stations, and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently have capacity to 

serve the intended use. 

Transportation:   

The City waived the requirement for a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) in relation to this Rezone Application 

based on the presence of existing access from the site to St Hwy MM, a primary arterial class road set 

for anticipated expansion to 5 lanes in Fall of 2024.  

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain any areas of Special Flood Hazard Area (Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject property does contain an identified sinkhole.   

 

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the 

vicinity of the site, compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by 

municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony 

of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

 

125

Item 13.



BILL NO. 23-24  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-24 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY FOUR (4) ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1192 SOUTH STATE HIGHWAY MM, 

FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO HEAVY INDUSTRIAL (M-2) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s BUILDS Department received an Application from Wilson’s Creek Villas LLC 
(“Applicant”) for an amendment to the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map by rezoning approximately 
4 acres of real property located at 1192 South State Highway MM subdivision from Agricultural (AG) to 
Heavy Industrial (M-2); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City submitted the Application to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
(“Commission”) and set a public hearing before the Commission for July 10, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City published notice of the time and date of the public hearing at least fifteen 
(15) days in advance, on June 21, 2023, in the Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of the Application and public hearing to the record owners of all 
real properties within 185 feet of the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted the public hearing as scheduled on July 10, 2023, at 
which all interested persons and entities were afforded the opportunity to present evidence or 
statement, and after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact and submitted those along 
with its recommendations to the Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission, by a vote of four (4) Ayes to zero (0) Nays, recommended the 
approval of the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application was submitted to the Council for first read at its regular meeting on 
July 18, 2023, and submitted for second read at its regular meeting on August, 2023, after which the 
Council voted to approve the Application and amend the Zoning Code accordingly. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended to reflect the 
rezoning of the real property consisting of approximately four (4) acres of real 
property located at 1192 South State Highway MM, more fully identified in the 
legal description below, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2): 

 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4) OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-SIX (26), TOWNSHIP 
TWENTY-NINE (29), RANGE TWENTY-THREE (23), IN GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, 
THENCE NORTH 208.75 FEET, THENCE EAST 835 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 208.75 FEET, 
THENCE WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

126

Item 13.



BILL NO. 23-24  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-24 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

 
Section 2: In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, the 

Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and continue in full 
force and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance. 
 

Section 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 5:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 

127

Item 13.



128

Item 13.



129

Item 13.



130

Item 13.



131

Item 13.



132

Item 13.



133

Item 13.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-25 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the 
Zoning Classification of Approximately One Point One (1.1) Acres of Real 
Property Located at 2314, 2318, 2326 and 2330 East Timber Oak Street, 
from The 12 Stones Planned Development District (PDD) to Two-Family 
Residential (R-2). 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

Wilson’s Creek Villas LLC has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately 1.1 acres of 

property consisting of lots 2 through 5 of the Wilson’s Creek Villas subdivision from 12 Stones Planned 

Development District (PDD) to Two-Family (R-2).   

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application consists of approximately 1.1 acres of land within the 

Wilson’s Creek Villas subdivision; all subject properties are currently vacant.  The precise location of the 

subject properties are as follows: 

 2314 East Timber Oak Street 

 2318 East Timber Oak Street 

 2326 East Timber Oak Street 

 2330 East Timber Oak Street 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential and commercial 

development through proactive Rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are 

described generally throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations 

to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

 Goal:  Recognize potential infill sites as opportunities for development, while mitigating impacts to 

adjacent, established properties. 

134

Item 14.



 

o Objective:  Support the development of vacant parcels as opportunities for densification 

that is harmonious with surrounding development. 

The Rezoning of this parcel is consistent with City’s Adopted Plans.   

The general trend in the vicinity of the subject property consists of residential uses of varying intensities. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is adjacent to High-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H) lots to the east, Greene 

County-zoned Suburban Residence (R-1) lots to the south, and two-family lots in the Oak Court Place 

Planned Development District to the west. 

Greene County’s Suburban Residence (R-1) zoning district is intended to provide for detached single-

family residential development in areas with access to public utilities services.  

The Two-Family Residential (R-2) Zoning District is intended to permit duplex-style dwellings. 

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:   

Development of the property will require connecting to existing municipal water and sewer mains 

located near the property.  Both an 8-inch water main and an 8-inch gravity sewer main are located on, 

or in adjacent right-of-way of, the subject parcel.  The sanitary sewer will flow from the site to the 

McElhaney and Shuyler Creek Lift Stations before it is pumped to the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

The water system, named Lift Station, and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently have capacity to 

serve the intended use. 

Transportation:   

The properties will have driveway access along E. Timber Oak St.  

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required for the Rezoning Application.   

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain any areas of Special Flood Hazard Area (Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject property does not contain any identified sinkholes.  

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the 

vicinity of the site, compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by 

municipal facilities.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony 

of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

 

135

Item 14.



BILL NO. 23-25  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-25 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY ONE POINT ONE (1.1) ACRES OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2314, 2318, 2326 AND 
2330 EAST TIMBER OAK STREET, FROM THE 12 STONES PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD) TO 

TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s BUILDS Department received an Application from Wilson’s Creek Villas LLC 
(“Applicant”) for an amendment to the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map by rezoning approximately 
1.1 acres of real property consisting of four lots (Lots 2 through 5) within the Wilson’s Creek Villas 
subdivision from the 12 Stones Planned Development District (PDD) to Two-Family Residential (R-2); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City submitted the Application to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
(“Commission”) and set a public hearing before the Commission for July 10, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City published notice of the time and date of the public hearing at least fifteen 
(15) days in advance, on June 21, 2023, in the Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of the Application and public hearing to the record owners of all 
real properties within 185 feet of the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted the public hearing as scheduled on July 10, 2023, at 
which all interested persons and entities were afforded the opportunity to present evidence or 
statement, and after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact and submitted those along 
with its recommendations to the Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission, by a vote of four (4) Ayes to zero (0) Nays, recommended the 
approval of the Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application was submitted to the Council for first read at its regular meeting on 
July 18, 2023, and submitted for second read at its regular meeting on August, 2023, after which the 
Council voted to approve the Application and amend the Zoning Code accordingly. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended to reflect the 
rezoning of the real property consisting of approximately 1.1 acres of real 
property consisting of four lots (Lots 2 through 5) within the Wilson’s Creek 
Villas subdivision, more fully identified in the legal description(s) below, from 
the 12 Stones Planned Development District (PDD) to Two-Family Residential (R-
2: 

 
   DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO REZONE 
 

136

Item 14.



BILL NO. 23-25  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-25 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OR TRACT OF LAND BEING LOCATED IN THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, BEING 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID EAST 1/4 OF THE WEST 1/2; 
THENCE, S02°10'30"W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2, A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE APPARENT SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FARM ROAD 174, AND THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
THENCE, S02°10'34"W, A DISTANCE OF 379.23 FEET; 
THENCE, S01°57'44"W, A DISTANCE OF 764.20 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE, S88°34'08"E, A DISTANCE OF 217.61 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE TO THE RIGHT; 
THENCE, ALONG SAID CURVE OT THE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 475.10 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE 
OF 45.99 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05°32'47", ALONG A CHORD BEARING S85°47'45"E, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 
45.97 FEET TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE TO THE LEFT; 
THENCE, ALONG SAID REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 653.84 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 73.14 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06°24'33", ALONG A CHORD BEARING S84°53'54"E, A CHORD 
DISTANCE OF 73.10 FEET; 
THENCE, S88°11'37"E, A DISTANCE OF 0.90 FEET; 
THENCE, S01°48'23"W, A DISTANCE OF 141.67 FEET; 
THENCE, N88°47'40"W, A DISTANCE OF 337.884 FEET; 
THENCE, N01°57'44"E, A DISTANCE OF 149.91 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
CONTAINING 1.1 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.    
 

 
Section 2: In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, the 

Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and continue in full 
force and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance. 
 

Section 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 5:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
 

137

Item 14.



BILL NO. 23-25  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-25 3 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 

138

Item 14.



139

Item 14.



140

Item 14.



141

Item 14.



142

Item 14.



143

Item 14.



144

Item 14.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-26 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Execute an Agreement with the City of Springfield, 
Missouri for the Purchase of Programming Code to Design an Interface 
for Transferring Information from the Republic Police Department to 
the Prosecuting Attorney Management System. 

Submitted By: Megan McCullough, City Attorney 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

To approve an agreement with the City of Springfield for certain programming code designed to 

assist the City in developing code required to interface the Republic Police Department’s records 

management system, Niche, with the Prosecuting Attorney Management System used for filing citations 

with the Court. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Springfield developed a computer program that allows data from the Springfield Police 

Department’s Records Management System (“Niche”) to be automatically transferred to the Prosecuting 

Attorney Management System (PAMS), used by municipal prosecutors to file citations with the court.   The 

Republic Police Department also uses Niche for issuance of tickets.  Currently, the City’s Prosecuting 

Attorney retrieves all citations data from Niche and manually transfers the data to the portal required for filing 

citations with the Republic Municipal Court (“Show-Me Courts”).   In order to automate the process of data 

transfer from Niche (entry point) to Show-Me Courts (destination point), the City will need develop its own 

code that essentially enables Niche to communicate with PAMS, which then auto-transfers the data to Show-

Me Courts.   

The programming code Springfield has offered to provide the City would allow the City to more 

quickly and efficiently develop the code necessary for process automation.  The City would take the code 

provided by Springfield to a program developer (with separate approval from council), who would write 

the City’s personalized code for interfacing the involved programs.  The code provided by Springfield will 

benefit the City by significantly reducing the cost of a program developer and reducing the time required 

for development of the interface.  Springfield has agreed to provide the code for the total cost of $10.00.   

The development of a program is still under consideration and would be presented to Council for 

approval before moving forward.  This is a no-risk first step that will reduce the time waiting for the 

development of the program if staff decide to move forward with the developer. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

145

Item 15.



BILL NO. 23-26  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-26 1 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, MISSOURI FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROGRAMMING 

CODE TO DESIGN AN INTERFACE FOR TRANSFERRING INFORMATION FROM THE REPUBLIC POLICE 

DEPARTMENT TO THE PROSECUTING ATTORNEY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the laws of 
the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Springfield (“Springfield”) Information Systems Department developed a 
programming interface capable of transferring data from citations issued by the Springfield Police 
Department in the law enforcement information management system Niche (“Niche”) to the Prosecuting 
Attorney Management System (“PAMS”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Republic Police Department utilizes Niche to issue citations for law violations 

committed in the City;  
 
WHEREAS, currently, the City’s Prosecuting Attorney’s Office retrieves all citations data from Niche 

and manually transfers the data to the portal required for filing citations with the Republic Municipal Court 
(“Show-Me Courts”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to automate the transfer of this data from Niche to Show-Me Courts, 

which requires certain programming code to interface Niche with PAMS; and    
  
 WHEREAS, Springfield has offered to sell a component of the necessary programming code to the 

City pursuant to the terms of a contract between Springfield and the City, which will ultimately allow the City 

to develop its personalized interface between Niche and PAMS more quickly and cost-efficiently. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into a contract with the City of Springfield, Missouri, for the purchase of 
certain programming code that will assist the City in developing its interface 
required to transfer data from the Republic Police Department to the Prosecuting 
Attorney Management System, to be in substantially the same form as that 
attached hereto and labeled “Attachment 1.” 

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance. 
 

Section 3: The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  

Section 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 

146

Item 15.



BILL NO. 23-26  ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

BILL NO. 23-26 2 ORDINANCE NO. 23- 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of _______________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  

 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 
 

 

147

Item 15.



                                           tmp76A3                                Contract Admin/Law Revised Dec 2021                                Page 1 of 3 

ROUTING 

ORDER 

(1) ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT (2) CONTRACTOR (3) FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

(4) LAW DEPARTMENT (5) CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE (6) CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
      

 
TERMINATION DATE 

      

 
                  CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 
(   X   )   NEW CONTRACT 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD CITY OF REPUBLIC 

City of Springfield 

840 Boonville 

Springfield, MO   65802 

Phone: 417-864-1626     Fax: 471-864-1122 

Attn: Neil Slagle, Director of Information Systems 

City of Republic, Missouri 

204 North Main Avenue 

Republic, MO 65738 

Phone:                Fax:       

Attn:        

Email:       

 
CONTRACT 

 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this ______ day of ____________________, 20___, by the parties identified above, 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
THAT, WHEREAS, the City of Springfield Information Systems Department developed a software batch program (the 

“Programming Interface”) that queries citations issued by the Springfield Police Department from the Niche Records Management 
System (“Niche”) and sends information from the citations to the Prosecuting Attorney Management System (“PAMS”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic desires to use the Programming Interface to convey citations issued by the Republic Police 
Department from Niche to PAMS; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Springfield finds that transferring the Programming Interface to the City of Republic serves the public 

purpose of promoting efficiency in government operations. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for the considerations herein expressed, it is agreed by and between the City and the Contractor as follows: 
 

1. Transfer of the Programming Interface.  The City of Springfield agrees to provide the Programming Interface to the City of 
Republic.  The City of Springfield is under no obligation to provide any maintenance, support, or updates of the Programming Interface 
after it is provided to the City of Republic.  The City of Republic shall not transfer or sell the Programming Interface to any third party 
without first obtaining the City’s express written permission, except the City of Republic may transfer the Programming Interface to 
no more than one (1) third party software developer solely for the purpose of developing the City of Republic’s fully integrated product, 
at the City of Republic’s sole expense.  In the event the City of Republic shall hereafter determine a need to transfer the Programming 
Interface to any third party other than the aforementioned third party developer, the City shall obtain the written content of the City 
of Springfield prior to making any such transfer. 

 
2. Payment.  In consideration for the City of Springfield providing the Programming Interface, the City of Republic agrees to pay 

the City of Springfield the sum of ten and 00/100 dollars ($10.00). 
 

3. Exchange of Data.  All information, data, and reports in the City of Springfield’s possession and necessary for installation and 
use of the Interface shall be furnished to the City of Republic, and the parties shall reasonably cooperate in connection with this 
Contract.   

 
4. Term.  Performance of this Contract shall commence as soon as practicable after the execution of this Contract and shall 

terminate upon the City of Springfield’s transfer of the Programming Interface to the City of Republic. 
 

148

Item 15.



                                           tmp76A3                                Contract Admin/Law Revised Dec 2021                                Page 2 of 3 

5. NO WARRANTIES.  IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD IS PROVIDING THE 
PROGRAMMING INTERFACE “AS IS.”  THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
OF ALL KIND, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL WARRANTIES AS TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE 
PROGRAMMING INTERFACE OR ITS FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

 
6. Termination of Contract.  Either party may terminate this Contract in its entirety by giving the other party fifteen (15) days 

written notice.   
 

7. Conflicts.   No salaried officer or employee of the City of Springfield and no member of the Springfield City Council shall have 
a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract.  A violation of this provision renders the Contract void.  Any applicable federal 
regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq. RSMo. shall not be violated.  Contractor covenants that it presently 
has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of services to be performed under this Contract.  The Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this 
Contract no person having such interest shall be employed or compensated by Contractor. 

 
8. Assignment.   Neither party may assign their rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

the other party. 
 
9. Confidentiality of Documents; Missouri Sunshine Law.  Except as required by Chapter 610 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri 

(“Sunshine Law”) to make information constituting an “open record” under the Sunshine Law publicly available, the Programming 
Interface and any associated reports, data, designs, or similar information given to the City of Republic from the City of Springfield 
under this Contract shall be kept as confidential and shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the City of Republic 
without prior written approval of the City of Springfield.  

 
10. Liability.  Both the City of Springfield and the City of Republic hereby release and hold harmless the other, their Boards, 

Councils, agents, officers, employees, successors and assigns with respect to any and all injury, death, loss or damage to person or 
property, whether caused by negligence or otherwise, in any way related to use of the Programming Interface. Nothing contained 
herein shall be considered a waiver of the defenses by either party of sovereign immunity, official immunity, or the public duty doctrine. 

 
11. Notices.  All notices required or permitted hereinunder and required to be in writing may be given by FAX, electronic mail (if 

to Contractor), or by first class mail addressed to City or Contractor at the addresses shown above.  The date of delivery of any notice 
provided by mail shall be the date falling on the third day after the day of its mailing.  The date of delivery of notice by FAX transmission 
or electronic mail (if to Contractor) shall be deemed to be the date transmission occurs, except where the transmission is not 
completed by 5:00 p.m. on a regular business day at the location of the receiving party, in which case the date of delivery shall be 
deemed to fall on the next regular business day for the receiving party. 

 
12. Jurisdiction.   This Contract and every question arising hereunder shall be construed or determined according to the laws of 

the State of Missouri.  Should any part of this Contract be litigated, venue shall be proper only in the Circuit Court of Greene County, 
Missouri.   

 
13. Entire Agreement.   This Contract contains the entire agreement of the parties.  No modification, amendment, or waiver of 

any of the provisions of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing specifically referring hereto, and signed by both parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto evidence their agreement to the terms of this Contract by their signatures below. 
 

CERTIFICATE OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 

I certify that the expenditure contemplated by this document is within the 

purpose of the appropriation to which it is to be charged and that there is an 

unencumbered balance of appropriated and available funds to pay therefor. 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Director of Finance or Acting Director 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

City Attorney or designee 

149

Item 15.



                                           tmp76A3                                Contract Admin/Law Revised Dec 2021                                Page 3 of 3 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI:  

 
 
By:______________________________________________ 
 
Name & Title:_____________________________________ 

          
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, MISSOURI 
 

 

By:______________________________________________        
City Manager or designee

 

150

Item 15.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-41 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of a Task 
Order for Engineer-Owner Agreement for Task Order No. 14 with Burns 
and McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc. Relating to the Wastewater 
Treatment Improvements. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

Issue Statement 

To Authorize the Execution of Task order 14 with Burns & McDonnell. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

As part of the master service agreement with Burns & McDonnell, the BUILDS Department would like to 

authorize Task Order 14 with a not to exceed amount of $60,000.  Burns & McDonnell will assist City of 

Republic in administering an internal closed-circuit television (TV) pipe inspection of 61,000 linear feet of 

sewer line, development and implementation of schedule and plan for addressing deficiencies discovered 

and assist in overseeing the lining projects. The work will be in conformance with the National Association 

of Sewer Services Companies (NASSCO) Pipeline Assessment Certification Program (PACP). Burns & 

McDonnell will review video and PACP Sewer Reports with Scoring provided by TV Contractor and provide 

a prioritized list of repairs to reduce I/I in the city’s collection system. Segments to be inspected are based 

on the findings of the smoke testing completed under Task Order No. 13. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

151

Item 16.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-41 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-41 1  
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A TASK ORDER FOR ENGINEER-

OWNER AGREEMENT FOR TASK ORDER NO. 14 WITH BURNS AND MCDONNELL ENGINEERING 

CO., INC. RELATING TO THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 

and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2018, via Resolution 18-R-11, the Council authorized the City to 

engage Burns & McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc. (“Engineer”) to provide engineering design and 

construction services on the water, wastewater and stormwater portions of the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan (“the Project”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such authorization, on or about January 2, 2018, the City and Engineer 

entered into a Professional Services Agreement – Task Order – Engineer-Owner Agreement (“Master 

Services Agreement”), which would govern the Project; and  

WHEREAS, Section 3 of the Master Services Agreement authorizes the City to engage Engineer 

for additional services as may be deemed appropriate or necessary in connection with the Project; and 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2020, via Resolution 20-R-31, the Council authorized the City to engage 

Engineer to provide the engineering design of the wastewater treatment facility and collection system 

(“WWTP”) as part of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2022, via Resolution 22-R-72, the Council authorized the City to 

engage Engineer to perform smoke testing as an additional service under the Master Services Agreement 

(pursuant to Task Order No. 13), for the purpose of assisting with the WWTP improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the smoke testing revealed certain areas of inflow and infiltration into the City’s 

sanitary sewer system, which the City now seeks to inspect and remediate with Engineer’s supervision 

and assistance pursuant to a task order under the Master Services Agreement, more specifically, Task 

Order No. 14; and  

WHEREAS, the City now seeks the Council’s authorization to execute Task Order No. 14 with 

Engineer, allowing the City to move forward with inspection and remediation of the affected areas of the 

sanitary sewer system pursuant to Task Order No. 14 under the Master Services Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to execute 
the Task Order for Engineer-Owner Agreement, Task Order No. 14, to be in 
substantially the same form as that attached hereto as “Attachment 1,” and 
further to provide or execute any other document(s) required to effect full and 
complete execution of said agreement. 

 
Section 2.  The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

152

Item 16.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-41 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-41 2  
  

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 

153

Item 16.



 

 Exhibit A – Task Order No. 14  2023 Sanitary Sewer Clean, TV and Lining Support 
1 

TASK ORDER FOR 
ENGINEER-OWNER AGREEMENT 

 
Exhibit A – Task Order No. 14 

 
Task Order No. 14 is entered into and authorized by City of Republic, Missouri this __ day of June 2023, 
by and between City of Republic, Missouri (hereinafter called OWNER) and Burns & McDonnell Engineering 
Company, Inc. (hereinafter called ENGINEER).   
 
The parties agree that the ENGINEER shall perform the following Services in accordance with the terms of 
the Engineer-Owner Agreement dated January 2, 2018: 

Scope of Services: 

A. ENGINEER will assist OWNER in administering an internal closed-circuit television (TV) pipe 
inspection and lining project. For a description of the scope of services to be provided, see attached 
Exhibit B.   

Compensation:  

A. Amount of Payment: 

1. For Services performed, OWNER shall pay ENGINEER the lump sum amount of Sixty 
Thousand Dollars ($60,000.00). 

2. For additional, reduced, or changed Scope of Services, the amount of payment shall be adjusted 
on a mutually agreeable lump sum basis. 

B. Statements: 

1. Monthly statements will be submitted by ENGINEER to OWNER.  Statements will be based on 
ENGINEER’s estimated percent of Services completed at the end of the preceding month. 

Time of Service: 

A. ENGINEER will proceed with providing the services set forth herein within approximately 5 days of 
the execution of this Task Order.  It is anticipated that these services will be completed within 
approximately 180 days of the execution of this Task Order. 

B. Completing the services within the above time frame is contingent upon timely receipt of required 
information, approval, and/or reviews. 

Other Terms:  

A. The terms of this Task Order supersede any contrary terms of the Engineer-Owner Agreement. 

  

 

 

154

Item 16.



 

 Exhibit A – Task Order No. 14  2023 Sanitary Sewer Clean, TV and Lining Support 
2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this TASK ORDER as of the day and year 
first above written. 

OWNER: City of Republic, Missouri  ENGINEER: Burns & McDonnell  
Engineering Company, Inc. 

By:  

 

 By:  

Name:   Name:  

Title:   Title:  

155

Item 16.



 

Exhibit B – Task Order No. 14 Page 1 2023 Sanitary Sewer Clean, TV and Lining Support
  

Exhibit B – Task Order No. 14 
 

City of Republic, Missouri 
2023 Sanitary Sewer Clean, TV and Lining Support 

 
Objective: ENGINEER will assist OWNER in administering an internal closed-circuit television (TV) pipe 
inspection and lining project. The work will be in conformance with the National Association of Sewer 
Services Companies (NASSCO) Pipeline Assessment Certification Program (PACP). ENGINEER will 
review video and PACP Sewer Reports with Scoring provided by TV Contractor and provide a prioritized 
list of repairs to reduce I/I in the OWNER’s collection system. Segments to be inspected are based on the 
findings of the smoke testing completed under Task Order No. 13. 

Scope of Services: 

1. Project Management 

a. Manage and administer project and allocate ENGINEER’s resources to complete the 
project. Prepare and submit monthly invoices. 

b. Provide Quality Control/Quality Assurance for ENGINEER’s services. 

2. I/I Program Development 

a. Assist the OWNER with the preparation of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the selection 
of TV Contractor to provide inspection for the 61,000 LF of sewers to be cleaned and 
televised. Additionally, the RFP will include a request for unit prices to complete lining as 
required. 

b. Conduct monthly progress meetings with OWNER and TV Contractor during investigation, 
design and construction phases. Prepare agenda and distribute meeting notes. Six (6) 
meetings are included in this scope. 

d. Assist the OWNER in responding to inquiries from property owners during investigation 
and construction phases of the project. 

e. Assist the OWNER to evaluate data management procedures for receiving and processing 
Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) data including NASSCO compliant PACP 
inspections and NASSCO Compliant MACP Inspections, smoke testing and dye testing 
results in support the OWNER’s I/I program. Procedure will include a strategy for tracking 
defects identified vs. removed and completed construction activities during execution of 
the I/I Program.   

f. Assist the OWNER with developing procedure for coordinating and prioritizing gravity 
sewer and/or manhole assets for inspection and/or rehabilitation as well as timing of post-
construction flow monitoring needs.  

3. Field Investigation  

a. Perform up to two (2) visits during work to observe progress of TV Contractor. 

b. Review and process the TV Contractor’s monthly payment requests (three anticipated), 
and forward to OWNER if deemed appropriate.   

c. Review TV Contractor’s documentation and administer the processing of ‘Heavy Cleaning 
Requests’, change orders, including applications for extension of the Contract Time. 
Evaluate the cost and scheduling aspects of all change orders and, where necessary, 
assist OWNER in negotiations with the Contractor to obtain a cost for the work.  

156

Item 16.



 

Exhibit B – Task Order No. 14 Page 2 2023 Sanitary Sewer Clean, TV and Lining Support
  

d. Review field investigation data as provided by the TV Contractor to develop prioritized 
repair list. Data provided by TV Contractor will include: 

i. PACP Access Database 

ii. PACP Sewer Reports with Scoring 

iii. PACP Pipe Run (Inspection) and Feature/Defect Photograph Reports 

iv. TV inspection data with viewer in the Inspector’s native software 

v. TV Video 

vi. Feature/Defect Photographs 

vii. Project Summary Report 

viii. Field Changes Map 

4. Prepare a Recommended Improvements Layout Map for the data collection area. Use orthographic 
imagery as the map background. Specific repairs being performed shall be identified using an 
appropriate legend.  

5. CIP Lining  

a. Based on the Recommended Improvements Layout Map for the data collection area, solicit 
a proposal from the TV Contractor to complete lining repairs as necessary.  

b. Perform up to two (2) visits during work to observe progress of TV Contractor. 

c. Review and process the TV Contractor’s monthly payment requests (three anticipated), 
and forward to OWNER if deemed appropriate.   

d. Evaluate the cost and scheduling aspects of all change orders and, where necessary, 
assist OWNER in negotiations with the TV Contractor to obtain a cost for the work.  

Schedule: 

1. The anticipated key project milestones are listed below.  
 

Milestone Date Activity 

Week of 6/12/2023 Notice to Proceed (this Task Order) 

Week of 9/12/2023 Inspection Field Work Completed by TV Contractor 

Week of 12/12/2023 Lining Field Work Completed by TV Contractor 

Week of 12/12/2023 Estimated Project Completion 

*This schedule is dependent on the TV Contractor’s completion of work. 

 

Responsibilities of OWNER: 

1. Attend project meetings. 

157

Item 16.



 

Exhibit B – Task Order No. 14 Page 3 2023 Sanitary Sewer Clean, TV and Lining Support
  

2. Review and provide comments on the draft deliverables. 

3. Respond to requests for information submitted by ENGINEER in a timely manner. 

4. Advertise RFP documents for selection of the TV Contractor. 

5. Provide and respond to resident and property owner concerns. 

6. Complete point repairs, etc. as required to support lining. 

158

Item 16.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-42 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Sewer 
Flow Metering Equipment to Core & Main LP. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award a bid for Sewer monitoring flow equipment to Core & Main LP.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The city requested bids for Sewer flow monitoring equipment and received 2 bids, of which Core & Main 

LP was the lowest at $56,092.15. This equipment will be utilized as the city implements I&I reduction 

strategies to track effectiveness and identify other areas of high I&I throughout the city.  

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

159

Item 17.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-42 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-42 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE BID FOR SEWER FLOW METERING EQUIPMENT 
TO CORE & MAIN LP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 

and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 

the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, as part of the City’s ongoing efforts to reduce inflow and infiltration into the City’s 

wastewater and sewer system, the City’s BUILDS Department has identified a need to monitor and track 

inflow and infiltration (“I&I”); and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to accurately and efficiently monitor and track the I&I, the BUILDS 

Department recommends the use of Sewer Flow Metering Equipment (“the Equipment”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City recently published an Invitation for Bids wherein it solicited sealed bids for 

the provision of the Equipment; and 

 

WHEREAS, two bids were received in response to the City’s solicitation; and  

 
WHEREAS, after hearing presentation and recommendations by City staff, the City Council 

desires to accept the bid submitted by Core & Main LP, as it appears to demonstrate the necessary 
qualifications for a responsible bid and is the lowest cost to the City at an estimated total expenditure of 
$56,092.15. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The submitted bid from Core & Main LP, attached as “Exhibit 1” and expressly 

incorporated herein, is hereby accepted at the estimated cost(s) shown thereon, 

but in no event to exceed a total of $56,092.15 without separate approval from 

Council. 

 
Section 2.   The City Administrator, and his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

 

Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 

 

 

       

160

Item 17.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-42 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-42 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 
 
 

161

Item 17.



City of Republic, IVO
Sanitary Sewer FIow lVetering 2023

RESPONSE TO INVITATION TO BID FOR

SUBMISSION DATE:
IVIONDAY, JULY 10,2023
3:00PM CST

SUBMITTED TO:
CITY OF REPUBLIC
C/O CITY CLERK, LAURA BURBRIDGE
2,I3 N. TMAIN AVENUE
REPUBLIC, MO 65738

t-lf,TfN

l-fl;f[.rl

) Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 1 of '18
162

Item 17.



MATN

July 1}th,2023
City of Republic
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main Avenue
Republic, MO

Response to Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering 2023 IFB

Core & Main LP ("Core & Main") is pleased to present the following response to the City of
Republic's request for Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering. Core & Main has a long history of
providing our customers high-quality. We are proud to present this Advanced Monitoring
Solution to the City with our best-in-class vendor partners, Utility Systems Science & Software
(U53), and infinitii ai.

Core & Main will provide five (5) flow meters and one (1) rain gauge. The data will be tracked
and monitored on cloud-based redundant, secure servers, with access from virtually any web-
enabled device.

\-/ The advantages of selecting the Core & Main Team include the following:

. lmproved data accuracy with non-contact AV Flow Meters.

. Elimination of Confined Space Entry Risks.

. Near-Real time Metrics Dashboard/Reporting.

. Local Core & Main Branch Office - Springfield.

. 24x7 secure server access via a web browser to view system status and data.

. Direct, relevant experience of over 15 years with Wastewater Monitoring Services.

. An excellent reputation for providing high quality-engineering Services within stipulated
budgets and schedules.

. US3 is one of the USA's leading sewer flow monitoring companies and a Top 100
Minority-owned Engineering Company.

Our Advanced Monitoring Solution is purpose-built for utilities and will allow the City of
Republic to meet its objective of obtaining 5 flow meters and 1 rain gauge before December 1't,
2023.

Core & Main is committed to helping the City of Republic through an integrated solution that
supports the requirements outlined in the lnvitation for Bid.

) Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformatien Page 2 of 18

163

Item 17.



Kaleb Breshears, Meter Specialist ll, will be the primary contact throughout the bid evaluation
and next steps.

Kaleb Breshears
Meter Specialist ll

ka leb. breshea rs@corea nd ma i n. com
(816) 598-2754

We look forward to the opportunity to provide the City of Republic with a high-performance
Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering System and a highly successful implementation.

Best

28S1E Keamey St.
Springfield, filO O#Og
Phone: (2541772-7g10

Prlnclpab:
Chief Executive fficer: Steve LeClair
Regional Mce President Ricfr Schaefur

IIITITI|

)Core&MainAllRightsReserved.Confidentia|andProprietarylnformation
Page 3 of 18 164

Item 17.



]UlAIN

1.0 Core & Main and Our Partners

COMPANY BACKGROUND & HISTORY

Core & Main was established in 2017 and built on the foundation of 80+ legacy
companies, including HD Supply Waterworks, Hughes Supply, and National
Waterworks. Our products and services are integral to
building, repairing, and maintaining water and

wastewater systems. They serye as part of the basic
municipal infrastructure required to support population

and economic growth, including residential and

commercial construction. Core & Main holds a leading
market position in the United States for water, sewer,
storm drain, and fire protection products and services.

CORE & MAIN EXPERTISE

Core & Main engineers and technical personnel have
applied advanced instrumentation system technology to water/wastewater open channel
flow monitoring, pipeline evaluation, engineering, and data analysis, coupled with the
power of the lnternet. This unique integrated systems approach allows the company to
bring greater insight and intelligence in gathering information about our clients'water
and wastewater system performance and, in turn, support fulfilling their commitments to
design, manage, operate, and maintain these systems cost-effectively.

We have over 4,500 employees across 49 states and 325+ locations that strive daily to
provide local knowledge, experience, and service nationwide. Our brick-and-mortar
location closest to the City of Republic is in Springfield, MO.

OUR PARTNERS

uTlLtTY SYSTEMS SCTENCE & SOFTWARE, tNC. (US3)

YJ[ffi::"ffi ]#::, : 
jl#;',,i;.lli;Jffi:f 

'i,* 
Uand control for Utilities since 1996, performing sewe

monitoring services 2417 throughout North America. US3

engineers and technical personnel have applied advanced instrumentation system
technology to water/wastewater monitoring & control systems, pipeline evaluation,
engineering, and data analysis. US3's industrial hardware & software solutions address
production operations, performance, utility intelligence, operations management, and

collaboration. By relentlessly focusing on solving our customers' most pressing

3

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 4 of 18

T

t
1

.l

r

165

Item 17.



MAIN

operational problems and delivering robust, secure, and easy-to-use solutions to solve
those problems. Utility Systems Science & Software has grown to become one of the
leading sewer flow monitoring companies in the USA.

INFINITII AI, INC.

Trusted since 2014 to provide environmental monitoring to many of the largest water
utilities in North America, infinitiiai (formerly Carl Data Solutions lnc.) has evolved into a
leader in A!-driven predictive analytics for industrial and Smart City infrastructure
applications that rely on time-series data. infinitii ai
software performs real-time analysis, checks flow
monitoring status, sets alarms through a single interface,
accepts all types of data from any source, and offers
predictive (what will happen) and prescriptive (what should happen) analytics. infinitii ai
transforms raw data into actionable information. Customers include more than 70 smart
city and lndustrial lnfrastructure organizations including Los Angeles, Boston, Miami,
Dallas, Seattle, Vancouver, and Toronto.

2.0 Project Approach

2.1 FLOW MONITORING EQUIPMENT

We are pleased to offer the City of Republic an equal of the
manufacturers called out in the IFB - a low-maintenance,
non-contact, open-channel flow meter. The US3 FlexFlow lQ
utilizes a sophisticated combination of digital radar velocity
sensing and ultrasonic depth sensing to provide continuous
flow measurements. Data collected by the FlexFlow will be
logged and transmitted by a US3 AMS RTU, utilizing a
cellular network, to the web-based software platform.

inftnitii oi
moke gour doto smorter

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 5 of 18

FlexFlow lQ sensors are well-suited for uninterrupted functioning in the most
challenging environments, including high solids content, high temperature, shallow and
caustic flows, large, manufactured channels, and velocities up to 65 fUs. Since they are
installed outside the process flow, there is no fouling by grease or debris, ensuring no
flow data is lost. The sensors typically remain reliable and steady for up to three years
without site calibration and can maintain their accuracy in low flow depths and
surcharge conditions.

No sewer bands or probes are required for installation, due to the non-contact
technology, reducing your costs. No confined space entry is required for installation or
maintenance, increasing the safety for your crews.

166

Item 17.



MAIN

The battery powered US3 AMS RTU is designed for
wastewater, flood, and ultra-harsh submersible
environments. AMS RTU arrays provide the interface for
real-time instrumentation to web-enable the data collected
from the FlexFlow lQ instrumentation. Get the data you

need when you need it to improve the quality of life in

smart communities.

Features include:
- Ultra-high accuracy for flow, level, and velocity outputs
- Non-contactmeasurement
- Sensor is away from the water for low maintenance
- Nominal power consumption
- RS-485 interface

2.2 RAIN GAUGE EQUIPMENT

Core & Main is pleased to offer the City of Republic an equal reliable tipping bucket-
style rain gauge. Data collected by the US3 Rain Gauge (an equal to requirements) will
be logged and transmitted by the US3 AMS RTU, utilizing a cellular network, to the
web-based software platform. The US3 Rain Gauge accurately measures rainfall in
0.01" increments.

The US3 Rain Gauge tipping bucket uses a standard
tipping bucket mechanism that allows for straightforward
and effective rainfall measurement. The geometry and
material selection of the bucket, along with the inclusion of
a leaf filter, help minimize contamination and errors in the
measurement process. The rain gauge features an 8"
(200mm) diameter collector funnel. The tipping bucket
device is divided into two compartments to enable the
measurement of rainfall in fixed increments. The bucket is
pivoted at its center and has a preset calibration to tip for a
specific amount of rainfall, either 0.5 mm or 1 mm. The
tipping action of the bucket magnetically opens and closes
a reed switch. When the bucket is full and tips, it triggers
the reed switch, generating a pulse signal. The pulse signal
from the reed switch is sent to a data logger or AMS RTU. t.
Pricing for an optional heating plate to measure snowfall data can be provlaea
upon request.

2.3 INSTALLATION
Pricing for installation or installation training is available upon request.

See installation manuals, warranty information, and data sheets in the Appendix.

l

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 6 of 18

o

E___

;rr..ill
lrsJ xhlr I

E. r-r<;

d

167

Item 17.



MAIN

2.4 WEB-BASED SOFTWARE ANALYTICS PLATFORM
infinitii flowworks
Our solution includes infinitii flowworks, a powerful, web-based, interactive, Software-
as-a-Service platform of monitoring, analysis, and reporting tools enabling you to
manage all your monitoring systems efficiently. Perform real-time analysis, check flow
monitoring status, and set alarms through a single interface. With its Artificial
lntelligence and Machine Learning-enabled software, infinitiiflowworks enables you to
transform raw data into actionable
information. Core & Main can
complete integration to obtain
USGS weather data from the
Republic, MO, location to
supplement the precipitation data
reported from the physica! rain
gauges. Core & Main can further
augment precipitation data with
Gauge-Adjusted Radar Rainfall
(GARR) data. GARR data can be
obtained from anywhere within your
wastewater collection system. The role-based, interactive platform will retrieve flow,
level, and rain gauge data every fifteen minutes to provide the City with near-real time
access to current conditions across their collection system. All data collected will be
stored and available on the platform, enabling graphing, reporting, event logging, and
alarming features. City-provided GIS sanitary sewer layer will be imported into the
platform to enable the mapping features of the software.

Monitoring and alarm notifications
lnfrastructure monitoring made easy. Click on any station to see current values and
active alarms. Overlay GIS data to get a complete view of your infrastructure. Define
rules and conditions for alarm notifications. Receive instant email, SMS, and voice
notifications as soon as an alarm OCCURS. Maintain fine-grained control of alarm
settings, behavior, and recipients.

Powerfu! graphing and reporting
infi n iti i fl ovvwo rks g raph ing enables
you to visually display multi-channel
data in either a time-series or scatter
plot graph format. Freely explore
your data with zoom features and
navigate through massive volumes of
data efficiently.

+

@.nes

EE-
.EEI
G=E-r

@.
)-.- -i::' -..'

o core & Main All Rights Reserved confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 7 of 18

fcon

ffia 9_. .h ahL..q-

:

EE; I

:,

168

Item 17.



]UIAIN

Customizable layouts
Customizable layouts allow you to control the colors, line types, and plot types. Choose
how you want to visualize your data by controlling the number of axes, the labels, and
how they are displayed. Quickly save and share your graphs with colleagues.

View relationships and correlations between data channels
Scatter Plots allow you to view relationships and correlations between two or more data
channels. A variety of curve fitting functions are available and can be used to visualize
trends. Manning equations can be added to your plot to represent the relationship
between depth and velocity.

Summarize the status of your network or facility at-a-glance
There are basic summary reports for daily, monthly, and yearly statistics. Create your
summary reports for multiple sites and channels. Control the level of detail, grouping,
and statistics displayed. Create and incorporate customized display screens to
summarize the status of your network or facility at-a-glance.

2.5 ALARMS
Flexibility is vital when it comes to configuring Alarms for your monitoring system. The
infinitiiflowworks application offers the City of Republic a significant level of
customization, enabling the definition of rules and conditions to proactively monitor your
data as it arrives. The City will have the capability to maintain fine-grained control of
alarm settings, behavior, and recipients. Late Alarms can be used to notify when data
hasn't arrived on schedule. Communication issues, Surcharge, and No Flow condition
alarms can be easily created. Alarms can be configured to trigger on any measurement
or combination of measures collected by The City. lmmediate alarm notification options
include email, SMS, and voice messages to one or more recipients with ease. Alarm
escalation can be easily configured through the Dwell Time feature to alert another
person should the alarm condition exist for an unacceptable amount of time.

2.6 DATA

The infinitiiflovvworks platform provides a comprehensive platform for logging, storing,
retrieving, and reporting all data reported by the monitoring equipment, USGS
precipitation data, field events, and triggered alarms. All data collected during the
project will be available on the platform and readily available to City staff. Exporting data
for archiving or use in another application is accomplished with a single button click. A
date range and the desired file format (i.e., CSV) can be selected. The user can specify

if the export is to include one or multiple sites. Data can also be retrieved from infinitii
flowworks via an Application Programming lnterface (APl) or web service.

@Core&MainAllRightsReserved.Confidentia|andProprietarylnformation
Page 8 of '18

2.7 TRAINING AND SUPPORT

Core & Main will provide the City of Republic staff with a one-day training session on

sofh,vare application functions, user navigation, system administration, account

management, device configuration, alarms and notifications, data management,

169

Item 17.



graphing, and reporting. An online Support Center is available from within infinitii
flov'rworks and includes the following:

. A User Guide
o A Knowledge Base
. Support Ticket Submission
o Customer Support Phone Number
. Product News & Updates
o A List of Recent Activities/Articles

2.8 MONITORING AND REPORTING
The Core & Main Team recognizes the value of accessible, near-real time, easy-to-
consume, actionable data. This solution will provide a modern, Artificial lntelligence and
Machine Learning-enabled analytics platform that the City can access from any web-
enabled device. Your collection system's 5-minute interval meter and rain gauge data
are transmitted to the platform and available for use by the City.

l-rrtIlTJ

@ core & Main All Rights Reserved. confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 9 of 18
170

Item 17.



]UIAIN

3.0 References

Citv of Kinqsport
Wa stew ate r ll o n ito ri n g

Dates: On-going
Contact: Will Stallard, P.E.
Civil Engineer
(423) 224-2e21 ;

WillStal lard@Ki ngsportTN. gov

IqNP"q{'gRT

Wireless Sewer Flow Monitoring
Projects, Wastewater Event
Notifi cation, Rainfall derived
inflow and infiltration (RDll) of
extraneous stormwater and
groundwater to the sanitary
sewer system analysis, Custom
Meter lnstallation.

Citv of Houston
Wastewater Monitoring

Dates: On-going
Contact: Robert Riedel, P.E
Supervising Engineer,
Wastewater Operations
(832) 39S5037 ;

\, Robert.Riedellll@houstontx.gov

Sewer FIow Monitoring Project
with Integration of City-Wide
Wireless Telemetry Network,
Wastewater Event Notifi cation
Systems, Wastewater
Monitoring Training, Custom
Meter !nstallation, Finalist in
Environmental Project of the
Year.

Citv of Boston
Wastewater Monitoring -igoston Water and

tfSeurer Commission

Wireless Sewer Flow /Level
Monitoring Projects, Wastewater
Event Notifi cation, Rainfall
Derived inflow and infiltration
(RDll) of extraneous stormwater
and groundwater to the sanitary
sewer system analysis, Custom
Meter lnstallation.

Dates: Ongoing
Contact: Tony Omobono, P.E.
Vice President, Tetra-Tech Municipa!
lnfrastructure Services, New England
(6 1 7) 443-7 57 1 ; Tony.Omobono@tetratech.com

o core & Main All Rights Reserved. confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 10 of 18

171

Item 17.



MAIN

APPENDIX A - PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS

US3 FLEXFLOW IQ

us3

uTIurY sYsn$s sctErict & sorTx^tf

FlexFlow lO
O PEt{ CHAil T{Et MOiI IIORI T{G

The FlexFlow lQ florv sensors offer nraintenance-lree,

nffiflntact @en ctranrel mrtrirg, indudhg sffi ffow

rnonitorirg thd can be portaHe or permanent. FhxFlow is

partrqJhrly suiled lor monitoring open cfiarmels, dlizing a

soplisticaled oomHnatirl of dlrital radr vdocity sensirg

and u)tsasonb depth s€flsing to pror/iJe continuous {low

nEawements. Fbxflor is avalable in bo(h wicless and

stardard ssiom that can bc integmtod dircctly wilh PLCs.

The FlexFlow sensorc de well-suiled for unintemrpted

functbning in the targhest situations, which may include

high solirCs conteat, high temperatu.e, shallow and caustic

flows, largc man-made channds, and htgh velocities up to

65 ftls- Since they arc installed odside the proccss flolv,

lhere is no louling by greasc or debris, ensuring thal no

flow data rs bst. The sensors tvprcaJlv remain relnble and

steady for up to threc yeaB without slte calibratron, and

can maintain thek accuracy even in low flow depths up to

surcharge condilions.

lnstallirg the FlexFlow sausors s easy and straightfward.

as lhey come with mounting b.acke{s that require no

additbnal h-pipe bands or rings. Tcmporary cross-bar

rnounts are also available for corweniencc

ORDERIilG
INFORMATION

Ordering lntomation Code

FLEXFLOW.FN

FbrFlffi tor SGrpUa Flcxl{ct

Wlde!! Flow erd-node for Wastemt€f
llanilottrg

FLEXFLOW.GSM

FlexFlow for GSM l{etworhs. lVirehss
Flfl erd-node ror

Watewater lloratofing

FLINT

lnctdstirr k ttor FlexFlow

us3-DH
Data Hoating & ilonito.ing Serviccs

oCore&MainAllRightsReserved.Confidentia|andProprietarylnformation
Page 11 of 18

a

172

Item 17.



]UlATN

FEATU RES
. Flflr, ltrel E d vrdodty qrBrtg

. l{ilI-cilrtad rnffiJrcflHrt

. uscs roffie swivd and easy nu,rnting

. S€risor b ayra:r, lrsn the rdcr, rnd<irg ilre insiElHion sder to drieve

. krdad ar*edm for csrrnricdi<rr with dda logBErB ond other devi:rs

. Extrernely low porrcrcfisrnptifii

. Anili pdrity protection

. Carwt and sold ds*qn - hng sensr lile with narird rxintenre

. HS{85 interhce - alours a cornection cahle lergt}r d r.p to 1,(trO rn,
dbfliru doh bgpEr and porrer sorrce to be sihded furtrer avqy

. UUlde rurgp o| pcns g.pdv frsn 7-32 V (tt/p.cdly 12l24Vl - dlolrts
*Iteriq pon €r supfles suclr as sdr pand, bdtery r gnd

SPECIF!CATIONS
GENERAL
t{eturdt( k*ertsor*

lnternal hrrrSr'pdr

Gonsrnptacu

Elirnenaaons:

Depth Ratng:

Type Approv*

GSM, }./lodhrs RTU, RwrL LoFaWA l

13-0 Lithiun Ti*rnyl batery r
extemal 12-30y' po$rer aclagtor

4OuA for ndrml operdbn 2fi)nA
for abrm nEssagig
'l3Oxl30x7&nm

0-20m

PTCflB, GCf. FOO, CE, ROfTS

PERFORMANGE
Ydmity: d).GlBfUs - 65 fi/s or O.[XF2ftn/s

Accrrecf r0.1 ft/s or d).(Bm/s

l-evd tleasrenE rE 131 ft q 40m

Acoreclt: r0.4ircfr or t10mm

ENVIRONMENTAL
OpcratirETerrp -20"Cto66"C

StoragnTers -tl0"C to 85'C

Fdstiye lfrniditf 0 to:595, nontondensing

Enfurte nating: lP68

MECHANICAL
Houdng l/kterlals:
Cabls

PPA High Perfornance Polyamide

Cmdrts, ryC.iacket, 22 At rG. 4,6crn
(18") F$ail [user-exetencbbl€ tor F]S-485

conmuni:dion up to l5firn (5{)o()ft[

--
WlfrJmrllaotrtrmu

tmitv s=tem+ Scierte E Softwure, lr*-
Ollt tl- Prftsrbr ttlivc,IIih 2@ ' llrh Ar' CA Cl76

c 71{.ril4Le|+' 85s{TSCUBED 0714541L13{r!
trrJ.Et d-.sD'ifrO.Et dcoltr

UEfy Syd.n:, llcietmeSdme' ltrG'

r' .lF
M7
&tr

- t--

E-

@Core&MainAllRightsReserved.ConfidentialandProprietarylnformation
Page 12 of 18

SUITABLE
APPUCATTOilS
. nhgsigrc.rrB
. tlcrrr$fienr
.Cm*
.hrtgntilcnr*
.Ptwkrffi
.Otlc8/H6

rr-l

173

Item 17.



]UlAIN

US3 RAIN GAUGE

Rain Gauge Tipping Bucket

Wnh Leaf Filter

I I

The US3 Rain Gauge tipping buckel uses a slardard
lppirg buckel mechanism lhal aloNts for slraightfonvard
and efleclNe rainfall mea3urement. The geotnelry and
material seleclion of lhe bucftel. along witt lhe inchsion
of a leaf filler. hep mininize contamination and enors h
lhe measurement process

The rah g.[r9. lcalureE a 8" (20ommi drarn€ter colleclo]
funnel. The tpging buc*el devic€ b divided inlo hvo
compartrnents lo enable the mcasuremenl of rainfall h
rD(ed ircremenls The buclet is pavoled al ib center ard
has a pr"Bel calbration lo trp for a spccifE amounl ol
rainfall. cifier 0.5 mm or I mm. The l|ppng aclon of lhe
buckel magnetically op€fls and closes a reed swilch.
When lhe buctel E tufi and tips. il tri]gers the reed
swltch. gcncrat,rg a puE€ sEnal Th" pul3c sgnal fom
lhe reed $vilrfi E s€nl b r dala loggpr or RTU

Ordering anrormataon
Code US3.RGTB

Applications
r Water management
r Rain Measurement
. Flood Control Monitoring
r Environmental telemetry
r lnlelligent lrrigation systems
. lntegrates with Most

Loggers/PLCs

Technica I characteristics

Rain

US3 Bain Gauge

0-9.5
indr/hour

1s

0 004 inch

t4o/o

--lJ-w--
7-24VDC

RS485
RS232 SDI-
12 al

-40-+175F
*40-+80'C

SS+ABS
'l 4 lbs

Measurement objecl

Measured rainfall
intensity
Sample interval

Resolution

Supply

Accuracy(0 08

Power consumption
inch/min

Oulput

Operating temperafure

Main material

Weighl (unpacked)

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 13 of 18

E--

Speclflcadon

16r "". 5-;l
. ,rrr;n I

:- ifl
i_:

174

Item 17.



APPENDIX B.INSTALLATION GUIDE - US3 FLEXFLOW IQ

APPENDIX C - WARRANTY & REPAIR GUIDE

MntrJ

@ core & Main All Rights Reserved. confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 14 of 18
175

Item 17.



FlexFlow IQ

lnstallation Manual

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
3 1::
,./ / ,
--- / /

---"./

!.,,,
/.,/
J//'/eO

[ Ilt tI\ S\'51t vs Sr tt rr t .\ Srrt ru Uil

Utility Systems Science and Sofhryare

201 Parkcenter Drive STE 209

Santa Ana, CA 927Os

Sales 714-5U-U94, sales@uscubed.com

Support 61 9-5464281, supporl@uscubed.com

www.uscubed.com

www.sewerflow.com

176

Item 17.



Contents
L. lntroduction

1.2 Measurement principle ...

1.2 Principle of flow velocity measurement.

1.3 Water level measurement principle ......

1.4 Flow measurement principle

2. Remote Terminal Unit (RTU) Features.....

2.2 RTU Technical details

3. FlexFlow lQ Features

3.2 Technical Parameters..................

3.3 Metering Shapes

3.3.1 Round

3.3.2 Trapezoidal ...........

3.3.3 U Shape

4 How to Select a suitable Manhole to Monitor

4.1 When looking down the MH at the flow... What we want to see.

4.2 What we do NOT want to see..........

5. Physical lnstallation ..

5.1 Part ldentification ..............

5.2 Temporary / Permanent lnstallation..............

5.2.1 Set up the mounting frame and jack-bar assembly...

5.2.2 Assemble the frame as shown in figure 3........

5.3 lnstallthe Sensor

5.3.1 Connect the Data Logger.................

6 Android Application installation

6.1 For Windows

6.2 For Mac.............

5.3 How to install apps from other sources....................'.'...

10

10

11.

1.L

72

T2

13

74

L4

15

16

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

7

8

8

8

8

8

9

9

9

FlexFlow lQ !nstallation Manual Rev. A
v..t , t

-,. ,, t

-----.'

I

177

Item 17.



I

7. APP setting

7.1.1 lnstallation of APP......................

7.t.2 APP instruction

7.1.3 Bluetooth Scan......

7.1.4 Choose the device to connect....

7.1.5 Verify RTU.............

7.1.6 Basic RTU setting.

7.1.7 FlexFlow lQ Sensor

7.1.8 Sensor Status Screen

7.1.9 Water Channel Parameter setting...

7 .7.7O Basic Settings.................

7 .1,.7I Basic Setting 2.................

7 .7.t2 Advance Settings

Trouble shooting.....

18

18

18

19

20

21,

21,

22

23

23

25

26

26

2t

FlexFIow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A 178

Item 17.



us
5' '."'- 

t"tt" tt'tnt'

I
krri',rnr

1. lntroduction
FlexFlow lQ flowmeter is an advanced device that utilizes microwave radar technology
to provide non-contact open channel water flow measurement. This innovative
technology enables simple and fast measurement without the need for physical
contact with the water being measured. The non-contact nature of the equipment
offers several advantages:

r Resistance to Corrosion: Since the FlexFlow lQ flowmeter does not come into
direct contact with the water or sewage being measured, it is not affected by
corrosion caused by the properties of the fluid. This resistance to corrosion
ensures accurate and reliable measurements over an extended period.

. Temperature lnsensitivity: Microwave radar technology is not significantly influenced by
temperature variations. Therefore, the FlexFlow lQ flowmeter can maintain its
accuracy and reliability even when exposed to different temperature conditions,
ensuring consistent measurements.

. Sediment Tolerance: Traditional flow measurement methods can be affected by
sediment or suspended particles in the water, which may cause inaccuracies.
However, the non-contact nature of the FlexFlow lQ flowmeter means that it is
not affected by sediment, ensuring precise measurements regardless of the
water's particulate content.

o Simplified lnstallation: lnstalling the FlexFlow lQ flowmeter is relatively simple
due to its non-contact nature. lt eliminates the need for complex lnstallation
work, such as cutting into pipes or creating physical contact points with the
water flow. This simplicity reduces installation time and costs.

. Easy Maintenance: The FlexFlow lQ flowmeter is designed for ease of
maintenance. With no moving parts or components in contact with the water,
the maintenance requirements are minimal. This reduces downtime and
ensures continued accurate measurements.

. Safety Considerations: The non-contact nature of the FlexFlow lQ flowmeter
enhances the safety of utility technicians. They can install or maintain the
equipment without the need to work in close proximity to flowing water,
reducing the risk of accidents or injuries.

Overall, the FlexFlow lQ flowmeter's use of microwave radar technology for non-
contact open channel water flow measurement providing numerous benefits, including
resistance to corrosion, temperature insensitivity, sediment tolerance, simplified
lnstallation, minimal water damage, easy maintenance, and improved safety for utility
technicians.

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
3

179

Item 17.



SoFr$'ARr

FlexFlow lQ flowmeter uses precision flat
narrowband array radar sensor, digital signal
floating point algorithm processing, velocity direction
identification, rain denoising, automatic correction of
vertical angle, etc .; the maximum flow rate that the
instrument can measure is 20m ls. The sensitivity is
as high as 0.01m / s; the range of the water level is
40m, and the detection sensitivity reaches t0.008m.

Please read the manual before using FlexFlow lQ
flowmeter, so that you will better understand how to
use this measuring instrument. The manual details
the usage, maintenance, and precautions of the
radar flowmeter.

1.2 lVeasurement principle

The FlexFlow lQ flowmeter uses planar microwave
technology, uses the principle of Doppler radar to measure the surface velocity of
water flow, and uses the built-in microstrip radar technology to measure the water
level. According to the velocity-area method, the measured water level is used to
convert the cross-sectional atea, and then the surface velocity is combined with the
cross-section parameters to calculate the average velocity. The empirical formulas for
the cross-section velocity distribution of open channels such as circles, rectangles,
and trapezoids are established and combined with the hydraulic model algorithm.
Open channel flow; it is a non-contact flow measuring instrument that accurately
measures the flow without changing the boundary conditions of channels, rivers,
pipes, etc.

1.2 Principle of flow velocity measurement

The radar flow meter uses the principle of Doppler radar speed measurement. When
measuring the speed of the water surface, the radar velocity sensor emits microwaves
to the water surface. After encountering the water surface, the microwaves will be
absorbed and reflected. A part of the reflected wave is received by the flowmeter
probe, and then converted into an electrical signal. The Doppler frequency shift is
processed by the measurement circuit, and then the water flow velocity can be
calculated by using a signal processing algorithm such as FFT according to the above
principle. The principle of Doppler velocimetry is as follows: When the radar wave
transmitting source and the target are relatively stationary, the receiving frequency and
the transmitting frequency are equal:

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A

3-----r------

.t

(

'l
I

frl

f

'i
,\

180

Item 17.



US
SrurY 

sYsrtxs s'tr*t Sar-rw{[t

1.3 Water level measurement principle

The water level adopts FMCW modulation, and the triangle wave is used as the
modulation signal. The working process is as follows: first, the voltage modulation
circuit generates a triangular wave voltage and inputs it to a VCO (voltage-controlled
oscillator) to generate electromagnetic waves with a frequency change. The frequency
of the electromagnetic wave changes according to the modulation voltage law.

FMCW stands for Frequency-Modulated Continuous Wave, and it
refers to a modulation technique used in various applications,
including radar communication systems. ln FMCW modulation, the
frequency of a continuous wave signal is continuously varied over
time.

The electromagnetic waves emitted by the antenna are reflected back after being
reflected by the measured object. Waves, electromagnetic waves from the beginning
to the target, reflected by the target and then returned to the antenna within the time
period of the radar transmission frequency has changed, the radar antenna couples
the echo signal with the transmitted signal to obtain the difierence frequency signal,
the target's distance and speed information lt is included in the frequency of the
difference frequency signal. Because the difference frequency signal is very weak, it is
processed by the pre-amplification and filtering circuit of the radar sensor, and the
signal is sent to the ADC (analog{o-digital converter) of the MCU. The MCU analyzes
the ADC collected by the FFT algorithm. The frequency of the difference frequency is
obtained from the waveform. Finally, the distance from the measured target to the
sensor is calculated by the derived formula.

1.4 Flow measurement principle

The average velocity can be obtained and converted by the radar velocity probe, and
the water depth can be obtained and converted by the radar water level probe. The
cross-sectional flow is equal to the average velocity x the cross-sectional area ofthe
current x the bank coefficient (surface).

Among the open channels in the sewer systems and irrigation area, the common
types of open channel sections in the irrigation atea ate rectangular, trapezoidal, or U-
shaped; commonly used slopes are dry and branch canal longitudinal slopes; and two
commonly used roughness ratios are concrete canal walls and masonry canal walls.

For these common open channels, the bottom slope and roughness are determined.
ln the flow velocity distribution of the section, the flow velocity has a strong symmetry,
and the straight section of the inigation section and the downstream section are
longer, and the section is symmetrical to the left and right. The distribution has the
characteristics of good symmetry. Correct the velocity field distribution according to

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
f

I

181

Item 17.



3
Sorrw'enr

the profile, bottom (longitudinal) slope and roughness; the turbulence mathematical
model used is mainly RNG (renormalized group) K-r model, with high calculation
accuracy, good numerical stability, and calculated data Moderate.

2. Remote Terminal Unit (RTU) Features
. lntegrated design, small in size, easy mounting
. 4G and LTE
. Ultralow power consumption

2.1 RTU Technical details

. Data collection: 1 way (RS485) and/or 4-20mA.

. Communication: 3G/4G. NB-IOT. Blue-tooth

. Sleep power: 
= 40uN12V 

". Working power: DCTV-32V ; defaultlzv
. Size: 60x85x15mm.
. Working temp.: -40-+85oC ; Humidity: <95%.
. Two 4-20 MA inputs
o One RS485 Communications Port

3. FlexFlow lQ Features
o RS232 interface.
o RS485 interface
o maximum flow rate that the instrument can measure is 10m / s. The

sensitivity is as high as 0.005m/s;
. level range is 4m, and the detection sensitivity reaches t0.002m.
. Smallsize, high reliability, simple operation and easy maintenance.
. Not affected by environmental factors such as temperature, sediment, dust,

rants, floating objects on the water surface, and air pressure.
o lt is used for non-contact flow measurement in open channels, river

channels, irrigation channels, underground drainage pipe networks, flood
prevention, etc.

. Non-contact measurement method, convenient measurement and no
pollution to the environment.

o with rain mode, to prevent interference caused by rain.
o Waterproof grade 1P68, effectively prevent the internal components from

getting wet.
. Ultralow power consumption, easy installation and maintenance-free.

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A

-,

182

Item 17.



qffiffi
llrn rrr SYrrrM{ S.rrN.r

3
9)fru-Anr

3.1 Technical Parameters

3.2 \,4etering Sha pes

The device supports three basic types ofcanal shapes: circular, trapezoidal and U-
shaped. By adjusting the length ofthe bottom and top sides ofthe trapezoid,
rectangular and triangular canals can be obtained.

3.2.1 Rou nd

The parameters that need to be set for the circular canal are the shape ofthe canal,
the distance from the radar flow meter to the bottom ofthe canal, and the radius ofthe
circular canal. The distance from the radar flow meter to the bottom of the canal and
the radius of the circular canal need to be enlarged by 100 times the actual value.

3.2.2 Tra pezoid a I

The parameters required for the trapezoidal canal are the shape of the canal, the
distance from the radar flow meter to the bottom of the canal, the length of the bottom
of the trapezoidal canal, the length of the top of the trapezoidal canal, and the height
of the trapezoidal canal. The distance from the radarflow meter to the bottom ofthe
canal, the length of the bottom edge of the trapezoidal canal, the length of the top
edge of the trapezoidal canal, and the height of the trapezoidal canal need to be
enlarged by 100 times. lf the actual value is 1 .23m, the value written is 123.

3.2 3 U Shape

The parameters required for the U-shaped canal are the shape ofthe canal, the
distance from the radar flow meter to the bottom of the canal, the height of the fan, the
length ofthe bottom edge ofthe trapezoidal part, the length ofthe top edge ofthe
trapezoidal part, and the height of the canal. The distance from the radar flow meter to

Flow measurement system Measurement principle Planar Microstrip Array Antenna
CW+ FMCW

I\4odes of Operation Operating mode Manual, automatic, telemetry
Operating temperature -30-80'c
Operating Voltage 7-32VDC:
Working current 12VDC input, working mode: <120mAstandby mode

<'l mA
Protection class rP67, tP68
Lightning protection level 6KV
Physical dimension 235.4x 100x 104(mm)
Weight Less than 1.5k9
Radar wave speed sensor Radar frequency 24GHz
Level sensor range 3m, 7m, 40m
Speed measurement - range 0.03-1om/s
Speed measurement accuracy 10.0'l m/s;tl %FS
Automatic identification of water flow direction built-in vertical angle correction
Radar water level gauge Radar frequency 24GHz

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
f

---=.-

183

Item 17.



the bottom of the canal, the height of the fan, the length of the bottom of the
trapezoidal part, the length of the top of the trapezoidal part, and the height of the
canal need to be enlarged by 100 times the actual value.

4 How to Select a suitable tVanhole to JVonitor

4.1 When looking down the tVH at the flow... What we want to see:
. Consistent,open-channelflow
. When installing and calibrating, we check the FFT graph from the Real Time

reading.
. Some clear flow lines that create a "V" shape. This slight surface flow

disturbance is easiest for the FlexFlow lQ sensor to read.

4.2 What we do NOT want to see.

. Swirling hydraulics, created by the channel construction (Ex: if the bottom
trough or walls aren't smooth and has an irregular surface) or incoming lines.
We will not get a clear velocity reading if it is swirling.

Drop inlets that ruin the pattern of the open-channel flow. A drop inlet is what it
sounds like, where the flow comes into the MH via a pipe usually -1-2 feet
above the channel. This creates turbulence within the flow pattern. Think the
swirling turbulence at the bottom of a waterfall.

a

a

a

a

Blockages / stagnation / no flow - we need level and velocity (and pipe size) to
calculate flow, and if there is no velocity, we will not have the information that
we need. lf we see this and we have a permit for the work, we can usually
contact the City / lnspector that we're working with, and they will arrange for the
line to be jetted (cleaned). We can re-investigate and possibly install it after the
line has been cleaned.

Laminar flow - surface is smooth as glass

Pulses of flow - if we are downstream of a lift station, we might see consistent,
gravity-fed flow for most of the installation, then have a rapid increase in level
and velocity. This will look like a stream that turns into a firehose.

ln this case, we might shorten the reading interval from the usual 15-
min to S-min or 1-min.
Consider the length of the study in this decision. Factors include
storage space on the logger, as well as quantity of data points to go
through.

o

a

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
f,
,u,r, .,

-* 
----',"

3

184

Item 17.



a

a

The loggers can store data for a Maximum of g0 days at a S-min
reading interval.
Typically, one does not want 1-min samples unless absolutely
necessary. One-minute reads will have impact on the battery and
generate a significant amount of data.

lf there is a drop inlet on the US side of the flow, we can place the
sensor downstream where the flow has evened out.

**lf there are any of these "no" items present, they can often be avoided by:

lnstalling the sensor away from the flow irregularity within the MHa

a

o

Move upstream (US) or downstream (DS) one MH. Review sewer maps to
make sure we are still getting the same data.

5. Physical lnstallation

5.1 Part ldentificatlon

FlexFlow lQ Sensor

Extension Pipe, 2'SCH 40 (Not

Included)

FlexFlow lQ RTU

Bolt Set with qty. (8) %-20

Sensor Cable Battery Pack

Top Frame Mount

Jack-Bar Assembly - Red Bar

aa

aa

a

ao

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
3jtt
_-., ./ ./

----/./
185

Item 17.



d

5.2 Temporary I Permanent lnstallation

Figure 1

5.2.1 Set up the mounting frame and jack-bar assembly

A) lnstall the Red Bar assembly in the manhole. As a general rule, the Red Bar
should be approximately 12 to 15 lnches Below the Manhole Ring" located as parallel
to the pipe and invert of the manhole as possible.

Figure 2: Jack-bar for mounting the drop-down pole to the sensor

FIexFlow lQ !nstallation Manual Rev. A
7-'.."
,'/ -./ t

fA--//

al 3

\ --t-

lnstall

a

Red Bar

a
RTU with Battery
pa.k

\

i..-

cI

J

4".
L.

186

Item 17.



5.2.2 Assemble the frame as shown in figure 3.

Figure 3: Using standard PVC pipe, cut to length 6-12" above the crown of the pipe

Set the elevation of the frame Approximately 6 to 12 inches above the inside crown of
the pipe (for pipe l.D. under 25") or 5" above the inside crown of the pipe (for pipe l.D.
of 25" and greater). An easy way to use a Stick and Measure the Distance between
the Bottom of the lnvert and

5.3 lnstall the Sensor.
Zip tie the sensor cable to extension pipe to prevent snagging sensor cable. Then

Gently lower the sensor into the manhole and hook it on to the Red Bar and adjust to

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manua! Rev. A
at,
'. '/, / ,

-* 

1/'../

ffi -t

i

t

187

Item 17.



3
Sorru'anr

make sure the sensor is parallelwith the flow. Lock down the hardware affixing the top
hook, to the red Bar. Figure 4

Figure 4: Typical installation.

5.3.1 Connectthe Data Logger.
Connect the sensor cables to the data logger. Make sure the black cable-end

connects to the connector marked communications. Tighten the threaded cable
connector-ends securely to the data logger connectors. Do not over tighten. lnstall
battery box and insert cable to the Logger. Do not over tighten the cable.

FlexFlow lQ Installation Manual Rev. A
4,,,
_.../ /.

-----.:

-T--

-./

,/

l-i-!

\

l il-a

.+' x
t

1.
\

I
i."

\
t,

-J
,,

T\
#tr n

I

:,

IhI Ii

!\
i.-

!
\ ;

LL. tt {

I

188

Item 17.



The programming over Bluetooth, so when the logger is powered up Bluetooth will be
active

6 Android Application lnstallation

Currently the application is only on Android tablets and phones. The
Application will be on a USB drive.

Android users enjoy the privilege of installing APK files on Android directly should they
choose. Some instances where you would like to install an app on Android using an
APK file.

The app is not available on Play Store or Galaxy Store

You want to install a previous version of an application.

6.1 For Windows

lf you are using a Windows computer, you can follow this guide to transfer files
between your computer and Android:

1. Unlock your Android device

2. Use a USB cable to connect your Android to your computer

3. Tap the Charging this device via USB option on your Android device
4. Select File Transfer under Use USB for.

5. You will see a file transfer window on your computer. Then, you can drag files
to the window to transfer files.

6. When the transfer job is done, you can eject your phone or Tablet from your
computer and then unplug the USB cable.

FlexFlow !Q lnstallation Manual Rev. A
3.j ,;

,/i,

--i--',/

189

Item 17.



6.2 For IVac

This guide is for [/ac OS X 10.5 and the above version

1. Search for Android File Transfer (an application) on the internet and select the
official site to download & install it on your computer.

Open Android File Transfer

Unlock your Android device

Connect your Android to your lt4ac using a USB cable

5. Tap Charging this device via USB on your Android
6. Select File Transfer under Use USB for.

7. You will see a file transfer window on your ltlac. Then, you can drag files to the
window to transfer files.

8. When the transfer job is done, you can eject your phone or tablet from your
computer and then unplug the USB cable.

2

3

4

FlexFlow IQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A

ll

190

Item 17.



Sorrwlnr

6.3 How to install apps from other sources

For the vast majority of folks, the Play Store has all of the apps you could ever
want. ln some cases, however, you may want to venture outside of Coogle's
marketplace to find titles that aren't available on it for whatever reason.

To make sure your phone can download apps from other sources, here's what
you need to do.

1. Open the Settings on your phone
Z. Tap Apps & notifications.
3. Tap Advanced.
4. Tap Special app access.

2.29

€ Apps & notifications

Recilly oF@d.pps

Apps & notifications

R@ntly optrd apps

Do
Google Pl..

a I a82\

q@

O
Hulu Google Pl..

qo

Hulu
4 n. aqo

e

;'

e
\-26

@

o
@

@

c
@

o
@

@

a a a82e6

Search senings e
ooiGtwk&irtmt

WrFr mobrle, data usage, and hotspot

Cmnected dsices
Blueloolh dnvrnq mode. NFC

YouTube-.

S@.n [l apps

YouTube..
19 mrn agc

Se all 144 apps
Apps 6 notifications

i

Banery

Notificatims

Screen trme

Notifications
Dn lor all dpps

Ass!stant

As6istant
Hey Gooqle, squeeze and moreDisplay

Sound
Scrc€n tirYE
1 7 minules today

Default apps
Chrome. Phone, and Messages

Permission malag€r
Apps using mrcrophone, contacts, and physical
activity

Emergency alerts

Special app access
3 apps can use unrestrlcted data

Storage
54% used - 29 1 7 GB free

Pnry
Permrssrons accounl activily, personal data

Locatron

Accouats

Seuity
Play Prolst. screen lock. face unl@k

FIexFlow IQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A 191

Item 17.



3
SorrB'ARr

1,. Tap Install unknown apps.
2. Tap the web browser you'll use to find outside apps.
3. Tap the toggle next to Allow from this source.source:Joe Maring / Android Centrql

2129

€ Special app access

Batrery optimizatid

OevkE admin apps

Display @r other apps

Do Not Digtub acce$

ldgdify system ettihgE

Adrptire NotificltiG
andi.rd adap|!. N.r{r'nn1.r

Notificatio access

Pictre-in-pktwe

PEmium SMSecess

T+ 6 poy

Unrcstricted dats

hstallunkwn apps

lrsage rccess

VR heFer rervkG

, ^t 4 82".

lnstall unknown apps @ O :

AMC Theatcs

Call of Dtny

Chme

DriE

Frceb@k

Fitbir

GarePe

Gmail

HUE

lnstag6m

Lilnfeed

Your phone and personal d8t6 are more vulnerabl€
lo atlack by unkoown apps By lnstalhng appe rroh
thrs source, you agree thal you are responsible lor
any damage to your phore or loss ol dala lhar ntay
resull lrom thetr use

a I 4e2..

a.o

2:29

+

o
2:30 a,a ae2',,

e lnstall unknown apps q O

Chrome

Allil frm this source

qe
L

o
@

e
r'1

@

c)

f.

With this done, you can now venture online, find the app file you're looking for,
and download it to your phone. There's always some level of risk when installing
apps that don't come from the Play Store, so make sure you trust the source
you're downloading the outside app from.

FlexFIow IQ lnstallation Manua! Rev. A
ai,:
__///

----.'
192

Item 17.



3

fr

7. APP setting
7.1.1 lnstallatlon of APP

CopyAPP to your cellphone and install it

Note: System should be Android, version higher than v4.4

7.1,.2 APP instruction

1, Gonnection

a) Trrn on I , open APP

b) lnput user name and

password

User name: DWKJAME

Password: 20230112

c) Log in

a

__:/)

Note:1. User name and password only can be customized in factory. Can NOT
reset on field.

2. After log in, sensor parameters can be set and improper setting might
cause damage. Please keep user name and password safe.

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
4.,,
--',,/ 

l

----//

a

Search

C

ll o

193

Item 17.



2r6^C aa * /.

7.1.3 Bluetooth Bluetooth configuration Scan

connect

lrl scan QR code

+n-++++ sensdl- firmvGie
RTU setting setting upgrade

+
Modffs
debug

f.ra
Home Eluetooth

A
ME

scan device

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manua! Rev. A

r))t
?./,

-O

[jtrilty Sy\rtq\ S.trf.i(r & Sotr\.r \Rr

Click

194

Item 17.



7.1,.4 Choose the device to connect

00060055
EEBE1B24D382

00906074
D7 5E r -,:8A:42 ]F

00906076
Er_r 38 j6 35 79 0.1

00906064
E/58CE:]543.i8

00906041
Ca92l?1,-fA.4t-

00906067
FC 8D r' 70 83 4S

-78

-69

-73

-82

-88

-88

After

+

@
@
@

bluetooth connection

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
?

_/ ... /

-----''/'

rU
& SorrwArr

Choose

device

connecl

connect

connecl

195

Item 17.



7.1.5 Verify RTU

:r9^o a!s r.

Bluetooth configuration

connecl bluelooth devlce

Fl sen OR codc sm daice marby

Check Status of the RTU

sensdl frrmv$-re
setting upgrade

2lraO

+ 00060055

slail!r: ri{t

als d.

O2023"03-22 14 17:16

Modft-s
debug

i

slalion address

00060055
| | network sig
I I rntens

''lzc

OK

.lrl ,, 
1

run

Checking Status Look for.

1. Network Status OK

2. System Status in Run

3. Network Sig lntens

needs to be above 10 to

consistently transmit.

4. Voltage over I Volts.

2r!lo its,lr

€ 00060055

[,as]a:eltinc

,' a
Mo

network slatus

temperature("Cl

22.50

SV:iteil lrrte

2023/03/23
05:'17:16

vollagei \'l

10.85

soflu,.ate r,ersron

v].01_049_0
O6-K64-CAT
1Bluet@lh

There are 3 basic settings that will need to be modified
from time to time.

1. Sensor Power On Duration.
lf a site is real turbulant or Laminor flow the sensor may
beed more time to take a read.

Typical Sensor time is 35seconds

2. Sample lnterval. This is the cycle time for a sample.

The Standard is 15 min

station address 00060055

sensor power on duration 10...

sample interual 2 minute

rtu transmit interval 5 minute

netvJork seltrnq

network channell 52.1 65,1 84,2...

network channel2 nol used

network channel3 not used

APN setting

N,IQTT settrng

MQTT setting
FlexFlow !Q lnstallation Manual Rev. A

7.1.6 Basic RTU setting.

196

Item 17.



SorrwARt

3. RTU Transmit lnterval. This is how often the RTU sends Data

lndustry Standard is 240 to 360 Minutes
Note: RTU Transmit lnterval can have a dramatic effect on battery life

2'rr l6 i!s6 i.

7.1..7 FlexFlow lQ

Sensor

Bluetooth configuration

.8. 00060055
-:orr;rr,r'1('(i

Select Sensor Settings
r+.r

upgrade

r+
frrmlfi-re

RTU

G+
Modftis
debug

please choose sensor type

radar flow velocrty meter

5

TT
radar water level meter

a
Me

f.rrt
Home Eluetooth

disconnected

radar flow rate meter

J

FlexFlow IQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
f,'/'/.

-- 
--//'

tl

(

197

Item 17.



7.L.8 Sensor Status Screen

12133 o O;:r

6 00904958

,:l:ri; water canal para setting

: Etffi ffrx{r.{ &r
i*rwtoa*
r l L:

\L llEdlffitffituhd&\ birghonmotrt*rotlq

The Status Screen allows for last read

display. lt also allows the ability to see the

active FFT Signal for better sensor placement

and calibration.

S E i'..t,r

,t

Ige d.grfr

'}fi

circular O trapezoid O U O

radius R(lnch) 3.150

distance from
device to canal
bottom D(lnch)

18.079

sensor dala
vedicol angle

velocily

water level

dist6nce

lnstant fiow 6te
Tolal llow

venical angle

vel@rty sig intss
wale,level sig intens

54.9{'
0.56r FPS

0.906 lnch

1 9.528 lnch

0.0@ Gal/s

224.810 Gal

54_9'

1980,6

12698

vll@ity spaclrum

lnstail fiow Ete

Total flow

veni@l angle

velocity sig intcns

walerlewl sig inlens

0.000 Gal/s

224.810 Gal

54.9'
1 9806

12698

velocig sp€ctrum 7.1.9 Water Channel Parameter setting

read para

FIeXFIOW lQ lnStallatiOn w!t.,r.vcr sprcrrum e

t-f-

D (

I
198

Item 17.



3

Water Canal Para Setting is the time of channel or Pipe you are trying to monitor

Typical sewer pipe is Circular. The radius of the pipe is the dimensionaldata from the
pipe. What Diameter is the Pipe?_

Distance from Sensor mount location to the bottom of the Pipe / Channel.

Typically, we want to be I to 10 inches above the crown of the pipe.

Once the Parameters are set select the Blue button at the bottom of the screen that
says Sef Para

You can also read back the Para by selecting Read Para.

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A
7
j,/,1

--'-1'','
199

Item 17.



Sorr'*'ARr

7.1..10 Basic Settings

]?i33 O O ,:r

€ 00904958

base para setting

velocity
multiplier0 1.0

velocity
measurement gear 2
gear

radar direction up stream

h"j3ilY,X"''" 6oo

water level
noise threshold

200

velocity filter
counter

water level
filter counter

horizontal
angle(')

tt'-lJr There arc 2 main settings on this screen you will
need to modify depending on the install.

Standard Multipliers.
Pipe Multiplier
8 .75
10 .73
12 .72
15 .70
18 .67
20 .63

2. Radar Direction - Knowing upstream vs
down stream is important for flow direction and speed
calculations.

1

1. Velocity Multiplier. This is the calibration tool

E for Surface Velocity. When doing an installation, a
Pipe profile is taken. lf profiler is not available we

E
E
E
E
E
E
E

can use Standard Velocity Multipliers for calibration

5

0

Pipe Profiling

Just like in streams and rivers the sewer channel has eddies and currents. The pipe as
well as the connections to the manhole can cause hydrautic influences. Taking , eipe
profile with a handheld velocity meter can help profite the ftow in the pipe. Flows near
the surtace can be higher than flows near the side walls or bottom. By'taking a profile
you can get a good average velocity of the pipe that shoutd make ine site ac'curate
through a full pipe.

base para get

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A 7,' t,_/. /

---.-'./

Cl (

200

Item 17.



r? 33 r O::,

€ 00904958

base para seltrng

3

trq.r.
7.1-.1,1. Basic Setting 2

ln this section there is 1 setting that needs to be set.

Sleep Time: This setting sets the amount of time the sensor

Bluetooth stays active. Sense we are accessing the sensor

through the RTU the Bluetooth is not needed for the sensor.

Set the S/eep Time to 15 minutes as a standard setting,

velocity filter
counler

water level
filter counter

horizonlal
angle(')

rain mode open

sleep
time(minute)

min depth to
generate flow 0.0
late

silr height(m) 0.0

maximum
velocity(m/s) 3.8

E
E
E
E
E
E
E
E

0

7 .1.1.2 Adva nce Setti ngs

lf advanced settings are needed, please call for support. 619-s464291

base para get

FIexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A 1.,
':1 "'''

-- 
//'

t

0

I o

201

Item 17.



Trouble shooting

SN Description Reason Correction

1
Not working after

power on

o Wrong wiring/No power
o Check allthe connection and

battery

O Sleep mode t Normal

2 No blue tooth O Wrong wiring/No power
O Check allthe connection and

battery

3

No data

receiving in data

base

O lmproper SIM

installation
. Check SIM

O No fee a Pay the fee

a No signal o Check cell phone signal

I Looseantenna

connection
O Check antenna

t No or Low power O Change battery

a SIM card does not

support 4G data

transmission

O Start the service

4

Sensor is

working, but no

data

transmission

O No connection with

module or data base

t Check parameter settings

o Change fire wall setting

5
RS485 mis-

communication

o Wrong wiring
I Change connection or
wire/connector

o Wrong serial NO o Check setting and data format

t Unknown t Contact

6

Module is

working but data

not correct

O System error o Reset RTU

7 Not working t Un know O Contact factory

FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev. A 4,,.
.-,/ /

--- 
-/ /' 202

Item 17.



FlexFlow lQ lnstallation Manual Rev' A

I I

203

Item 17.



I a

I

ty, Senrfce
ir

nrraWa
& Repa

t
,
f.

Factory/Field Support
Our responsiveness doesn't end with the development of equipment or with the sale. Utility Systems
Science and Software instrumentation and controllers are supported by both in-house and field service
technicians. allowing for quick response to customer needs.

We provide need assessments and staft-up assistance. plus warranty and non-warranty repairs at either
your locatron or our factory. There is constant involvement of engineers, technicians and support
personnel to ensure that our customers have access to the latest in instrumentation technology, from the
simplest to the most difficult applications. Help from our knowledgeable U53 Customer Support Center is
just a phone call away.

lt/anufacturer warrants all products of its manufacture to be free from defects in workmanship and
material under normal use and service. This warranty extends for a period of twelve (12) months, from
date of shipment, unless altered by mutual agreement between the Purchaser and Manufacturer prior to
the shipment of the product. lf this product is believed to be defective, Purchaser shall notify
lt/lanufacturer and wrll return the product to the l\4anufacturer, postage paid, within twelve (12) months.
after date of shipment by the Manufacturer.

lf the Purchaser believes the return of the product to be impractical, Manufacturer shall have the option.
but will not be required, to inspect the product wherever located. ln any event, if the Purchaser requests
the Manufacturer visit their location the Purchaser agrees to pay the non-warranty expenses of travel.
lodging. and subsistence for the field service response.

lf the product is found by the Manufacturer's inspection to be defective in workmanship or material, the
defective part or parts will either be repaired or replaced. at Manufacturer's election, free of charge.
Warranty repairs will be returned to Purchaser. transportation prepaid to any point in the United States. lf
inspection by the lManufacturer of such product does not disclose any defect of workmanship or material.
Manufacturer's regular service repair charges and freight charges will apply.

This warranty statement does not apply to any products sold or provided, that are not manufactured by

Utility Systems Science & Software. lnc. These products may be covered by the original manufacturer's

\-/ written warranty.

tI a_t
il

-IL

I

r
7

I
3

il

r

n
al-

Utility Systems Science & Software www.uscubed.com P:714.542.1004 F:714.542.1332

-_I.--- n
L

L' E

/

ll

204

Item 17.



THE FOREGOING WARRANTY IS MANUFACTURER'S SOLE WARRANTY AND ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, ITVIPLIED OR STATUTORY INCLUDING AND IMPLIED WARRANTY OF
IVIERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE NEGATED AND
EXCLUDED THE FOREGOING WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
GUARANTEES. REPRESENTATIONS OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES ON THE PART OF THE
IMANUFACTURER

Purchaser's sole remedy and Jtlanufacturer's sole obligation for alleged product failure, whether under
warranty claim or othenruise. shall be the aforementioned obligation of [t/anufacturer to repair or replace
products returned within the above stated warranty periods.

The lt/anufacturer shall not be liable for. and the Purchaser assumes and agrees to indemnify and save
harmless the lVlanufacturer in respect to, any loss or damage that may arise through the use by the
Purchaser. or others of any of the lVanufacturer's
products.

Factory Seruice
Send instrumentation and wireless controllers to the US3 factory where our qualified and experienced
electronic technicians perform all requrred repairs and preventatrve marntenance.

lnstrum ent mai ntenance
All repair parts. factory labor. ground shipping to the factory and
return shipping from the factory are included US3 will also
provide factory calibration and certification every time you send
in your instrument.

Confidence in US3 factory service professionals
US3 expefts have years of experrence working on US3
equipment and applying their certified expertrse will ensure that
your equipment stays as good as new!

Utility Systems Science & Software www.uscubed.com P: 714.542. I 004 F: 714.542.1332

a

- 7 Lt
l-

I

205

Item 17.



Field Service

Supporting customer service commitment, Utility Systems
Science & Software employs highly qualified field
engineers and technicians throughout North America.
Wherever your facility is located. our specialists speak your
language, know your market. know your technology. and
they are available with rapid-response solutions that
translate into keeping your system operational.

Beside installation and commissioning. we offer you
integrated. comprehensive solutions for inspections. on-
site repairs and outage services. Our experienced service
specialists have the know-how to get your equipment back
online in the shoftest time. US3 also provides timely delivery of parls and components featuring quality
and reliability.

Repair Pricing

Standard Turnaround
At US3 our normal turnaround trme is 8-'10 working days. However. there are times when a repair will
take longer (if some needed material replacement part are not available). Our technicians will make every
effort to repair the instrument within the standard given time.

Rush Repairs
At Utility Systems Science & Software, we realize that your instrumentation is criticalto your operation
Every minute your industrial equipment isn't operational. puts your customers and environment at risk
We work hard to ensure you receive fast efficient. quality repairs. We provide a rush repair service to
accommodate your needs. We will make every effort to repair and return your item within 2-3 business
days.

lf a faster response time is required, please be sure to make your US3 customer service professional
aware of your requirements when you place a repair order. ln such instances, your unit will be placed
under the "Hot Rush" repair option and be moved ahead of other repairs.

Emergency Repairs
lf, at your request, your repair requires us to work beyond normal business hours, you will be charged the
overtime shop rate (or field service rate, if applicable) for the amount of time an engineer is involved with
the repair. This charge will apply whether or not the item is repaired. lf the normal repair price exceeds
this minimum charge. the normal repair charge will apply with additional charges for after-hours service.

Return Shipping
Before we ship, all repaired items are placed in Bubble Pack Rolls, if applicable, and carefully packed to
UPS specifications. A documented quality report and warranty statement is sent with each item. Our
Automated Company Portal sends email to the customer when the shipment is delivered with all the
Carrier Details.

Return freight will normally be prepaid and added to the invoice. We will ship the best way, as determined
by us, unless a specific carrier and priority is determined previously by the customer. Customer is
responsible for all shipping charges, regardless of repair ability.

Utility Systems Science & Software www.uscubed.com P:714.542.1004 F:714.542.1332

rl-i5

--_a a

I
t-

206

Item 17.



Repair Pricing
"How much will my repair cost?" is one of the most frequently asked questions. lt is also one of the most

\-/ imPortantquestions.

0-1 year Free.

All hardware and software will be repaired at our factory

Why We Test Before We Quote
The cost to repatr an item can have a significant range. The amount of damage is the largest factor
affecting the cost. Other variables considered in pricing include the cost of the replacement components,
the testing required to verify that the item has been repaired correctly. and also whether there have been
previous repairs or repair attempts.

No " Flat Fees"
This is why US3 does free evaluations. We base your repair price on what is damaged on your item and
how much work it will take to make the repairs needed. We provide free price quotes on all in house
repairs. All items are carefully evaluated in order to determine the actual repair price. We're totally
committed to gaining your loyalty as a customer. We know this loyalty must be won by proving to you that
we're watching out for your best interest.

Repair Cost versus Replacement Cost
Every now and then, we do get an item that approaches the 50% cost of new to repair. but the majority
are not that high so you don't have to pay excessive repair charges. To come up with a rough estimate of
what your repair cost range may be, consider 25% to 50% the cost of replacement. however. your repair
price from US3 will be determined when we do a physical examination and then you will get a written
quote to approve.

Warranty Service Options

ln order to receive warranty service, you must first contact US3 Customer Service staff using the contact
information provided below for a Return Materials Authorization (RMA) number.

US3 will provide warranty service through one or more of the following options defined below.

(i) Mail in service. lf US3 determines that your US3 branded hardware is eligible for mail-in service
US3 will send you prepaid waybills and if applicable, packaging material, so that you may ship
your US3 branded hardware to an US3 location in accordance with our instructions. Once service
is complete, the US3 service location will return the US3 branded hardware and/or component to
you. US3 will pay for shipping to and from your location if all instructions are followed

US3 Customer Service staff must be contacted for a Return Materials Authorization (RMA)
number and shipping instructions prior to shrpment to US3.

The US3 Application Kit must be shipped. postage prepaid, to US3 and must show the RMA
number on the inside and outside of the package.

('l) Do-it-yourself (DlY) parts service. DIY parts service allows you to service your own US3 branded
hardware. lf DIY parts service is available in the circumstances, the following process will apply.

(a) Service where US3 requires return of the replaced US3 Application Kit or part(s). US3 may
require a credit card authorization as security for the retail price of the replacement US3

Lhiliry- S)stems Science & Software www.uscubed.com P:714.542.1004 F:714.512.1332

207

Item 17.



Application Kit or part and applicable shipping costs. lf you are unable to provide credit card
authorization. DIY parts service may not be available to you and US3 will offer alternative
arrangements for service. US3 will ship a replacement US3 or part to you with installation
instructions, if applicable, and any requirements for the return of the replaced US3 Application
Kit or part(s) or part. lf you follow the instructions, US3 will cancel the credit card authorization
and you will not be charged for the US3 Application Kit or part and shipping to and from your
location. lf you fail to return the replaced US3 Application Kit or part as instructed or return a
replaced part that is ineligible for service, US3 will charge your credit card for the authorized
amount.

(b) Service where US3 does not require return of the replaced US3 Application Kit or part(s). US3
will ship to you free of charge a replacement US3 Application Kit or part(s) accompanied by
installation instructions, if applicable, and any requirements for the disposal of the replaced
US3 Application Kit or part.

US3 reserves the right to change the method by which US3 may provrde warranty service to you, and
your US3 Application Kit's eligibility to receive a particular method of service. Service will be limited to the
options available in the country where service is requested. Service options, parts availability and
response times may vary according to country. You may be responsible for shipping and handling
charges if the US3 Application Kit cannot be serviced rn the country it is in. lf you seek service in a
country that is not the country of purchase, you will comply with all applicable import and export laws and
regulations and be responsible for all custom duties, V.A.T. and other associated taxes and charges. For
international service, US3 may reparr or replace US3 Application Kit and parts with comparable US3
Application Kit and parts that comply with local standards.
US3 will repair. or. at its option. replace at no charge. components that have proven to be defective
during the applicable warranty period.

What is Covered by Warranty

US3 Application Kits as defined below shall be free from defects in materials and workmanship for a
period of one (1 ) year.

The following components/parts of US3 Application Kits shall be covered by this Warranty:

(i) Mechanical enclosure and connectors

(ii ) lnternal electronics

(iii) Global SIM card (lf applicable)

(iv) lnternal and/or external antennae

(v) Sensor inputs

What is Not Covered by Warranty

This Warranty does not apply to certain non-US3 branded hardware products or parts, even if
packaged or sold with US3 hardware. These third-party products include sensors. US3 does not
warrant that the operation of the US3 Application Kit will be uninterrupted or error-free. US3 is not
responsible for damage arising from failure to follow instructions relating to the US3 Application Kits'
use.

This Warranty does not apply to. (a) consumable parts, (b) cosmetic damage, including but not
limited to scratches. dents and broken plastic on connectors and/or ports, (c) damage caused by use
with another product other than the third-party products shipped by US3 or one of our drstributors,
agents or affiliates, (d) damage caused by accident, abuse, misuse, liquid contact, lightning strikes,

Ulilit-v Systems Science & Software '*uv.uscubed.com P:714.542.1001 F: 714.542.1332

(c) US3 is not responsible for any labor costs incurred relating to DIY parts service. Should you
require further assistance. contact US3 at the telephone number listed below.

208

Item 17.



volcanic eruptions, earthquakes, flooding, wind, snow, hail. and other weather related elements or
other external cause; (e) damage caused by service (including upgrades and expansions) performed
by anyone who is not a representative of US3; (f) part(s) that have modified to alter functionality or
capability of the US3 Application Kit without the express written permission of US3; (g) defects
caused by normal wear and tear or otherwise due to the normal aging of the US3 Application Kit, or
(h) if any serial number has been removed or defaced from the US3 Application Kit.

Battery Warranty

"How long will the battery last?" is often asked. The battery pack has a warranty of 3 years

0-3 years Free*

Payment Terms
Once a repair quote is approved, we will establish payment terms. For your convenience, we accept Visa, lvastercard

Discover, & American Express. Other modes of payments are through standard Purchase Orders.

Contact lnfomlatiotl M-F 8-S Pacific CO NTACT - SANTA ANA

CONTACT . SAN DIEGO

C ONTACT - H OUSTON

' Utility Systems Science and Software warranties the electronics and soflware for a period of (1) year This warranty does not
cover damage or repairs or replacements by any cause beyond the control of U53, including acts of nature, improper use, lack of
proper maintenance, vandalism, or unauthorized repair. US3 shall not be liable for any actual, exemplary, indirect or
consequential damages, including damages for loss of goodwill or profits and/or losses, that stem from a failure or malfunction of
the US3

Utilify S)'stems Science & Software nu'w.uscubed.conr P:714.542.1004 F: 714.542.1332

P *l_lzlllSE!:3L91
E sales@uscubed.com
Technical Support
suoport@uscubed.com

Pr +1 (6'19) 546-4281
E sales@uscubed.com
Technical Support:
suDDort@ uscu bed.com

P +1 (714\ 564-3494
E. sales@uscubed com
Technical Support.
suDport@ uscu bed.com

209

Item 17.



MAIN

ATTACHMOIT A - BID SUBMISSIOI{ FO,RM

BIDOERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOI.IOWING II{FORMANON:

ln compltsnca ryltlr thir lrvtbtion fot Eio rnd fo dltarrrs, cooditbns, eM specilications imposed thereh tnd h€rBW
lt6rtoct(d h/Gfcrenca, ltc undcrltntd otrcr! and sarac! to fumth th. goods and,/or s:ruka: deErlbcd h.r.in.

t cr.ription of Wort Price

Preparc the attached'Bid Submission Form Template'to
develop unat and ext€nded costs. Conftrm descripUon of
proposed equipment

A Bld Submission form template should be dwebped lor
all prlcin8 opthns/aheroatives p.eremed,

Plour mtr erry of thr iollowhq;
. Arry lebor pgrror.rcl requerc oil the Oty ol

Rcpublk
hr tt.3 prolGCL

r Any othGr ruqu.3ts c ruryonclbllltlo ol
dECity
of Rcpnblk for thls profect.

Flow Moniroring5ummary: g + t, 7{T, 0{
tlvbid ' ao4 ntYing d

Sewe r Ba nd Cost 9u m m ary : {o,r {, for, q.. il rAlu{,t t

Rah Gauge Cost Summary: { 2.6q Z 9G

Software Cost Summary: (q Gq./- 2q

'l'otal Costl

gty o, RcFrbllc, Mlrcourl

IFB for: SrniEV Scwcr How Mctrri4 20.itt

icpuHiq MO65738
Addrurc:

1&|0Gen Pa* Cmrt

St kus, M0 93146

lI:me fitlc:
xr?y Pop., DitrH Utn.et

Telephone: 598-2754

Callular:

Emeil: l€rry.pop€6Dcor-EndmBin, com

Datod:

Bkldcr'3 Fcdral lO lrlumDen G#5OEE7

@ core & Main All Rights Reserved. confidential and proprietary lnformation Page 15 of 18

o

Company Lcgal Heme:
Co.r' & Main !P

210

Item 17.



Affidryit ol Complirncr with S.clion 285.500, RSSo., et.eq.
fior ell rgrecment3 providlnl rorvicrs in .rcr3i of t5,0O11.00

EFrflw trl/20G

STATE OF MISSOURI

COUNTY OF GREENE
ss.

Be{ore nre, the underrigrnd PuHic, in th€ ol State of
nfto is

ol @fir,E,ny). I (circra
one) sole proprietorehlp, comp€t.rit and authorized to make
this afrevil, and tning duly srnom Lrpo6 oah depos€s

(1) thst 88id @mparry ls onrdlcd in and partbipatas in a federal wflt erthoreatbn program wrlh
raGpect b the emdoypes worhing in csrnectiffi with the conlracted seryrces; and

(2) that sei, cdnpily do€s ttol kttffitrgly ernploy any peEon who is an unanthorized .lisn in
coonedion wtfi Up cootrsded servlces.

Tlrc tarms us€d in lhrs etfid8v,t shall hsvs the ,D€anang s€t brth in Scdron 285.500 FtSlIo., ef sag.

Docum.ntrfon ot Fartclpctlon ln a icdorrl wort ruthodrilbn

3 r-., ?-.n,
Prhed Nerlld -l

Subgcribed and sworr to beioru mc 2rrAV

My commbsion erfiree:

LTONA MARIE
}1ot., y PubllG. Sr.tC ot Oil.|'rom.

Commir&otr a l3OOZCO!

l-[Lf[.rl

ssys

of Jo

sE1td[

rr
tl

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 16 of 18211

Item 17.



MAIN

City of Republc, Missor.rri

AFFIDAVTT OF CDMPUA'ICE w|TH IfIUT NOil FOR BID

To b sshrrl,it{rd tttf6. arl Ns la rcri4lrt* to tl* rFg

_We DO ilOT takr exception to the rFB Documents/Requirem.nts,

-LWe 
ftXg .xceptbn to the tFB DocrrnentvRequarements as folowg:

INDEMNITY. Core & Main will agnee b deGnd the Oity from dainrs only to lhe extent it is

allegcd by lhird pattos that Core & Main rs at frault (Erro4h ib n€gligence, wilful niscondud,

vbletoo of lar or broacfi ot confact). and c,orE f Main wil indemnity the City only to the ensnt !ilch thlrd pany

chim are caus6d by faull on lla pnt

I hrve cerefully eramined the lnvitation for Bid artd agree to abHe by all submiued prichg delivery, tems and
condlthns of thls IFB unkss otherwise rtipulatEd herein.

Name & Main LP

Signaturef
Address 1830 Craio Park Court

St. Lods, iro 631'to

Teleptrone Number l2*)n2-7910

Date

ATX'gDA

Offeror actnowhd&c r"cript of the bilowlrE addendum:

Adtlendum No._

Mdendum llo. _

Addendum IIo. _

Addendum ilo. _

Email

Federal Tax ;p 16. 0&O550887

DBE Vcndor (Ycr/No): No Mhorlty Onned: _
Women O*ned:
Veteran Owned:

By

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 17 of 18

Fax Numbcr-

212

Item 17.



Bid Submission Form Template
City of Republic, Missouri

Bid Altemative #:

Item Description Quantity Unil Ralo Extended Cosl Notes

AN ProlEs S No Brd $
itodems (Telemetrv) 5 $

Cabhng A Appuftetnnces ) S /*r h928A $ {zq?_ qo
Sewer Bands

. . o.bg
18 nches t Below 16 B 1O 12 15 1Bl 5 $ No Brd not requrred $

21'or Greater 2 $ No 8rd nol requrred c

Rain Gaugc

Rain Gauoe & Tipsnq Bucket 1 8)3 57 $ QzZ 97
N.lodem 1 1e24 ?9 t I D;t-l -O

Meter lnstall Configuratitn (ilobile) 1 5 4242.ffi $ LL. 2rf2.g 6 Nleter & Rarn Gauqe lnstallatron &
Confiauraton - one time fee

Cloud Hoshng Envfonment '| $ 5451.43,ymr $ q. {ct. tl ?
Cloud Hosting for Fivs ['leter Sitos
and one (1 ) Rain Gauoe - annUally

Total Bid Alternatlve Cost -5|t'Fr'F- I Se.oql rc

]]firl-Il

Softwarc lnstellation

Flow lrlonitorlng Equlpment --, ^*3
)w l4ele( & Batteru A4odulc *rt #- g LLa atl7t*

@ Core & Main All Rights Reserved. Confidential and Proprietary lnformation Page 18 of 18213

Item 17.



REPUBLIC
lv SSOURL

City of Republic - lnvitation for Bid
Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering 2023

SEATED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALTY RECEIVED AT REPUBtIC CITY HAtt PRIOR TO 3:00 P.M. on Mondav Julv
1oth. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place.

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS

City of Republic
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main Avenue
Republic, MO 65738

DESCRIPTION:

Flow Metering Equipment:
o Provide 5 area-velocity flow meters including all necessary sensors, data recorders, mounting

hardware, cables, software and equipment needed for the meters to be fully operational.
o ISCO 2150, Hach F1900, or equal

. Sensors must measure the depth, velocity and flow (minimum, maximum and average) with the
following levels of accuracy:

o Depth accuracy of +/- 0.2 inches (maximum)
o Velocity accuracy of +/- 0.3 feet per second (maximum)

o Provide flow meters and A/V probes that are capable to accurately measure gravity flow in pipes with
diameters ranging from 6" to 24" .

o Provide metering bands necessary for flow monitoring installations for pipe sizes ranging from 8" to
24" diameter.

ir

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products
if they choose.

o Bids shall be submitted with the lnvitation for Bid ("lFB") project name or item clearly indicated
on the outside of the mailing envelope.

r Bids received after the opening date and time will be reiected.
o The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of and are herein expressly incorporated

into any contract, agreement or award resulting from this lnvitation for Bid.
. FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

. Projects exceeding 575,000 in total cost shall be paid at prevailins wase.
o You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.

Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all
requested categories, but it is encouraged.

o Bids will be taken to City council for approval on July 18th,2023. Notice to proceed shall follow
no later than Jg[L4ILZ023 following approvalBranted by City Council.

214

Item 17.



Rainfall Monitoring Eq uipment:
. Provide one (1) tipping bucket rain gauge:

o ISCO 677Ci (2O75Cl with antenna and 2191 Battery node) , Trimble/Telog Rain Gauge Recorder
with Cellular Modem ( RG-32A) with Texas Electronics TR-525 Tipping Bucket, or equal.

. Provide wireless communication modules (modems) and necessary cabling for each flow meter and rain
gauge that are capable of transmitting the data collected to the cloud in near real time (up to every 5-
minutes).

Software
o Provide quote forflow monitoring software to support meter installations and provide data cloud hosting

and remote access to the flow monitoring data for up to five (5) flow meters and one (1) rain gauge.
o Software costs should include all up-front purchase pricing for the software platform and annual

maintenance costs.

lnclude with the bid the following information:
. Equipment specifications and warranty information for the flow meters to be furnished, and a

description ofthe equipment, communication processes and data feed transmission process.
. Procedures, schedule, and documentation for meter calibration.
. ManufacturerProcedure Recommendationsforinstallation

City plans to award Base bid, plus anv combination of alternates as determined by the City. Therefore, please
provide pricing for each, separately.

SCHEDULE:

City intends to take the winnin8 bid to City Council for Approval on July 18th, 2023, with Notice to Proceed
to follow no later than i uly 241h,2023. Delivery of all eq uipment awarded sha ll be no later tha n December
1.t 2023.

lnquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to:

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager
BUILDS Department, City of Republic
gbrickner@ re pu blicmo.com

l4L7l7f2-34os

lmportant Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding:

It is the City's intent and desire that this lnvitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent any

language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within thls lnvitation for Bid result in the elimination
of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such restrictio n/lim itatio n

is not intended by the City but is merely an unintentional error. ln the event such error is discovered by any
potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, in writing, no later
thanthree(3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Uponreceiptofanysuchnotice,theCitywilltakereasonable
efforts to correct the error and resubmit the lnvitation for Bid once corrected.

215

Item 17.



01

)3

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

OpeninB location: Bids submitted in response to this lnvitation for Bid ("1F8") will be opened at Republic City
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, at 3:00 P.M. on Mondav Julv l0th. All Bidders (individually, "Bidde(';
collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening of the
B ids.

IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. lt
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or
before the due date and time indlcated.

a. lf a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall.
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected.
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request andexpense.
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the siBned Bid form and requlred information

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time.
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted.

City of Republic
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main
Republic MO 65738

Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual).

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance
pa8e.

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid.

c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award.

o4

05. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine alldocuments attached to and/or provided by the
City with this lFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this lFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable

inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents.
a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information

pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted).

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by

any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City.

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or
additional information can be given-

d. lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the

listed City contact.

02.

Sealed and Marked: lf sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing
envelope and addressed to:

Corrections: No erasures are permitted.
a. ln the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following

formatting must be applied:
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and

2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and
3. The signe(s) ofthe Bid must initial all corrections.

06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding
216

Item 17.



07

08.

)9

Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB

Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that,
if awarded the contract under this lFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other
documents required under this lFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same.

a The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety
company authorized by the Director ofthe Missouri Department of lnsurance and Commerce to cond uct
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and
made payable to the City of Republic.

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB

The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids.

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security ofthe three apparent lowest Bidders until either:
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance,
including certificates of lnsurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have
been rejected, whichever occurs first.

lrrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the lFB. Any
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90)
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the lFB, until one or more of the Bids have been
duly accepted by the City.

Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the lFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance,
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made.

Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the
determination ofthe Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include but shall notbe
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past
performance records.

The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase,

and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found.
a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidde/s records pertaining to the work/product for a period of

three (3) years after final payment.

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City.

Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulatlons of the State of Missouri and the City including the City

Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order

entered into under the terms of this lFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance

with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures.

Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the city Procurement Regulations.

a. protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent

c

10.

7L.

L2

13

217

Item 17.



\-'14.

15

L6.

18

b. Anyprotestshall statethe basis upon which the solicitation oraward is contested and shall besubmitted
within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected
to know of the facts giving rise thereto.

Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this lFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified
from submitting any future Bids.

Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other
Bidde(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this lFB, to
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that:

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation,
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor.

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other
Bidder or to any competitor.

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this
lFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to soliclt or secure the contract awarded under
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser
for the purpose of doing business.

Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on
forms either supplied by or approved by the City.

Liability and lndemnity:
a. ln no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the
terms of this lFB. The maxim um liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this lFB.

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed

officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including

attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this lFB, or (2) the work
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder

expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not

limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages.

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime

compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract,

including payment of reasonable attorneys'fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the

Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law.

IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by

the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City

requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of compliance. otherwise, Bidders

t7.

218

Item 17.



must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent.

Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response.
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item ofthe project.
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made.
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents.

Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email
will not be considered.

No Bid: lf not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided.

Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. ln case an
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern.

27.

22.

25.

26.

Prices:
a.

Bids must include both unit price and extended total.
Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. lncaseof discrepancyin
computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern.
All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB,

as used in this lFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified
location in the City of Republac. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic.

Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other
item or items.
lf a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified.
Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified.
Pre-payment terms are not acceptable.

b

c

d

e

f.

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the
City's determ ination of award(s).

Descriptive lnformation: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended.

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only.

b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer
specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated.

Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied

with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records.

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may

be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains.

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance

form, at the time of submittal of Bid.

r-9.

20.

23.

219

Item 17.



27

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly
accountable to the specifications as written.

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection
of the material and/or equipment when delivered.

Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and
specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By

virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidde(s) is legally
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents.

Regulations: lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply.

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by

Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federalwork authorization program

with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with
the contracted services.

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (1o)hour

course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health

Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor

and lndustrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The

training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences.

On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation ofthe required training shall

have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation.

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty

two thousand five hundred dollars (52,500.00), plus one hundred dollars (S100.00) for each on-

site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each

calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction

safety training required in the above paragraph.

Quality Guaranty: lf any product delivered does not meet applica ble specifications or otherwise fa ils to com pare
with the quality represented by the Bldder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. ln the
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its riBhts under this paragraph.

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials il in its judgment, the item reflects
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages.

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax lD Number 12492990

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the
Bidder, and all other relevant factors.

a. Unless otherwise stated in the lFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment.

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non-
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received.

.-- 31.

32

220

Item 17.



d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City.

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidde(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or
processes in conjunction with the eq uipment being furnished. Biddershall defend all suitsorclaimsfor
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and

attorney's fees incurred.

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title
Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) a nd the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15

CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the
successful Bidder for award.

36. lnsurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awa rded under this lFB, (which, for projects
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City),
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless

otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the
City at the City's sole discretion.

Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers
Compensation lnsurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work In

connection with a contract awarded under this lFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to
provide similar Workers Compensation lnsurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless

such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensatlon

coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of 5500,000 each

employee and S500,000 each accident.

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General

Liability coverage for personal and advertising in.iury, bodily injury including accidental death,

and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract

awarded under this lFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than 52,000,000 each occurrence

and S1,000,000 each person.

commercial Automobile Liability (oppfies only to proieds involving the successlul Biddels

operotion oI vehictes in peioming the work owarded under this tFBl:. The successful Bidder

shall maintain commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than s2,000,000 each

occurrence and 51,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis.

37. performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond lopplies only to Woiects involving lobor):
pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed 550,000 00,

the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials

Payment Bond with surety, approved by the city and on forms approved by the city, each bond shall be

in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major

terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies'

a

c

221

Item 17.



38. Liquidated Damates: Time of completion of the Project by the Successful Bidder is of the essence.
Should the Successful Bidder fail to complete the Project within the time specified in the governing
contract/schedule, without express authorization by the City allowing for an extension of time to
completion, the Successful Bidder shall be liable to the City in the amount of $1.00 per day for each and
every calendar day the Project remains uncompleted, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, it
being stipulated and agreed that the actual damages to the City arising from the Successful Bidder's
failure to timely complete the Project would be difficult, if not impossible, to reasonably ascertain.
Assessment of liquidated damages will not relieve the Successful Bidder, or its surety/ies, of any
responsibility or obligation under the Contract.

39. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this lFB, the successful Bidder shall
procu re and maintain:

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo.

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient
employer fina ncial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230,
RSMo.

40. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB

41. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based
upon availability of funds.

42. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this lFB, the Bidder
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form.

43. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence.

44. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2,

RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic

affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this lFB, knowingly employ, or
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien.

45. lnspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract

awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the city until the City has had reasonable

opportunity to inspect the item(s).

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be

returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individ ual who sold the item(s) for
full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

b. It at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial

inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or

entity/ind ivid ua I who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual

remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or

contract awarded under this lFB.

222

Item 17.



46. Davis-Bacon Act: lf the lnstructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB

shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rulesand regulations, including provisions of the
Davis-Bacon Act,40 U.S.C. 53141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this lFB.. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any
contract awarded under this lFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under
either law.

47. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this
lFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri.
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAT UNDER ANY APPTICABLE STATUTE,

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAT OR STATE CONSTITUTION.

48. Conflict of lnterest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB'S

terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall
not be violated.

49. Sovereign lmmunity: ln no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state
constitutions, states, and/or laws.

50. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. lt
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all
aspects ofthis bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive
any defectsas to form or content ofthe Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as

public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request.

223

Item 17.



Description of Work Price

Prepare the attached "Bid Submission Form Template" to
develop unit and extended costs. Confirm description of
proposed equipment.

A Bid Submission form template should be developed for
all pricing options/alternatives presented.

Please note any of the following:
o Any labor personnel requests of the City ol

Republic
for this project.

. Any other requests or responsibilities of
the city
of Republic for this project.

Flow Monitoring Summary

Sewer Band Cost Summary:

Rain Gauge Cost Summary

Software Cost Summary:

Total Cost:

ln compliance with this lnvitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein.

City of Republic, Missouri

Telephone:

Cellular:

Email:

Company Legal Name:

Address:

Signature:

Name and Title:

Dated:

Bidder's Federal lD Number:

ATTACHMENT A . BID SUBMISSION FORM

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

IFB for: Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering 2O2t

Republic, MO 65738

224

Item 17.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January L,2OO9,

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009

v 
Effective Januarv 1. 2OO9 and pursuant to Section 235.530(1) ofthe Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity
or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work
within the state of Missouri."

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand
dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republicl to a business entity (e.q.,

potentiol bidders in response tothis IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the
employees workinB in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services.

see 5 285.530(2), RSMo.

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over 55,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods
only. lf a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of
the solicitation is over S5,000.

225

Item 17.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., whach require certain
statements to be made under penalty of perlury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) provlding an
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows:

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect
to the employees working an connection with the contracted services; and

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection
with the contracled services.

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et
seg.

2. Additionally, Company must orovide documentation evidencino current enrollment in a federal work
authorization program (e.9. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding
(MOU). See attached sample.

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorizalion
program. lnformation regarding E-Verify is available at httor//www uscis qov/e-verifu or by calling 888.f644218.

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the followrng page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address:
httos.//www. reoublicmo.com/DocumentCenterA/iew/77lAffidavi!of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-
PDF?bidtd=

226

Item 17.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq.

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00

Effective l/1/2009
'-srATE 

oF MrssouRr

COUNTY OF GREENE

Beforeme,theunderSignedNotaryPublic'inandfortheCountyof-,Stateof

- 

personarrv appeared 

-'!,' 

!i)!!iil u**
one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows:

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with
respect to the employees working in connection with the conkacted services; and

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in
connection with the contracted services.

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit.

Signature

Printed Name

Subscribed and sworn to before me this da of

SS

v

Notary Public

My commission expires

)

)
)

227

Item 17.



Company lD Number: XXXXXX

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland
Security), and the Employer.

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively.

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. lf you have
any q uestions, contact E-Verify Operations al 888-464-421 8.

\
Epplgyg1. Your Company Namr ) I P

')

\J J \
)

John Doe

l r\
ElectronicattySioned dJY t iriJ Title

')

jw
9

.J

t\\

9

D?q

9r
UVerification

USCIS Verification Division

JJ\

\\

9'tJ 9I
-t\)9')

) tl\o(
Name (Please $pe or print)

Signature

''{e\I)

t
r. t $ ')I

U
')

J}I\ )

1 \

?

228

Item 17.



City of Republic, Missouri

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPTIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID

To be submitted with oll Bids in response to this IFB

We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements.

We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows

I have carefully examined the lnvitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and

\-, conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein.

Company Name ADDENDA

By Offeror acknowledges receipt ofthe following addendum:
(Authorized Person's Signature)

Company Add ress Addendum No. _

Addendum No

Telephone Number Addendum No

Addendum No

Date Email

FederalTax lD No.

DBE Vendor (Yes/No): _ Minority Owned
Women Owned:
Veteran Owned:

Fax Number

229

Item 17.



City of Republic, Missouri

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL" / "NO BID"

ETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO.

wE, THE UNDERSTGNED, HAVE DECLTNED TO BtD ON yOUR tFB FOR THE FOLLOWTNG REASON(S):

-SPECIFICATIONS 

ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW)

INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.

OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM

UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS.

UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.

SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW)

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW).

REMARKS:

COMPANY NAME

ADDRESS:

TITLE

SIGNATURE

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

DATE:

230

Item 17.



$rtate of fliEsorrri

Limited Exemption
from Missouri State Sales and Use Tar on Purchases

(Political Subdivision)

lssued To MISSOURI ID: 12492990

CITY OF REPUBLIC
213 N MAIN AVE
REPUBLIC, MO 65738- 1472

Efiective Dale 07 I 1 1 l2OO2

Your application for sales and use tax exempt status has been approved under Section 144.030. 1

RSMo. This letter is tEsued as doqJmentation of your agency's exempt stalus. Your agency must
adhere to all requtrements of your exempt status

This is a continuing exemption subiect to legislative changes and revie\r/ by tlre Direclor of Revenue
Outlined belo\iv are sp€crfic requirements regarding this exemption. This summary is not intended as a
complete restaternenl of the law. You should review the law to ensure your understanding and
compliance.

. This exemption is not assignable or transferable. lt is an exemption from sales and us€ taxes
only and is not an exemption from real or personal property tax.

. Purchases by your agency are not subject lo sales or use tax if conducted within your agency s
exempt functions 8nd activities Whan purchasing with this exemption, furnrsh all sellers or
vendors a copy of this letter

. A contrac'tor may purchase and pay for construchon materials exempt from sales tax when
fulfilling a clntract with your agency only if your agency issues a project exempton certifacate and
the contractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions of Section 1114.062 RSMo.

o Sales by your agerrcy are subject to all applicable state and local sales taxes

. lf your agency engag€s in fie business of selling tangible personal property or taxable services at
retail, you must obtain a Missouri Retall Sales Tax License and collect and remit state and local
sales taxes.

. Any alteration to this exemption lener renders it invalid

lf you have any questions regarding the use of this letter, contact the Taxation Division, Post Office Box
358. Jefferson City. MO 65105-0358, salestaxexemptions@dor. mo.gov. or call 573-751-2836.

Nolrca Number 2017597353

o lndividuals making personal purchases may not us€ this exemptjon

231

Item 17.



MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990
Contract Date:
Contract #:_

MISSOURI PROIECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of

Revenue)

EXF'MPT I'NTITY ISSUING CT',RTIF'ICATE
Name: City of Republic, Missouri
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue
City I State I Zip : Republic, Missouri 657 3 I

Letter Effective Date:
Certifi cate Expiration Date:
Revised Expiration Date

Project Description

Project Location
Project Completion Date
Auth. Si
Date:

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal
propertlto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to
Section 144.62, RSMo.

PTIRCH A STNG CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR

Name:

Address:

CitylStatelZip

INSTRUCTIONS

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished
to each contractor andlor subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date.

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the
purchaser for a period offive years.

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases

oftangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases

must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above.

232

Item 17.



Bid Submission Form Template
City of Republic, Missouri

Bid Alternative #:

Item Description Quantity Unit Rate Extended Cost Notes

Flow Meter & Baftery Module E $ $
AN Probes ( $ $

Modems (Telemety) 5 $ $
Cablins & Appuftenances 5 $ $

Sewer Bands

18 inches & Below (6,8,10,12,15.18) I $ $
21" or Greater 2 $ $

Rain Gauge

Rain Gauge & Tippinq Bucket 1 $ $
Modem 1 $ $

Software lnstallation

Meter lnstall Configuration (Mobile) I $ $
Meter & Rain Gauge lnstallation &
Configuration

Cloud Hosting Environment 1 $ $
Cloud Hosting for Five Meter Sites
and one ('1) Rain Gauqe

Total Bid Alternative Cost $

Flow illonitoring Equipment

233

Item 17.



Bid Bond

CONTRACTOR:
/.\'ane. legol status ond address)
CORE & MAIN LP
2854 E Keamev
Springfield, MO 65803

OWNER:

1.\'ame, legal status and a.Llress)
CIry OF REPUBLIC
c/o Citv Clerk Laura Burbridoe
2,l3 N6dh MainAvenue, Re-public, Mo 65738

SURETY:
(\'ome, legol stotus and p ncipol place
oIbusiness)
RLI INSURANCE COMPANY
9025 North Lindbemh Drive
Peoria, lL 6'i6'l5 -

This documer( has important legal

consequences. Consultation wilh
an attomey is encouraged with
re+ect to ils completion or
modification .

Any singular reference lo
Contractor, Surety, Owner or
other party shall be consbered

durdl where applicable.

az, Anomey in Fact

(Seal)

BOND AltlOUl{T: Ten Percent of Anount bid
(10% ofAmount Bid)

PROJECT:
(\ame, location or qddress, and Project nuther, rf an.v)
Sanitary Se\,ver Flow Metering 2023 Project Number. ifary

The Contractor and Sulett arc bound to tllc O$ ncr in tlrc amounl sel foflh abovc. for thc pa] mcnt of $'hich thc
Contractor and Surcq- bind thernseh'es. tlEir heirs. e\ccuto$. administrators. successoB and assigns. jointlt and
sclcralll. as pmvidcd hcrein. TIE condilions ofthis Bond are such that if thc O$ner acccpts the bid of tllc Contnctor
rvithin the timc specified in thc bid documents. or $ ithin such time period as nra) be agrced to b)-' tlrc Os ner and

Conuactor. and lhe Contractor either ( l) cnlcrs into a contract $ilh tIrc O$ ner in accordancc Nith the tcnns of such
bid. and giles such bord or bonds as nu1-' be spccified in tlE bidding or Conl-ract Documents. with a suret) adrnitled
in the jurisdiction of the Prcject and othcnrise acccptable to thc O$'ncr. for thc faithful pcrfonEncc of such Conlnct
and for lhc prompt pa] ment of labor ard nutcrial fumished in th€ prosecution thereof: or (2) pa) s to the O\rncr thc
diffcrencc. mt to e\cced the amount ofthis Bord- befir'een thc amount spccified in said bid and such laBcr anrount

for uiich lhe O$ner mal in good faith contract $ith amtlrcrpa4 to perfonn the $ork coreredb1'said bid" lhen this
obligation shatl bc null and Yoid. othenlise to reruin in full forcc and effecl. The SurcS hercbl $aives anl nolicc of
an agrcemenl betrveen the Orrner and Contractor to e\tcnd lhe tim€ in $hich the 01\ ner ma) accept thc bid. Waiver of
noticc b) IIle Surc$ shall not applv to an) eiension e\ceeding si\n' (60) dar s in lhe aggregate bcl ond th€ limc for
acceptancc of bids spc.cilied in tlE bid documents. and the Ollner and Contractor shall obhin the Surct]"s comcnt for
an extension bqond si\r)- (60) days.

If this Bond is issued in corureclion r\ ith a subcontrdctor's bid to a Contractor. 0re ten Contractor in tl s Bond shall

be deemed lo b€ Subconlractor and thc tenn O$'ner shall be deerned to be Contractor.

When this Bond has been fumislrcd to compl] $ ith a slatutory or otlrer legal ,cquircment in the localion ofthc Project.

an1. provision in this Bond conllicting \r ith said statutoft' or legal requircment shall be deerned deleted herefrom and

pm\'isions conforming to such statutol orotlrer legal rcquirement shall be deelned irrcorporated hercin. Whcn so

fumished. ltle intenl is that this Bond shall be construed as a stalutory bord and not as a common la$ bond.

Si and sealcd 0ris 6th da).. of July, 2023

CORE & MAIN LP

lPrincipal)
I ll'itness) F

Beverly Woolford

ffitle)
RLIINSURANCE
(Sutety)

tll i

alA Document A3tOn - 20t0. copydgm o 1963, '1970 aM 2010 by The Amofican lnsltun6 0l &drtscts. All rlghts r8e.wd.

, Attomey in Fact

'W'AIA Document A3lor, - 2o1o

(itle)

234

Item 17.



LIMITED POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, Core & Main LP, a Florida limited partnership (the "Company"), hereby designates Susan
Welsh, Frances Ro&iguez, Sara Owens, Ben Stahl, Sandra Diaz" Anne Potter, Francesca Kaznierczak, Elizabeth
Sterling, Jennifer Jakaitis, Marisa Thielen and Wayne McVaugh of Aon Corporation as its attomeys in fact (referred
to individually or collectively as'the Agent") on the following terms and conditions:

l. Authoritv to Act. The Agent is authorized to act for the Company under this Power ofAttomey.

2. Powers of Apent. The Agent shall have the full power and authority to execute and deliver surety,
performance, bid and payment bonds (collectively, "Bonds") in an amount not to exceed $ 10,000,000.00 per Bond,
upon receipt by the Agent ofa written request for a Bond fiom an individual or individuals at the Company or its
subsidiaries duly authorized to make such a rcquest-

3. Reliance by Third Parties, Third parties may rely upon the representations ofthe Agent as to all matters
regarding powers granted to the Agent- No person who acts in reliance on the representations of the Agent or the
authority granted under this Power of Attomey shall incur any liability to the Company for permitting the Agent to
exercise any power prior to actual knowledge that the Power of Attorney has been revoked or terminated by
operation of law or otherwise.

5. Oriqinrl Counterpsrts. Photocopies of this signed Power of Attomey shall be t€ated as original
counterparts.

6. Compensation. The Agent shall be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred while acting as Agent
and may receive reasonable compensation for acting as Agent.

Dated: July 11, 2022

Name: MarK Wrtkodskr

Signed in the

""Jitl
of:

Subscribed and swom to before me ll,7n2.\

/Statelw Itness ft
My commission expires

(SEAL)

SARA J CA
Notary Public,

MPBELL
Notary Sesl

Co

Stato oI M issouri
St. Louis CountY

mmission rl 13743547
M Com m ss i E f s 0 I 22 20 2

w itness

ob -7>- 7oh4

4. Indemnification of Apent. No agent named or substituted in this power shall incur any liability to the
Company for acting or refraining from acting under tJris power, except for such agent's own misconduct or
negligence.

Public,

L

235

Item 17.



Rodrisuez. Francesca Kaznierczak. Anne L Potter. Kemal Brkanovic^ Beverlv A. Woolford- iointlv or ilv

in the City of New York State of New York its true and lawful Agent(s) and Attomey(s) in Fact, with
full power and authority hereby conferred, to sigl, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on its behalf as Surety, in general, any and all
bonds and undertakings in an amount not to exceed
( $25.000.000.00 ) for any single obligation.

Twentv Five Million Dollars

The acknowledgment and execution of such bond by the said Attorney in Fact shall be as binding upon the Company as if such bond had been

executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected offtcers of the Company.

RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, as applicable, have each further certified that the

following is a true and exact copy of a Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of each such corporation, and is now in force, to-wit:

"All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate name of
the Company by the President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the Board

of Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint

Attomeys in Fact or Agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate

seal is not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attomey or other obligations of the corporation. The

signature of any such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, as applicable, have

caused these presents to be executed by its respective Vice President with its corporate seal affixed this 8th day of
March , 2023

RLI Insurance Company
Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company

AL By: I ud-i'"oT33'"
sEAt..i.t
.........' Ls
. ,(LrNolg .,..+'

z lsnz'...zjii,:t,
Barton W. Davis Vice President

Corporate Secretary

State of Illinois

County ofPeoria )
SS

On this 8th day of March , 2023 . before me, a Notary Public,
pe.sonally uppeared Barton W. Davis , who-being by me duly^sworn'
icknowledged that he signed the above Power of Attomey as the afbresald

offrcer of it" nf.f Insuiance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and
Insurance Company and acknowleilge<i said instrument to be the voluntary
act and deed ofsaid corPoration.

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned offrcer of RLI Insurance Company and/or
Contractors B-onding and Insurance Company, do her-eby certifu
that the attached Powir of Attomey is in full force and effect and is
irrevocable; and firthermore, that the Resolution of the Company as

set forth in the Power of Attomey, is now in force. In testimony
whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and the seal of the RLI
Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bondin-g- and Insurance
Company this 6tn Aay of Julv ' 2023

RLI Insurance ComPanY
Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company

\
Notary Public

D
Notary

Commission Expires
2clfi

D. GEIGER
OFFICIALSEAL
'Public - State of

By:
Catherine D. Geiger

3133266020212

By:

A0058D19

POWER OF ATTORI\IEY
RLI Insurance Company

Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company
eo25 N' tJf;SH:-l'rB-'e-:: 

;6rw 
o t e t s

Know All Men by These Presen*:

That this Power of Attorney is not valid or in effect unless attached to the bond which it authorizes executed, but may be detached by the

approving officer if desired.

That RLI Insurance Company and/or Contractors Bonding and Insurance Company, each an Illinois corporation, (separately and

together, the "Company") do hereby make, constitute and appoint:

Debra A. Demine. Sandm Diaz. Valorie Spates. Susan A. Welsh. Jennifer L. Jakaitis. Peter Healv. Aklima Noorhassan. Frances

236

Item 17.



RLI' P.O. BOX 3967 PEORTA, lL 61612-3967
P: (800)645-2402 E: asksurety@rlicorp.com
RLISURETY.COM

RLI lnsurance Company
December 31 , 2022SURETY

Admitted Assets

Fixed maturilies-............ -... -

Equity secu ties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Short-tem investrnenls. -... -......
Real eslate.,....,.....
Propedies held lo produce income. - . .. -

cash and cash eouivalents ..........
Other invested assets. . . .

Receivables for seaJfi ti69

Agenls'balances._......
lnvestnenl inmme due and accrued , . . .

Fundsheld............
Reinsulance rccoverable on paid losses ,

Federal income taxes receivable.. -.,...
Net deferred tax asset. . . .

Guaranlee funds rcceivable oron deposil

Electronic dala pocessing equipmenl,

nelof depreciatjon.. -... -........
Receivable trom affliales .

Other admitbd assets

$ 1,343,631,s23

1 .268,806,758
3.054,500

27,011,108

0

57,699,441

53,001,785

203,933

88,924,498

10,365,084

0
10,825,931

1,430,379

11,010,858

0

755,308

0
39,34:],761

$ 830,658,551

354,155,024

97,252,026

422,374

19,971,441

u,a22,062
1,44A,394

44,327

28,144,458

2,248,339

785,200

0

0

50,036,167

0

33,879,630

4,231,',l14

Liabilities and Surplus
Liabilities;

ReseNe for unpaid losses and loss

adjustrnenlexpenses.. -...,,,.,.
Uneamed premiums... ., ... .. , . . - .

Accruedexpenses.....,.,.,,.... -

Funds held.. .... -....... -.....
Advancepremiums................
AmountswilhheH........... -... -.
Remittances and items nol allocated . .

Oividerds dedared and unpaid -.....
Ceded reinsurance premium payable. .

Payablebrs€curilies. -.. - -.. -...,.
Statutorypenallies............... -

Cunent fuderal I breign in@me taxes

Net defuned tax liability . . . . . . . . -

Borrowed rnoney and accrued interest.

Drafts outslanding

Payable to affiliate.......
Other liabilities

Totial Liabililies

Total Admitted Assets $ 2,916,068,307

Olga S. HaPPel

9.-89!J-€&r

$ 1,407,925,160

9-!p19p9!,992.

istant Secretary

Public. State of lllinois

[,'10058323 Portal

Sumlus:

Comrnonstock.....,.
Addiiional paid-in capital

Unassignedsurplus,,.

$ 10,000,375

242,451,OU

1 ,155,473,701
State of lllinois

County of Peoria

The undersigned, being duly swom, says: That he is the President of RLI lnsurance Company; that said Company is a

corporation d uly o rg a n ized, in the State of lllinois, and licensed and engaged rn busr'iaess in the State of
and has duly complied with all the requirements of the laws of sad Sfate applicable of

said Company and is duly quatified to act as Surety under such laws; that said Company has also complied with and is duly

quatified to act as Surety under the Act of Congress approved July 1947, 6U.S.C sec. 6-13; and that to the best of his

inowledge and belief the above statement is a full, true, and cotrect statement of the financial condition of the said

Company on the 31st day of December 2022-

Aftesti

Craig Klieth ermes President
Corporate

Seal
Afftxed

Total Surplus

Total Uabilites and Surplus

t \t

l*o-
1\

Swom to befote m e thts l0th day of March, 2023'

\\)
{

CATHERTNE D GEIGEF

lllinois
Epires
20?6

OFFT|AI SEAL
Publrc - stale of Notarial

Seal
AIIired ) Catherine D. GeigBr

)

SEAt

237

Item 17.



 
 

City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering 2023 

 
SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:00 P.M. on Monday July 
10th.  Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 
 
BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

City of Republic 
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge  
213 N. Main Avenue 
 Republic, MO 65738 

 
Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid (“IFB”) project name or item clearly indicated 
on  the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 
• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of and are herein expressly incorporated 

into any contract, agreement or award resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 
• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 
• Projects exceeding $75,000 in total cost shall be paid at prevailing wage. 
• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.

 Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged.  

• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on July 18th, 2023.  Notice to proceed shall  follow 
no later than July 24th, 2023  following approval granted by City Council. 

 
DESCRIPTION: 

 
Flow Metering Equipment: 

• Provide 5 area-velocity flow meters including all necessary sensors, data recorders, mounting 
hardware, cables, software and equipment needed for the meters to be fully operational. 

o ISCO 2150, Hach FL900, or equal 
• Sensors must measure the depth, velocity and flow (minimum, maximum and average) with the 

following levels of accuracy:  
o Depth accuracy of +/- 0.2 inches (maximum) 
o Velocity accuracy of +/- 0.3 feet per second (maximum) 

• Provide flow meters and A/V probes that are capable to accurately measure gravity flow in pipes with 
diameters ranging from 6" to 24".  

• Provide metering bands necessary for flow monitoring installations for pipe sizes ranging from 8” to 
24” diameter.  
 
 

238

Item 17.



Rainfall Monitoring Equipment:  
• Provide one (1) tipping bucket rain gauge:  

o  ISCO 677Ci (2015CI with antenna and 2191 Battery node) , Trimble/Telog Rain Gauge Recorder 
with Cellular Modem ( RG-32A) with Texas Electronics TR-525  Tipping Bucket, or equal. 

• Provide wireless communication modules (modems) and necessary cabling for each flow meter and rain 
gauge that are capable of transmitting the data collected to the cloud in near real time (up to every 5-
minutes).  
 

Software 
• Provide quote for flow monitoring software to support meter installations and provide data cloud hosting 

and remote access to the flow monitoring data for up to five (5) flow meters and one (1) rain gauge.  
• Software costs should include all up-front purchase pricing for the software platform and annual 

maintenance costs.  
 

Include with the bid the following information: 
• Equipment specifications and warranty information for the flow meters to be furnished, and a 

description of the equipment, communication processes and data feed transmission process. 
• Procedures, schedule, and documentation for meter calibration.  
• Manufacturer Procedure Recommendations for installation  

  
 
City plans to award Base bid, plus any combination of alternates as determined by the City. Therefore, please 
provide pricing for each, separately.  

 
SCHEDULE: 

City intends to take the winning bid to City Council for Approval on July 18th, 2023, with Notice to Proceed 
to follow no later than July 24th, 2023.  Delivery of all equipment awarded shall be no later than December 
1st 2023. 
 

 Inquiries:  All inquiries for information should be directed to: 
 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com  
(417) 732-3405 

 
Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding:  
 
It is the City’s intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding.  To the extent any 
language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the elimination 
of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such restriction/limitation 
is not intended by the City but is merely an unintentional error.   In the event such error is discovered by any 
potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, in writing, no later 
than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day.  Upon receipt of any such notice, the City will take reasonable 
efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 
 
 

  

239

Item 17.

mailto:gbrickner@republicmo.com


TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
01. Opening Location:  Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid (“IFB”) will be opened at Republic City 

Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, at 3:00 P.M. on Monday July 10th. All Bidders (individually, “Bidder”; 
collectively, “Bidders”) and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening of the 
Bids.  

 
02. IFB Delivery Requirements:  Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered.  It 

shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder’s request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and required information 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

 
 Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 

marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

 
City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge  
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

 
03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 

Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 
a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 

page. 
b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award.  

 
04. Corrections:  No erasures are permitted. 

a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 
formatting must be applied:  

1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

 
05. Clarification and Addenda:  Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 

City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents.  

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information   
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given. 

d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 
listed City contact.  
 

06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
240

Item 17.



Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 
  

07. Bid Security:  All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder’s guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

  
a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 

company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic.  
 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 
 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

 
d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either:  

(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

 
08. Irrevocable Offer:  Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB.  Any 

Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

 
09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder:  To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 

all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB.  To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

 
10. Reserved Rights:  The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 

determination of the Bidder’s responsiveness and responsibility.  Such information may include but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

 
11. The Right to Audit:  The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 

charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent to the purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder’s records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 
three (3) years after final payment. 

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 
  

12. Applicable Law:  All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB.  Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 
with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures.  
 

13. Right to Protest:   Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 
a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 

241

Item 17.



b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 
within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 
 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 
 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB.  No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an  agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 
 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 
 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City’s gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB.  

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

 
18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates:  Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by 

the City; however,  additional information may be attached.  Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 
requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance.  Otherwise, Bidders 

242

Item 17.



must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

 
19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 

a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words “no Bid” in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

 
20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if  the 

modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 
 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the “Statement of No Bid” no later than the stated Bid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

 
22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 

specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder’s own risk.  Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shall govern. 

 
23. Prices:  Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 

a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications.  In case of discrepancy in 
computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 

b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions).  FOB, 
as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder’s location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

 
24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 

reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately.  The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City’s determination of award(s). 

 
25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered by 

this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 
a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an “or equal” is expressly stated. 
 
26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an “or equal,” Bids must be accompanied 

with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material or equipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 
be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 
form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 

243

Item 17.



c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 
accountable to the specifications as written. 

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 
of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 
 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same.  In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City’s attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph.   
 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

 
29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 
 
30. Bid Awards:  Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 

requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices.  However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of   
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non-
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received.   

 
31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 

specifications of a manufacturer’s product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer’s product.  By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

 
32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 

of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 
a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 

Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (10)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (“OSHA”) or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-site employees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on-
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee is employed without the construction 
safety training required in the above paragraph. 

244

Item 17.



d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 
 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
for termination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 
 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished.  Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney’s fees incurred. 

 
35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR, Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

 
36. Insurance Requirements:  For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 

including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below.   The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City.  The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City’s sole discretion. 

 
a. Workers’ Compensation:  The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 

Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor’s employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder’s coverage.  Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 
 

b. Commercial General Liability:   The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

 
c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder’s 

operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB):    The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for “any auto” on an occurrence basis. 

 
37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor):  

Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a  Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City,  each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 
terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

245

Item 17.



  
38. Liquidated Damages:  Time of completion of the Project by the Successful Bidder is of the essence.  

Should the Successful Bidder fail to complete the Project within the time specified in the governing 
contract/schedule, without express authorization by the City allowing for an extension of time to 
completion, the Successful Bidder shall be liable to the City in the amount of $100 per day for each and 
every calendar day the Project remains uncompleted, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, it 
being stipulated and agreed that the actual damages to the City arising from the Successful Bidder’s 
failure to timely complete the Project would be difficult, if not impossible, to reasonably ascertain.  
Assessment of liquidated damages will not relieve the Successful Bidder, or its surety/ies, of any 
responsibility or obligation under the Contract. 

 
39. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors:  To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 

contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

 
40. Bid Tabulation:  Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 
 
41. Budgetary Constraints:  The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 

from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

 
42. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies:  By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 

authorizes other public agencies to “Piggy-Back” or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

 
43. Order of Precedence:  Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 

varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 
 
44. Affidavit for Service Contracts:  The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 

RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

 
45. Inspection and Acceptance:  No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 

awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City’s return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 
contract awarded under this IFB. 
 

246

Item 17.



46. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in  part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the “Federal Labor Standards Provisions,” incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB..  Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the  Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 
either law. 
 

47. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have  been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents.   Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri.
 THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 
COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

 
48. Conflict of Interest:  By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB’s 

terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement.  Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 
 

49. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 
 

50. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defects as to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

247

Item 17.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 
Description of Work Price 

 
Prepare the attached “Bid Submission Form Template” to 
develop unit and extended costs. Confirm description of 
proposed equipment.  
 
A Bid Submission form template should be developed for 
all pricing options/alternatives presented.  

Please note any of the following: 
• Any labor personnel requests of the City of 

Republic  
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of 
the City  
of Republic for this project. 

Flow Monitoring Summary: ______________________ 

 

Sewer Band Cost Summary: ______________________ 

 

Rain Gauge Cost Summary: ______________________ 

 

Software Cost Summary: ________________________ 

 

Total Cost: ___________________________________ 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

 

     City of Republic, Missouri 
 

IFB for: Sanitary Sewer Flow Metering 2023 

Republic, MO 65738 

Company Legal Name: 
____________________________________________ 
 

Address:    
  _________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________ 
 

Signature:  
________________________________________ 
 
Name and Title: 
________________________________________ 
 

 
Telephone: ____________________________________ 
 
Cellular: _______________________________________ 

 
Email:  _____________________________________ 
 

 
Dated:  _________________________________ 
 
Bidder’s Federal ID Number:  _______________ 
 

248

Item 17.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 
Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 
 
Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, “[n]o business entity 
or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 
within the state of Missouri.” 
 
State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 
dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 
potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 
employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 
See § 285.530(2), RSMo.  
 
Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only.  If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

 
 

  

249

Item 17.



 

 
 

 
The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer.  The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so.  E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program.  Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 
  

1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) – Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens.  The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

 
a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 

to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 
 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq.  

 
2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 

authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program’s Memo of Understanding 
(MOU).  See attached sample. 

 
 
A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page.  A digital copy of the affidavit can also 

be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic’s official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenter/View/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-
PDF?bidId= 

 

250

Item 17.

http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenter/View/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-PDF?bidId=
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenter/View/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-PDF?bidId=


Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq.  
for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

 
Effective 1/1/2009 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF GREENE ) 
 
 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of    , State of 
     , personally appeared      (Name) who is   
    (Title) of       (Name of company), a (circle 
one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows:   

 
(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 

respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 
(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 

connection with the contracted services. 
 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 
 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 
 
 
 

Signature  

 

Printed Name 

 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of ,    . 

 
 
 
 

Notary Public 
 

My commission expires:     
 
 
 

  

251

Item 17.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 
 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

 
 

Employer, Your Company Name  
 
 

John Doe     
Name (Please type or print) Title 

 
Electronically Signed     
Signature Date 

 
 

Verification 
 

Department of Homeland Security Division 
 

USCIS Verification Division     
Name (Please type or print) Title 

 
Electronically Signed     
Signature Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

252

Item 17.



City of Republic, Missouri 
AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

 
To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

 
  We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 
 
  We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 
 
               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

              . 

 
I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 

conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 
 

 
Company Name _______________________________ ADDENDA 

 
By __________________________________________ 
                   (Authorized Person’s Signature) 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Company Address _____________________________ 
____________________________________________ 
____________________________________________ 
 

Addendum No. _____ 
 
Addendum No. _____ 

Telephone Number ____________________________ 
 

Addendum No. _____ 
 

Fax Number __________________________________ 
 

Addendum No. _____ 

Date ________________________________________ 
 

Email _________________________________________ 
 
Federal Tax ID No. _______________________________ 
 
DBE Vendor (Yes/No): ________   Minority Owned:  _____ 
                                                             Women Owned:   _____ 
                                                             Veteran Owned:   _____ 

 

  
 
  

253

Item 17.



City of Republic, Missouri 
STATEMENT OF “NO PROPOSAL” / “NO BID” 

 
RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

 
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 
 
  SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO “TIGHT,” I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 
ONLY   (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE “REMARKS” SECTION BELOW). 
  INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 
  OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 
  UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 
  UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 
  SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE “REMARKS” SECTION BELOW). 
  OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE “REMARKS” SECTION BELOW). 
 
REMARKS: 

               

               

               
               

 

COMPANY NAME:           

ADDRESS:          

TITLE:                 

SIGNATURE:                                                                                                      

TELEPHONE NUMBER:            

DATE:       
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

  

254

Item 17.



State of frlisgouri

Limited Exemption
from Missouri State Sales and Use Tax on Purchases

(Political Subdivision)

lssued To MISSOURI lD: 12492990

CITY OF REPUBLIC
213 N MAIN AVE
REPUBLIC, MO 65738.1 472

Your application for sales and use tax exempt status has been approved under Section 144.030.1,
RSMo. This letter is issued as documentation of your agency's exempt status. Your agency must
adhere lo all requirements of your exempt status.

This is a continuing exemption subject to legislative changes and review by the Director of Revenue.
Outlined below are specific requirements regarding this exemption. This summary is not intended as a
complete restatement of the law. You should review the law to ensure your understanding and
compliance.

. This exemption is not assignable or transferable. lt is an exemption from sales and use taxes
only and is not an exemption from real or personal property tax.

. Purchases by your agency are not subject to sales or use tax if conducted within your agency's
exempt functions and activities. When purchasing with this exemption, furnish all sellers or
vendors a copy of this letter.

. lndividuals making personal purchases may not use this exemption

. Sales by your agency are subject to all applicable state and local sales taxes

. lf your agency engages in the business of selling tangible personal property or taxable services at
retail, you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License and collect and remit state and local
sales taxes.

lf you have any questions regarding the use of this letter, contact the Taxation Division, Post Office Box
358, Jefferson City, MO 65105-0358, salestaxexemptions@dor. mo.gov, or call 573-75'l-2836.

Notice Number: 2017597353

Effective Dale: 07 l1 1l2OO2

. A contractor may purchase and pay for construction materials exempt from sales tax when
fulfilling a contract with your agency only if your agency issues a project exemption certificate and
the contractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions of Section 144.062 RSMo.

. Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid.

255

Item 17.



 
MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

 
Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 

(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 
Revenue) 

 
EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name:  City of Republic, Missouri 
Address:  213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

 
MO Tax Exempt I.D. #:   12492990 Letter Effective Date: 
Contract Date: Certificate Expiration Date: 
Contract #:  Revised Expiration Date:                                                
Project Description: __________________ 
Project Location: _________________ 
Project Completion Date: ______________________ 
Auth. Signature:      
Date:         

 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
property to be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

 
PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name:          
Address:          
City/State/Zip:         

 
INSTRUCTIONS 

 
EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity’s responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 
 
CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity’s MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

 
MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 
 
 
 
 
 

256

Item 17.



Bid Submission Form Template 
City of Republic, Missouri 

 
Bid Alternative #:  _____________________ 

 

Item Description Quantity Unit Rate Extended Cost Notes 

Flow Monitoring Equipment     

Flow Meter & Battery Module 5 $ $  
A/V Probes 5 $ $  

Modems (Telemetry) 5 $ $  
Cabling & Appurtenances 5 $ $  

Sewer Bands     

18 inches & Below (6,8,10,12,15,18) 5 $ $  
21” or Greater 2 $ $  

Rain Gauge     

Rain Gauge & Tipping Bucket 1 $ $  
Modem 1 $ $  

Software Installation     

Meter Install Configuration (Mobile) 1 $ $ Meter & Rain Gauge Installation & 
Configuration 

Cloud Hosting Environment 1 $ $ Cloud Hosting for Five Meter Sites 
and one (1) Rain Gauge 

Total Bid Alternative Cost   $  

 

257

Item 17.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of a 
Memorandum of Understanding with Modern Tractor Supply Company 
and Lawrence Lipscomb for City's Use of Certain Real Property as Youth 
Recreational League Practice Fields. 

Submitted By: Garrett Cline, Recreation Superintendent (Athletics)  

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

A Resolution authorizing execution of an agreement with Modern Tractor for the primary usage of two 

land parcels, each of 3.41 acres. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Larry Lipscomb/Modern Tractor and Republic Parks & Recreation have agreed to the usage of two 3.41 

acre lots, located at Frisco Square, for primary usage of Youth Soccer Practices. The two 3.41 acre lots 

currently adjoin with .93 acres of City of Republic property, culminating in 7.75 acres of land for youth 

athletics practices. The two parcels in consideration are "FRISCO SQUARE PH 3 LOT 2" and "FRISCO 

SQUARE PH 3 LOT 3". 

 

In exchange for use of the two parcels, the City shall provide all maintenance, upkeep, mowing, and other 

care for the parcels. Prior to the City’s use of the parcels, the City shall be responsible for safety-related 

preparation of the parcels, including but not limited to the removal of safety hazards such as unreasonably 

uneven terrain, and large rocks, lumber, or debris. There will be no monetary fees for usage of the parcels. 

 

The City of Republic assumes liability for standard usage of the facility, as per the Memorandum of 

Understanding. The term consists of an indefinite period, until either party terminates the Memorandum 

of Understanding through written notice. 

 

Youth Soccer Practices are currently conducted within J.R. Martin Park, Miller Park, and on Tiger Rd. With 

the addition of each 3.41 acre parcel, all soccer practices will be removed from J.R. Martin Park.  It is our 

hope that all soccer practices may be relocated to these parcels of land, owned by Modern Tractor. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval.  

 

258

Item 18.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-43 
 

1 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-43 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING WITH MODERN TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY AND LAWRENCE LIPSCOMB FOR CITY'S 

USE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AS YOUTH RECREATIONAL LEAGUE PRACTICE FIELDS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department is in need of land to utilize as practice fields for 

its Youth Soccer and other athletic leagues; and  
 
WHEREAS, Lawrence “Larry” Lipscomb (“Owner”), owner of Modern Tractor and Supply (“Modern 

Tractor”), has agreed to allow the City to utilize two parcels of real property located on West Frisco 
Boulevard (“the Parcels”) owned by Modern Tractor, through a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) 
detailing the terms of such use; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the proposed MOU, the City will utilize the Parcels primarily as soccer fields to 

accommodate the growing number of participants in the sport, as well as other athletic leagues provided 
by the City on an as-needed basis; and 

 
WHEREAS, Owner has agreed to provide the City use of the Parcels on the condition the City will 

provide routine maintenance and upkeep of the Parcels, prepare the Parcels to be utilized as soccer (or 
other recreational) fields, provide portable restrooms on the Parcels while in use by the City, to be serviced 
by a qualified provider at the City’s expense, and agree to fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
Modern Tractor and Owner for any liability, damages and claims arising out of the City’s use of the Parcels; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it is in the best interest of the City to enter into the proposed 

Memorandum of Understanding with Owner and Modern Tractor, which will enable the City to utilize the 
Parcels for Republic Parks and Recreation Department leagues and other recreational activities on an 
annual basis, without the need to purchase or otherwise acquire additional real estate for the same. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City Administrator and/or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with Modern Tractor and Supply and 
its owner, Lawrence “Larry” Lipscomb, for the use of two parcels of real estate 
located within City limits, to be in substantially the same form as that attached 
hereto as “Attachment 1”, at a total cost not to exceed $40.00 annually without 
separate, additional approval from the Council. 

 
Section 2. The City Administrator, or his designee(s), on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take other reasonable, necessary steps to implement this Resolution. 
 
Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

259

Item 18.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-43 
 

2 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-43 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 

260

Item 18.



1 of 3 – MOU for Parks & Recreation Practice Fields on W. Frisco Blvd. 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into this _______ day of 
___________________, 2023, by and between the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation 
and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri (“City”), Modern Tractor and Supply Company (“Modern Tractor”) and 
Lawrence Lipscomb (“Owner”).  City, Modern Tractor and Owner are collectively referred to herein 
as “the Parties.”    

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, Modern Tractor is currently the owner of two parcels of real property located on 
West Frisco Boulevard in Republic, Missouri, each consisting of approximately 3.41 acres, as shown 

on Exhibit A hereto (the “Parcels”); and  
 

WHEREAS, Owner is the owner and principal member of Modern Tractor; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City’s Parks and Recreation Department wishes to utilize the Parcels as 
practice fields for the youth soccer league teams and other athletic leagues of the City’s Parks and 
Recreation Department on an as-needed basis; and  

 

WHEREAS, in exchange for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged by the Parties, Owner and Modern Tractor have agreed to provide the City use of the 
Parcels for the public purposes desired by the City, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth 
herein.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, conditions, and agreements 
set forth herein, Modern Tractor, Owner and City mutually agree as follows: 

 

1. Consideration.  In exchange for use of the Parcels as set forth herein, the City shall 
provide all maintenance, upkeep, mowing and other care for the Parcels are further detailed in 
paragraph 3 below, and shall comply with the other conditions set forth in paragraph 3 below. 

 

2. Term and Dates of Use.  The City shall have access to the Parcels for the public uses 
specified herein from February 1st through May 31st of each year, and from August 1st through 
November 30th of each year, on or about the days and times below: 

 
a. Weekday evenings from 05:30 pm to 08:00 pm, C.S.T. 
b. Saturdays from 09:00 am to 05:00 pm, C.S.T.  

c. Sundays from 12:30 pm to 06:00 pm, C.S.T. 
 

The term shall commence as of the date on which all Parties have signed this MOU 
and shall continue until either of the Parties terminates this MOU through written notice provided to 
the non-terminating Party at least thirty (30) days in advance of such termination.    
 

3. Conditions of Use. 

 
a. The City shall, at all times under this MOU and otherwise, utilize the Parcels 

solely for the public purposes specified herein.  

261

Item 18.



2 of 3 – MOU for Parks & Recreation Practice Fields on W. Frisco Blvd. 

 

b. Prior to the City’s use of the Parcels for the public purposes specified herein, the 
City shall be responsible for safety-related preparation of the Parcels, including but 
not limited to the removal of safety hazards such as unreasonably uneven terrain, 
and large rocks, lumber, or debris. 

c. The City shall regularly mow and maintain the Parcels to the standards commonly 
accepted and followed by the City’s Parks and Recreation Departments for other 
recreational fields used for similar purposes. 

d. The City shall be responsible for the preparation of the Parcels to be used as soccer 
fields, to include, among other things, the placement of goals and patron seating 
upon the Parcels and the painting of field lines on the Parcels.  

e. The City shall be responsible for providing portable restrooms on the Parcels, 
which must remain thereon for the duration of the City’s use of the Parcels as 
soccer fields; more specifically, for the duration of each soccer season as scheduled 

by the City.  
f. The City shall ensure the portable restrooms on the Parcels are regularly serviced 

and maintained by the portable restroom provider or other appropriate service 
provider.  

 

4. Liability and Indemnity. The City shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Modern Tractor, along with its owners, members, employees, and authorized agents, and Owner, 
along with his heirs and assigns, from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney’s fees), losses, outlays and expenses, from claims arising out of or relating in any way to this 
MOU or to the City’s use of the Parcels pursuant to this MOU, including, but not limited to, claims 
for personal injuries, death, property damage, notwithstanding any alleged negligence or neglectful 
wrongdoing on the part of Owner.  This provision does not require City to defend, indemnify or hold 
harmless Modern Tractor or Owner for intentional misconduct or illegal activity on the part of Modern 
Tractor or Owner. 

 

5. Insurance.  For the duration of this MOU, the City shall maintain liability and other 
insurance necessary and/or designed to protect against claims which may arise out of or result from 
this MOU or the City’s use and/or operation of the Parcels pursuant to this MOU.  The amounts of 
such insurance shall have policy limits not in excess of the applicable statutory maximum amounts set 
forth in § 537.610 RSMo.  If requested by the Owner, the City shall provide satisfactory proof of such 
insurance to Modern Tractor or Owner prior to use of the Parcels under this MOU.  The provision of 
any insurance pursuant to this paragraph, whether such insurance does or does not afford coverage to 
City for any claim arising from or out of this MOU or performance thereunder, shall not in any way 
be deemed a waiver of the City’s sovereign or governmental immunity under state and other applicable 
law. 

  

6. Public Entity Immunity.  The City preserves all immunities, sovereign, governmental 
and otherwise, recognized by law.  Nothing in this MOU or any transactions under this MOU shall 
be construed or deemed in any way as a waiver by the City of sovereign immunity or governmental 
immunity recognized under common law, state law, ordinances, regulations, the Missouri 
Constitution, or the United States Constitution, including but not limited to § 537.600 RSMo., et seq.   

 

7. Law and Venue.  This MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri.  
Any lawsuit, claim, or other action filed by or against one or both of the Parties to this MOU relating 
in any way to the interpretation of this MOU or to the exercise of rights and/or duties under this 
MOU, shall have proper venue solely in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 

  

262

Item 18.



3 of 3 – MOU for Parks & Recreation Practice Fields on W. Frisco Blvd. 

 

8. Assignment.  Neither party may assign their rights or obligations under this MOU 
without the prior written consent of the other party. 

  

9. Severability.  A determination by a court of competent jurisdiction or other 
authoritative decision-making body that any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part of this MOU 
is unconstitutional, invalid or otherwise unenforceable shall not affect in any way the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this MOU. 

  

10. Entire Agreement.  This MOU constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 
hereto and there are no other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject matter hereof, and 
may not be changed, modified or amended, in whole or in part, except in writing signed by the Parties. 

 

11. Headings.  The headings formatted in bold herein are merely for purposes of 
convenience and reference only, and do not constitute material terms of this MOU. 

  

12. Incorporation of Whereas Clauses.  The “WHEREAS” clauses in this MOU above 
are incorporated into this paragraph by reference as though fully set forth at length herein and form a 
material part of this MOU.  
 
 
CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI   MODERN TRACTOR & SUPPLY CO, INC. 
 
 
By:  ______________________________  By:  _______________________________ 
           City Administrator              Lawrence “Larry” Lipscomb 
 
             
        

APPROVED AS TO FORM     LAWRENCE LIPSCOMB  

 

 

 

_________________________________   ___________________________________  

Megan McCullough, City Attorney 

         

 

        
            

 
 

 

263

Item 18.



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

264

Item 18.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Extend its Services Contract With Redec, LLC for 
Professional Advisory Services. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, Deputy City Administrator 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

An agreement to continue engagement in professional services with Redec, LLC for wastewater advisory 

services. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic desires to extend our current agreement with Redec, LLC to provide services related 

to obtaining funding for wastewater improvements, in a not-to-exceed amount of $75,000.  Scope of 

projects includes, but is not limited to, provide insight on legislative processes or procedures, review 

documents as requested, assist with messaging content and presentation of data, and assist with strategy 

and logistics that will aid the City in determining with whom and where to communicate the need for 

wastewater funding. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

265

Item 19.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-44    

1 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXTEND ITS 
SERVICES CONTRACT WITH REDEC, LLC FOR PROFESSIONAL ADVISORY SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City entered into an Abatement Order on Consent with the Department of Natural 
Resources, as approved by the City Council on October 5, 2021 via Ordinance 21-62, to address the 
deficiencies with the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant and to reach compliance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates construction of various anticipated wastewater treatment 

improvements within the City to be completed on or before April 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Missouri has announced a financial commitment from its American Rescue 

Plan Act (“ARPA”) funds allocation for water infrastructure improvements pursuant to which it will award 
those funds to select communicates in the form of grant programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has been working diligently to obtain available ARPA and other funding for its 

new wastewater treatment system, which involves a multi-step process with various complexities 
beginning in the early stages of applying for and obtaining the funds, to then documenting, allocating, 
obligating, and properly spending the funds as awarded; and  

 
WHEREAS, in 2021, with approval of Council, the City entered into an agreement with Redec, LLC 

(“Redec”) whereby Redec agreed to provide the City with professional advisory services in connection 
with the City’s efforts to obtain funds for its new wastewater treatment system; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about July 19, 2022, via Resolution 22-R-37, the Council authorized the extension 

of the City’s contract with Redec for continuation of Redec’s professional advisory services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City believes Redec has consistently provided valuable insight and assistance with 

its ongoing efforts to identify and successfully procure available funding through the state and/or 
ARPA/other grants for its new wastewater treatment system, and wishes to extend its agreement with 
Redec for Redec’s continued professional services toward those efforts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it is in the City’s best interest to approve extension of the City’s 

contract with Redec in a total amount not to exceed $175,000, inclusive of costs previously paid by City 

to Redec for the same services.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator is authorized to extend the City’s contract with Redec, LLC 
for Redec’s continued professional advisory services relating to the City’s efforts 
to obtain funding for its new wastewater treatment system, in a total amount not 
to exceed $175,000, inclusive of costs previously paid by City to Redec for the 
same or similar services, without separate, additional approval from Council. 

 

266

Item 19.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-44    

2 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-44 

Section 2: The City Administrator, and/or his designee, is authorized on behalf of the City to 
take the steps necessary to execute this Resolution and initiate the engagement 
described herein. 

 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 4: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 
 

 

 

267

Item 19.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 23-R-45 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Execute a Fourth Addendum to the Agreement for 
Financial Consulting Services with Maximist, LLC. 

Submitted By: Bob Ford 

Date: July 18, 2023 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To execute an addendum to the contract for financial consulting services provided by Larry Brown. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic has been utilizing Larry Brown of Maximist, LLC for financial consulting services for 

several years, as needed.  Mr. Brown provides additional oversight and protection to the City’s funds by 

increasing internal controls, providing coverage during staff turnover or absence, and providing additional 

reviews.  Mr. Brown has provided and continues to provide part-time services within the Finance 

Department where his institutional knowledge spanning approximately five years is invaluable.  Mr. 

Brown is currently spending one day per week with the City’s finance team and is nearing the ceiling of 

the previously approved not to exceed amount of $70,000.   

The addendum increases the not to exceed amount from $70,000 to $80,000 for FY 2023.  We currently 

anticipate needing Mr. Brown one day per week on an as needed basis for an additional five to 10 weeks 

thru the end of August 2023. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

268

Item 20.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-45 
Page 1 of 2 

     

 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-45 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A 
FOURTH ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES WITH 

MAXIMIST, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and 
existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, Maximist, LLC (“Maximist”), through Larry Brown, has been providing financial 

consulting services to the City pursuant to an Agreement (“Contract”) dated January 6, 2017, and as 

amended in the Engagement Letter Addendum signed January 24, 2017 (authorized by Resolution 17-R-

05) and the Engagement Letter Addendum signed May 31, 2017 (authorized by Resolution No. 17-R-42), 

to help protect and ensure the security of the City’s financial position; and 

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2022, via Resolution 21-R-41, the Council authorized a First 

Addendum to the Contract, amending the allowable not-to-exceed amount and increasing the hourly 

rate(s) paid by the City; and 

WHEREAS, on October 22, 2022, via Resolution 22-R-66, the Council authorized a Second 

Addendum to the Contract, amending the allowable not-to-exceed amount to $20,000 and maintaining 

the previous hourly rate of $150.00 per hour; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 6, 2022, via Resolution 22-R-76, the Council authorized a Third 

Addendum to the Contract, amending the allowable not-to-exceed amount to $70,000 and maintaining 
the previous hourly rate of $150.00 per hour; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a Fourth Addendum to the Contract by amending the 

allowable not-to-exceed amount from $70,000.00 to $80,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the Fourth Addendum to the Contract be approved to properly 

maintain continuity of the financial consulting services provided by Maximist, and Council agrees the 

Fourth Addendum to the Contract will help to ensure continuity and is in the best interest of the City 

and its citizens. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The City Administrator, and/or his designee(s), on behalf of the City, is hereby 

authorized to execute and deliver any documents necessary to execute a Fourth 
Addendum to the January 6, 2017 Contract with Maximist, LLC, for continued 
provision of financial consulting services on an as-needed basis at the agreed 
upon amounts in the Fourth Addendum, to be substantially in the same form as 
that attached hereto and labeled “Attachment 1”. 

 
Section 2. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 

269

Item 20.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-45 
Page 2 of 2 

     

 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-R-45 

Section 3. This Resolution will become effective on and after the date of passage and 
approval as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 

Missouri, this ___ day of July 2023. 
 
 

Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

270

Item 20.



1 of 5 
 

FOURTH ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT 

 
THIS FOURTH ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT is made this ___ day of 

______________________, 2023, by and between the City of Republic, Missouri (“City”) and 
Maximist, LLC (“Consultant”) (together, “the Parties”).  
 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 
Missouri; and  
 

WHEREAS, Consultant is a Missouri limited liability company in good standing authorized 
to conduct business in the State of Missouri; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for governmental consulting services of 
January 2017, and as amended, which generally provides that Consultant shall provide professional 
financial consulting services to the City (“Agreement”); and  
 

WHEREAS, a first addendum to the Agreement was executed on September 21, 2021, as 
authorized by Resolution 21-R-41; and 

 
WHEREAS, a second addendum to the Agreement was executed on October 13, 2022, as 

authorized by Resolution 22-R-66; and 
 
WHEREAS, a third addendum to the Agreement was executed on December 16, 2022, as 

authorized by Resolution 22-R-76; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to extend the duration of the Agreement and update the terms of 

payment under the Agreement, the Parties desire to execute this Fourth Addendum, herein below. 

 THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS:  
 

1. Costs Not to Exceed:  The City is limited by law with respect to the amount of money it can 

pay.  Therefore, the Parties have established fixed sums, including maximum amounts, which 

cannot be exceeded without further or additional amendment to the Agreement.  The 

maximum amount per annum under this Fourth Addendum is $80,000.00.  Costs are to be 

incurred on the rate of no more than $150.00 per hour, and as to said hourly rate and expenses 

billable under the Agreement, Consultant shall be required to keep track of the rate time and 

expenses, and any amounts in excess of that fixed or otherwise authorized under the 

Agreement shall not be eligible for payment. Consultant shall notify the City if Consultant 

anticipates that the Agreement amounts may be exceeded in order to determine whether or 

not the City is prepared to increase the total compensation. Consultant shall establish a billing 

system showing the amount of money remaining on the Agreement, which shall be shown in 

each monthly billing. 

 

2.  Supplemental and Additional Services: Should City desire or need any supplemental 

and/or additional services related to the Agreement, City shall have the right to use their own 

employees or contractors or enter into an agreement addendum with Consultant for any 

271

Item 20.



2 of 5 
 

supplemental and/or additional services. Such decision shall be within the sole discretion of 

the City. 

 

3.  Jurisdiction and Venue: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Missouri. The Parties agree that any disputes or litigation that 

may arise out of this Agreement shall be litigated in the Circuit Court of Greene County, 

Missouri. The Parties agree to submit themselves to the jurisdiction of such court and waive 

any defenses they may have to lack of jurisdiction over the person or subject matter. The 

Parties do hereby further consent and stipulate venue shall be proper in Greene County, 

Missouri in any such actions. 

 

4. No Assumption of Liability: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any 

liability on behalf of the City, including its officers, employees, agents, attorneys, or assigns, 

for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, consequential, or damages of any kind, or for 

attorney fees. 

 

5. Indemnification/Hold Harmless: The Parties acknowledge that Missouri law does not 

authorize a public entity to indemnify a private company. In any event, the City does not agree 

to indemnify or hold harmless Consultant. To the extent, if any, that any part of the Agreement 

suggests otherwise, that part is deleted. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create 

any obligation by the City to indemnify or hold harmless Consultant, including its members, 

officers, employees, agents, attorneys, successors, or assigns; or any third-party. 

 

6. Independent Contractor: The Parties are separate and independent from each other. This 

Agreement shall not be construed as creating any type of joint venture or partnership. 

 

7. City Benefits: Consultant, including its members, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, 

successors, or assigns are not employees of City and shall not be entitled to any of the benefits 

established for the employees of the City nor be covered by Workers’ Compensation through 

the City, including that they shall not be construed as statutory employees. 

 

8. Conflict of Interest: No salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member of City 

Council, shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. A violation of this 

provision renders this Agreement void. 

 

9. E-verify:  All applicable law shall be complied with in the course of performing acts related 

to this Agreement. This includes that Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws 

regarding classification of employees, such as pursuant to § 285.500, RSMo. et al., and 

regarding verification of eligibility for employment, such as pursuant to § 285.530, RSMo. et 

al. For all contracts related to this Agreement, including this Agreement, Consultant will 

provide necessary affidavit(s) to show enrollment in a federal work authorization program that 

Consultant does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 

with the contracted service. 

 

272

Item 20.



3 of 5 
 

10. Proof of Lawful Presence: All applicable law shall be complied with in the course of 

performing acts related to this Agreement. This includes that Consultant shall comply with all 

applicable laws regarding prohibiting persons who are unlawfully present in the United States 

of America from receiving any public benefit as a result of the Agreement, such as § 208.009, 

RSMo. Affirmative representations of lawful presence may be established through an 

authorized officer of Consultant providing documentary evidence, including such recognized 

by the department of revenue when processing an application for a driver’s license, a Missouri 

driver’s license, as well as any document issued by the federal government that confirms an 

alien’s lawful presence in the United States. 

 

11. Professional/Occupational/Business Licenses: Consultant represents that it and all the 

individuals through whom it may act in providing services contemplated under this Agreement  

are authorized to conduct business and shall maintain such 

professional/occupational/business licenses as are required by law to provide the services 

contemplated by this Agreement. All such costs shall be borne by Consultant. 

 

12. Anti-Discrimination: Consultant agrees in the performance of this Agreement not to 

discriminate on the ground or because of race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, sex, 

religion, handicap, age, status as a protected veteran, or a qualified individual with a disability, 

or political opinion or affiliation, against any employee of Consultant or applicant for 

employment and shall include a similar provision in all subcontracts let or awarded hereunder. 

 

13. Execution:  The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and emailed 

shall have the same legal effect of original signatures. This Agreement may also be executed 

in accordance with the applicable version of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA) 

and the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act (ESIGN). The Parties 

hereto agree to conduct transactions by electronic means and hereby affirmatively consent to 

use electronic records to memorialize and execute this Agreement and any alterations thereto. 

At the request of any Party, the Parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts 

of this Agreement or any amendment. 

 

14. Headings: The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall 

not limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 

 

15. Whereas Clauses:  The “Whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

16. Assignment:  This Agreement may not be assigned by Consultant without the prior written 

consent of all Parties. 

 

17. Public Entity/Officer Immunities and Protections: In no event shall the language or 

requirements of this Agreement constitute or be construed as a waiver or limitation of rights 

or defenses with regard to applicable sovereign, governmental or official or individual 

immunities and any other protections or defenses as provided by federal and state 

constitutions, statutes, and laws. 

273

Item 20.



4 of 5 
 

 

18. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 

competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part, of this Agreement 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts of this Agreement. 

 

19. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval:  This Agreement is contingent upon the City 

having sufficient funds available for the subject of this Agreement. Consultant shall have no 

right of action against City in the event City is unable to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement as a result of insufficient funds. Further, this Agreement is subject to and 

conditioned upon approval on the record by the City Council. 

 

20. Inconsistencies: To the extent there are any conflicts or inconsistencies between the 

Addendum and any previous iteration of the Agreement, or any contract document or 

understanding and the Addendum, the Addendum supersedes and shall govern. 

 

21. Notices:  Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed to 

have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following offices 

or deposited in the United States Mail, registered or certified, with postage thereon prepaid, 

as follows: 

 

To the City: 

City of Republic, Missouri 

Attn: City Administrator 

213 North Main Ave 

Republic, MO 65738 

 

To Consultant: 

Maximist, LLC  / Consulting Services 

Attn: Larry Brown 

32131 West High Point 

Springfield, MO 65810 

 

[The remainder of this page is left blank.  Signatures follow on Page 5 of 5] 

 

 

 

 

 

274

Item 20.



5 of 5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Fourth Addendum Agreement to 

be executed as of the day and year first above written.  

Maximist, LLC, by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Larry Brown, President 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
City of Republic, by: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Andrew Nelson, Deputy City Administrator 
 
 
Attest:  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 

Approved as to Form: 

 
____________________________________ 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 
 

275

Item 20.


	Top
	Item 1.	Board Appointments
	Appointment Cert - C Johnson

	Item 2.	Copy of Board Appointments
	Appointment Cert - C Hyder

	Item 3.	minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes_20230620_LBB Draft

	Item 4.	vendor
	Vendor Audit Report

	Item 5.	records
	record destruction

	Item 6.	Base Rock School Lane
	SR- Purchase of Base Rock for School Storage Lane
	UPDATED AMOUNT - 23-R-XX - Awarding Bid for Base Rock for School Queuing Lane - Clever Stone - with 150k

	Item 7.	Rental equipment bulk bid
	SR- Award of Equipment Rental Bids
	23-R - Awarding Bid for Equipment Rentals_MEM FINAL
	Berry
	Hayden Machinery
	State Tractor
	IFB_Rental Equipment 2023 through 2024

	Item 8.	2nd reading of REZN 23-002 3020 N York Ave
	REZN 23-002 CC Staff Report
	23-ORD-XX - Rezone of 3020 N York Ave to M-2_MEM FINAL
	REZN 23-002 Vicinity Map
	REZN 23-002 Zoning Map
	Findings of Facts completed

	Item 9.	2nd reading of stone creek falls PDD final plat ph 1
	SUBD-FNL 23-001 Staff Report
	23-ORD - Approving Final Plat of Stone Creek Falls PDD Ph 1_MEM FINAL
	SUBD-FNL 23-001 Vicinity Map
	Stone Creek Falls Final Plat Final Submittal

	Item 10.	Striping IGA with Greene Co.
	SR- IGA for Striping with Greene County
	23-ORD-18 - IGA with Greene Co for Striping_MEM FINAL
	ATTACHMENT 1 TO ORDINANCE - Greene County + REPMO Striping IGA - City Attorney draft
	EXHIBIT A TO to Greene County and REPMO IGA Re Striping (Attachment 1, Exhibit A)
	GC Quote City of Republic striping 2023
	Striping Plan 2023 Map

	Item 11.	Iron Grain final plat
	SUBD-FNL 23-002 Staff Report
	23-ORD - Approving Final Plat of Iron Grain District PDD Phase 1 _ MEM FINAL
	SUBD-FNL 23-002 VICINITY MAP Letter_2
	SUBD-FNL 23-002 Iron Grain Dist Ph I_Final Sub

	Item 12.	Oak Hills Ph 3 Developer Agreement
	CC Staff Report DA
	23-ORD-XX - Authorizing Developer Agrmt for Oak Hills PH3 deferred infrastructure with Turner Residential Holding, LLC_MEM FINAL
	ATTACHMENT 1 TO ORDINANCE - Developer Agreement - Oak Hills Phase 3 deferred infrastructure - Turner Residential Holding - USE THIS ONE
	Exhibit A to DEV AGRMT Oak Hills Phases 1 and 3 Legal Description
	EXHIBIT B to DEV AGRMT Oak Hills Phases 1 and 3

	Item 13.	REZN 23-003 1192 S State Hwy MM
	REZN 23-003 PZ Staff Report
	23-ORD-XX - Approving Re-Zone of 1192 S State Hwy MM
	REZN 23-003 Vicinity Map
	REZN 23-003 Zoning Map
	REZN 23-003 FOFS Completed

	Item 14.	REZN 23-004 2315-2330 E Timber Oak St.
	REZN 23-004 PZ Staff Report
	23-ORD-XX - Authorizing Re-Zone of East Timber Oak from 12 Stones PDD to R-2-STILL NEEDS LEGAL
	REZN 23-004 Zoning Map
	REZN 23-004 Vicinity Map
	REZN 23-004 FOFS Completed

	Item 15.	PAMS Interface-IGA with Springfield
	SR - ORD authorizing contract with SPFD for Programming Code re Niche to PAMS
	23-ORD-XX - Authorizing Contract with SGF for Programming Code for Niche and PAMS
	ATTACHMENT 1 to ORD - Agreement to transfer software batch program to Republic final amended 6.26.23

	Item 16.	task order 14
	SR- Burns & McDonnell Task Order 14
	23-R-XX - Authorizing Task Order No. 14 on WWTP project_MEM FINAL-use
	ATTACHMENT 1 to the Resolution -- AE-2 Exhibit A Task Order No. 14

	Item 17.	sewer flow monitoring
	SR- Award of Sewer Flow Monitoring equipment
	23-R-22 - Awarding Bid for Sewer Flow Monitoring - MEM FINAL - awaiting bid opening
	Core and Main
	IFB - Sewer Flow Metering equipment_

	Item 18.	property agreement for sports practices
	Staff Report - Modern Tractor Land Usage
	23-R-XX - Approving MOU with Larry Lipscomb for Parks and Rec Field Use_MEM FINAL
	ATTACHMENT 1 TO RESOLUTION - 2023 - MOU with Larry Lipscomb for Parks & Rec Practice Fields_MEM FINAL
	EXHIBIT A TO ATTACHMENT 1 - MOU City_Lipscomb_Frisco properties for Parks - Exhibit A

	Item 19.	Redec
	Exhibit for Professional Services with Redec LLC 2023
	23-R-XX - Authorizing Extended NTE for REDEC_MEM FINAL

	Item 20.	LARRY 3rd addendum
	Council - Larry Brown expand not to exceed to 80K
	23-R-45 - Larry Brown - Maximist - Addendum 4_MEM FINAL
	ATTACHMENT 1 TO RES -- 2023 - Larry Brown - Maximist - Fourth Addendum_MEM FINAL

	Bottom

